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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA 

 
JAY BLOOM, an individual, 
 

Petitioner, 
 
vs. 
 
THE EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT 
COURT OF THE STATE OF 
NEVADA, IN AND FOR THE 
COUNTY OF CLARK, AND THE 
HONORABLE MARK R. DENTON, 
DISTRICT JUDGE 
 

Respondents. 
 
 
TGC/FARKAS FUNDING, LLC, 
 

Real Party in 
Interest. 

 

APPENDIX TO PETITION FOR 

WRIT OF MANDAMUS OR 

PROHIBITION DIRECTING THE 

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT 

COURT CLARK COUNTY, 

NEVADA, HONORABLE MARK R. 

DENTON, DISTRICT JUDGE, TO 

VACATE (1) AN ORDER FINDING 

NON-PARTY JAY BLOOM TO BE 

THE ALTER EGO OF FIRST 100 

AND (2) AN ORDER FOR 

ATTORNEYS’ FEES AND COSTS 

AS RELATED TO NON-PARTY 

JAY BLOOM 
 

Dist. Ct. Case No. A-20-822273-C 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ORIGINAL PETITION 

 

From the Eighth Judicial District Court, Clark County, Nevada 

The Honorable Mark R. Denton, District Court Judge 

 

 

APPELLANTS’ APPENDIX VOLUME I 

 

 

DATE DESCRIPTION VOLUME PAGES 

01/20/2021 

Defendants and Non-Party Jay Bloom’s 

Response to Order to Show Cause 

 

I 

AA0209-0214 

Electronically Filed
May 16 2022 09:18 a.m.
Elizabeth A. Brown
Clerk of Supreme Court

Docket 84704   Document 2022-15361
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10/15/2020 

Defendants’ Limited Opposition to 

Motion to Confirm Arbitration Award 

and Countermotion to Modify Award 

Per NRS 38.242 

I 

AA0041-0046 

01/19/2021 

Defendants’ Motion to Enforce 

Settlement Agreement and Vacate Post-

Judgment Discovery Proceedings on Ex 

Parte Order Shortening Time 

I 

AA0156-0208 

11/24/2020 
Defendants’ Opposition to Motion for 

Attorneys’ Fees and Costs 
I AA0111-0115 

01/27/2021 

Defendants’ Reply in Support of Motion 

to Enforce Settlement Agreement and 

Vacate Post-Judgment Discovery 

Proceedings and Opposition to 

Countermotion to Strike the Affidavit of 

Jason Maier and Opposition to 

Countermotion for Sanctions 

II 

AA0362-0492 

11/17/2020 Motion for Attorneys’ Fees and Costs I AA0069-0110 

10/01/2020 Motion to Confirm Arbitration Award I AA0001-0040 

04/15/2021 Notice of Appeal III/IV AA0943-0986 

07/02/2021 Notice of Appeal IV AA0995-1001 

04/07/2021 

Notice of Entry of Findings of Fact, 

Conclusions of Law & Order Re 

Evidentiary Hearing 

III 
AA0903-0942 

02/09/2021 Notice of Entry of Order II AA0516-0520 

06/11/2021 
Notice of Entry of Order Awarding 

Attorneys’ Fees and Costs 
IV AA0990-0994 

12/21/2020 

Notice of Entry of Order Granting 

Plaintiff’s Ex Parte Application for 

Judgment Debtor Examination of First 

100, LLC 

I 

AA0131-0140 

12/21/2020 

Notice of Entry of Order Granting 

Plaintiff’s Ex Parte Application for 

Judgment Debtor Examination of First 

One Hundred Holdings, LLC AKA 1st 

One Hundred Holdings LLC 

I 

AA0141-0150 
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12/21/2020 

Notice of Entry of Order Granting 

Plaintiff’s Ex Parte Application for 

Order to Show Cause Why Defendants 

and Jay Bloom Should Not Be Held in 

Contempt of Court 

I 

AA0151-0155 

01/27/2021 

Notice of Entry of Order Granting 

Plaintiff’s Motion for Attorneys’ Fees 

and Costs 

II 
AA0356-0361 

11/17/2020 

Notice of Entry of Order Granting 

Plaintiff’s Motion to Confirm  

Arbitration Award and Denying 

Defendants’ Countermotion to Modify 

Award; and Judgment 

I 

AA0060-0068 

02/09/2021 Order II AA0513-0515 

03/17/2022 
Order Affirming in Part and Dismissing 

in Part 
IV AA1007-1011 

03/17/2022 
Order Affirming in Part, Reversing in 

Part and Remanding, and Dismissing in 

Part 

IV 
AA1002-1006 

06/11/2021 
Order Awarding Attorneys’ Fees and 

Costs 
IV AA0987-0989 

01/27/2021 
Order Granting Plaintiff’s Motion for 

Attorneys’ Fees and Costs 
II AA0352-0355 

11/17/2020 

Order Granting Plaintiff’s Motion to 

Confirm Arbitration Award and 

Denying Defendants’ Countermotion to 

Modify Award; and Judgment 

I 

AA0053-0059 

12/18/2020 

Plaintiff’s Ex Parte Application for 

Order to Show Cause Defendants and 

Jay Bloom Should Not Be Held in 

Contempt of Court 

I 

AA0123-0130 

10/26/2020 

Plaintiff’s Reply to Defendants’ 

Limited Opposition to Motion to 

Confirm Arbitration Award and 

Opposition to Defendants’ 

Countermotion to Modify Award Per 

NRS 38.242 

I 

AA0047-0052 

03/03/2021 
Recorder’s Transcript of Evidentiary 

Hearing 
II/III AA0537-0764 
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03/10/2021 
Recorder’s Transcript of Evidentiary 

Hearing 
III AA0765-0902 

03/01/2021 

Recorder’s Transcript of Hearing Re: 

Motion to Compel and For Sanctions; 

Application for Ex-Parte Order 

Shortening Time 

II 

AA0521-0536 

01/21/2021 
Recorder’s Transcript of Hearing Re: 

Show Cause Hearing 
II AA0323-0329 

12/14/2020 
Reply in Support of Motion for 

Attorneys’ Fees and Costs 
I AA0116-0122 

01/20/2021 

Supplement to Plaintiff’s Ex Parte 

Application for Order to Show Cause 

Why Defendants and Jay Bloom Should 

Not Be Held in Contempt of Court 

I/II 

AA0215-0322 

01/28/2021 

Transcript of Proceedings Re: Show 

Cause Hearing/Defendant’s Motion to 

Enforce Settlement Agreement and 

Vacate Post-Judgment Discovery 

Proceedings on Ex-Parte Order 

Shortening Time 

II 

AA0493-0512 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 Pursuant to NRAP 21(a) and 25(c), I certify that I am an employee of MAIER 

GUTIERREZ & ASSOCIATES, and that on May 13 2022, APPENDIX TO PETITION 

FOR WRIT OF MANDAMUS OR PROHIBITION DIRECTING THE 

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA, 

HONORABLE MARK R. DENTON, DISTRICT JUDGE, TO VACATE (1) 

AN ORDER FINDING NON-PARTY JAY BLOOM TO BE THE ALTER 

EGO OF FIRST 100 AND (2) AN ORDER FOR ATTORNEYS’ FEES AND 

COSTS AS RELATED TO NON-PARTY JAY BLOOM was served via 

electronic means by operation of the court’s electronic filing system: 

Erika P. Turner, Esq. 
Dylan T. Ciciliano, Esq. 

GARMAN TURNER GORDON, LLP 
7251 Amigo Street, Suite 210 

Las Vegas, Nevada 89119 
Attorneys for TGC Farkas Funding LLC 

 
 

 
 

 /s/ Brandon Lopipero 

 An Employee of MAIER GUTIERREZ & ASSOCITES 
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MOT 
GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP 
ERIKA PIKE TURNER 
Nevada Bar No. 6454 
Email: eturner@gtg.legal 
7251 Amigo Street, Suite 210 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89119 
Tel: (725) 777-3000 
Fax: (725) 777-3112 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 
 

DISTRICT COURT 
 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 
 
TGC/FARKAS FUNDING, LLC, 
 
                          Plaintiff, 
 
vs. 
 
FIRST 100, LLC, a Nevada Limited Liability 
Company; FIRST ONE HUNDRED 
HOLDINGS, LLC, a Nevada limited liability 
company, 
 

   Defendants. 
 

CASE NO.   
DEPT.   
 
 
MOTION TO CONFIRM ARBITRATION 
AWARD  
 
HEARING REQUESTED 

 

Plaintiff TGC/FARKAS FUNDING, LLC (“Plaintiff”), by and through counsel, Garman 

Turner Gordon LLP, hereby moves this Honorable Court for an Order confirming the Arbitration 

Award, attached hereto as Exhibit 1, dated September 15, 2020, by Arbitrator and Panel Chair, 

Philip J. Dabney, Esq., Arbitrator, Nikki L. Baker, Esq., and Arbitrator, Anthony J. DiRaimondo, 

Esq., (“Arbitration Panel”) in the matter entitled TGS/Farkas Funding, LLC v. First 100, LLC, 

AAA Arbitration Case No. 01-20-0000-0613. 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

Case Number: A-20-822273-C

Electronically Filed
10/1/2020 10:02 AM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT

CASE NO: A-20-822273-C
Department 13
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This motion is made pursuant to NRS 38.239 and 38.243(1) and is based on the following 

Memorandum of Points and Authorities; the Decision and Award of Arbitration Panel (1) 

Compelling Production of Company Records; and (2) Ordering Reimbursement of Claimant’s 

Attorneys’ Fees and Costs, attached hereto as Exhibit 1; the First Amended Operating Agreement 

of First 100, LLC, attached hereto as Exhibit 2; all pleadings, papers, and documents on file with 

the Court in this action; and such further documentary evidence as the Court deems appropriate.   

DATED this 1st day of October, 2020.  

   GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP 

 
  /s/ Erika Pike Turner      
ERIKA PIKE TURNER 
Nevada Bar No. 6454 
7251 Amigo Street, Suite 210 
Tel: (725) 777-3000 
Fax: (725) 777-3112  
Attorneys for Plaintiff  

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES 

I. INTRODUCTION 

 On January 7, 2020, Plaintiff initiated an arbitration with the American Arbitration 

Association against First 100, LLC and First One Hundred Holdings, LLC (“Defendants”) relating 

to whether Plaintiff was entitled to production and examination of company records of Defendants 

and pursuant to section 13.9 of the parties’ arbitration agreement. Exh. 2 § 13.9.    

 On September 15, 2020, after the Arbitration Panel deliberated, it issued its Decision and 

Award of Arbitration Panel (1) Compelling Production of Company Records; and (2) Ordering 

Reimbursement of Claimant’s Attorneys’ Fees and Costs (the “Award”). See Exh. 1. The Award 

requires Defendants to “make all the requested documents and information available from both 

companies to Claimant [Plaintiff] for inspection and copying” and to pay within ten (10) days, or 

by September 25, 2020, the total sum of $23,975.00 for arbitration filing fees paid by the Plaintiff, 

and all the fees for the Arbitration Panel, and $17,011.50 in attorneys’ fees (together, the 

“Expenses”). Id.  Defendants have refused and/or failed to comply with the Award obligations.  

By this Motion, Plaintiff seeks to confirm the Award under applicable Nevada law so that it can 
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be enforced. 

II. THE PARTIES, JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

Defendants are and were at all times herein, Nevada limited-liability companies. Personal 

jurisdiction and venue are proper pursuant to NRS 13.010, NRS 38.244, and NRS.246. Defendants 

are Nevada entities doing business in Clark County, Nevada. Further, the operative First Amended 

Operating Agreement of First 100, LLC, which binds the parties and subjected the same to 

arbitration in Las Vegas, Nevada, “confers exclusive jurisdiction on the court to enter judgment 

on an award” and “a motion . . . must be made in the court of the county in which the agreement 

to arbitrate specifies . . . .” NRS 38.244, 38.246; see also Exh. 2. § 13.9.    

Plaintiff now seeks to have this Court confirm this Award and enter Judgment for Plaintiff 

under NRS 38.239 and NRS 38.243(1).  

III. RELEVANT FACTS 

Plaintiff was forced to seek the Award when Defendants repeatedly and steadfastly refused 

to produce the business records of Defendant for inspection, which records were requested for the 

purpose of informing Plaintiff regarding the status of its membership interest obtained in exchange 

for $1 million and other valuable consideration. See Exh. 1. 

On September 15, 2020, the Arbitration Panel issued its Award in favor of Plaintiff 

requiring that Defendants produce the requested company records to Plaintiff.  Further, as the fees 

and costs incurred to enforce Plaintiff’s membership rights are awardable under the Operating 

Agreements for Defendants, the Arbitration Panel required Defendants to pay Plaintiff the 

Expenses. The Award was reasoned, and based on the fact that (1) Plaintiff holds a membership 

interest regardless of Defendants’ contrary contentions, (2) Defendants were obligated to produce 

the records to Plaintiff given the financial circumstances occurring relating to Defendants, and 

Plaintiff’s request for records were not overbroad pursuant to NRS 86.241(2). Id. 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 
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IV. LEGAL ANALYSIS 

A. NEVADA LAW REQUIRES CONFIRMATION OF THE ARBITRATION 

AWARD ENTERED IN PLAINTIFF’S FAVOR. 

NRS 38.239 authorizes this Court to enter a judgment confirming the Award so that it may 

be enforced.  

NRS 38.239 provides in pertinent part:  
After a party to an arbitral proceeding received notice of an award, he may make a 
motion to the court for an order confirming the award at which time the court shall 
issue a confirming order unless the award is modified or corrected pursuant to NRS 
38.237 or 38.242 or is vacated pursuant to NRS 38.241. 

(Emphasis added). See also Casey v. Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., 128 Nev. 713, 714, 290 P.3d 265, 

266 (2012). The Award in this case has not been modified or corrected pursuant to NRS 38.237 or 

38.242. Nor has it been vacated pursuant to NRS 38.241. The plain language of NRS 38.239 

therefore compels the confirmation of the Award at this time. 

NRS 38.243(1) states, in relevant part: 
 
Upon granting an order confirming . . . an award, the court shall enter a judgment 
in in conformity therewith. The judgment may be recorded, docketed and enforced 
as any other judgment in a civil action. 

(Emphasis added). Upon this Court confirming the Award, judgment shall be entered in Plaintiff’s 

favor.   

V. CONCLUSION 

For the foregoing, Plaintiff respectfully requests that the Court enter: (1) an Order 

confirming the Award dated September 15, 2020; and (2) enter judgment in Plaintiff’s favor in 

conformity with the Court’s order confirming the Award. 

DATED this 1st day of October, 2020.  

   GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP 

  /s/ Erika Pike Turner     
ERIKA PIKE TURNER 
Nevada Bar No. 6454 
7251 Amigo Street, Suite 210 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89119 
Tel: (725) 777-3000 
Fax: (725) 777-3112  
Attorneys for Plaintiff  
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1 During the Preliminary Hearing, the Parties confirmed that party-appointed arbitrators Baker 
and DiRaimondo were serving as neutral, non-partisan arbitrators for purposes of these 
proceedings.

AMERICAN ARBITRATION ASSOCIATION

COMMERCIAL ARBITRATION TRIBUNAL

In the Matter of the Arbitration between:

Claimant TGC/Farkas Funding, LLC, hereinafter referred to as "Claimant"

-and-

Respondents First 100, LLC, and First One Hundred Holdings, LLC, hereinafter 
collectively referred to as "Respondents"

AAA Case No: 01-20-0000-0613

Decision and AWARD of Arbitration Panel (1) Compelling Production of Company 
Records; and (2) Ordering Reimbursement of Claimant’s Attorneys’ Fees and Costs

The undersigned Arbitrators, having been designated in accordance with the arbitration 
agreement entered into between the above-named parties1, and having been duly sworn, and 
having duly heard the proofs and allegations of the Parties, hereby AWARD as follows:

This matter came before the Panel for a hearing to determine whether Claimant is 
entitled to production and examination of company records of Respondents. The Parties 
requested that the Panel not hold an evidentiary hearing but instead render a reasoned decision 
based on the briefings and documents presented. The Parties presented their briefs; the Panel 
convened and considered the briefs and evidence; the Panel then requested further evidence 
regarding the alleged Redemption Agreement. Upon receipt of the additional evidence, the 
Panel declared the hearing closed and further deliberated. This decision is the product of that 
deliberation.

AMERICAN 
ARBITRATION 
ASSOCIATION• 

INTERNATIONAL CENTRE 
FOR DISPUTE RESOLUTION • 
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Respondents appear to be in the business of purchasing unpaid receivables of HOAs on 
discounted terms and profiting from those purchases in various ways. Exhibit 1 to Claimant’s 
Appendix to Claimant’s Arbitration Brief (“Appendix” or “Appx”).  Claimant is an entity 
owned by Matthew Farkas and Adam Flatto. Exhibit 1 to Claimant’s Response to Order 
Regarding Additional Evidence Request.  Matthew Farkas was an officer/employee of  
Respondents. Exhibits 1 and5 to Claimant’s Appx. Claimant invested $1 million into the 
business of Respondents in exchange for a one percent (1%) membership interest. That was 
parlayed into a three percent (3%) total interest in First 100, LLC, after  Respondents granted a 
two percent (2%) ownership interest to Mr. Farkas for his “services rendered in the VP of 
Finance position…” Exhibits 4 and 5 to Claimant’s Appx. It is not clear exactly when Claimant 
became a member of Respondents, due to a lack of dates on many of the exhibits, but it appears 
from Exhibit 1 to Claimant’s Appendix that Respondents were marketing membership interests 
in 2013. Claimants’ interest is acknowledged by Exhibit 5 to Claimant’s Appendix, an undated 
letter from Respondent 1st One Hundred, LLC. Exhibit 4 appears to conclusively establish that  
Claimant held 3% of Respondent First 100, LLC’s membership interests.

Likely in 2017, possibly on or about April 13, 2017, Respondents sent a memo to members 
describing litigation against a funding source, financial issues facing the companies, and 
recommending that members execute a redemption agreement due to the financial condition of 
Respondents. The memo included a draft of the "Membership Interest Redemption Agreement" 
(the "Redemption Agreement"), which was to be entered into by and between Claimant and 
Respondent 1st One Hundred Holdings, LLC.  Exhibit 6 to Appx.  The Redemption Agreement 
states, among other things, that Respondent 1st One Hundred Holdings, LLC "desires to redeem 
all of [Claimant's] membership interests in [Respondent 1st One Hundred Holdings, LLC], as 
well as any interest claimed in any and all subsidiaries…."  Id.   The memo also apparently 
accompanied the IRS Schedule K-1 to Claimant TCG/Farkas Funding, LLC, as a member of 
"First 100 Holdings, LLC", dated April 13, 2017. Exhibit 6 to Appx. This Schedule K-1 
appears to be conclusive evidence that Respondents considered Claimant to be a Member of 
"First 100 Holdings, LLC".

By letter dated May 2, 2017, to the law firm representing Respondents, Claimant’s counsel set 
forth objections to the proposed Redemption Agreement, concerns about the financial condition 
of Respondents, and requests for production of the company records of Respondents. Exhibit 9 
to Appx. This appears to be the initial request for company records that is the subject of the 
arbitration demand filed by Claimant.

Exhibit 11 to Claimant’s Appendix is the first response from counsel for the Respondents to the 
request to inspect the company records of the Respondents. It is dated June 6, 2017. 
Significantly, Respondents' counsel concedes in this letter that Claimant "holds a membership 
interest in 1st One Hundred Holdings, LLC."  Nevertheless, it is the first in a long and bad faith 
effort by Respondents to avoid their statutory and contractual duties to a member to produce 
requested records.

AA0007
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On September 13, 2019, counsel for Claimant made another request for company records to 
counsel for Respondents. Exhibit 13 to Appx.. On September 24, 2017, counsel for 
Respondents refused to honor the request to inspect based on a claim that counsel for Claimant 
might not represent Claimant, and based on the argument that the request was overbroad. 
Exhibit 14 to Appx. Nothing in this letter contends that the execution of the Redemption 
Agreement by Mr. Farkas for Claimant constituted a legitimate basis to refuse to make the 
records available for inspection. Thereafter, Claimant initiated this arbitration proceeding.

In the arbitration proceeding, Respondents make three arguments why they are not required to 
produce the records requested by Claimant. First, they argue that Claimant may not be a 
Member, and as such is only entitled to a refund of the investment money paid to the 
Respondents and no records. Second, they argue that the signing of a Redemption Agreement 
by Mathew Farkas releases the Respondents from any responsibility to make company records 
available to Claimant. Third, they argue that the request is overbroad and must be pared down. 
None of these arguments has merit, as discussed below.

The contention that Claimant is not a member of Respondents is belied by the records of the 
Respondents, as discussed above. The fact that Respondents believe that the Claimant signed a 
Redemption Agreement as a member of Respondents is an additional admission on the part of 
the Respondents that the Claimant is a Member of the Respondents with standing to inspect 
records of the Company.

It was not clear from the initial briefs and exhibits whether Mathew Farkas signed a 
Redemption Agreement for Claimant. However, the additional evidence clarified that he 
actually did sign such an Agreement. However, the evidence also shows two additional points 
that render the Redemption Agreement irrelevant for the purpose of this proceeding. First, the 
evidence shows that Mr. Farkas did not have authority to bind Claimant to the Redemption 
Agreement, as he did not seek and obtain the consent of Mr. Flatto. Exhibit 1 to Supplemental 
Declaration of Flatto attached to Claimant’s Response to Order Regarding Additional Evidence 
Request; Supplemental Declarations of Flatto and Farkas attached to Claimant’s Response to 
Order Regarding Additional Evidence Request.  And, Claimant notified Respondents via email 
on April 18, 2017, that Mr. Farkas did not have the authority to bind Claimant under the 
Redemption Agreement "unless and until approved by Adam Flatto."   Exhibit 12 to Claimant's 
Appx. at Ex. 3.

Secondly, the Respondents have yet to perform under the terms of the Redemption Agreement.  
Specifically, Section 2(a) requires payment by the Company to Redeemer.  Exhibit A to 
Supplemental Declaration of Jay Bloom in support of Respondents’ Arbitration Brief.  
Respondents concede that payment has not been made and that Respondents only “intend[]” to 
“fully perform” at a later point in time, when sufficient funds are available.  Supplemental 
Declaration of Jay Bloom in support of Respondents’ Arbitration Brief ¶ 16.  The Redemption 

--
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Agreement, therefore, does not constitute a basis for Respondents to refuse to make company 
records available to Claimant as a Member of Respondents.

Finally, Respondents contend the records inspection request is overbroad. NRS 86.241(2) 
applies to the fact of this case:

2.* * Each member of a limited-liability company is entitled to obtain from the 
company, from time to time upon reasonable demand, for any purpose 
reasonably related to the interest of the member as a member of the company:

      (a)* The records required to be maintained pursuant to subsection 1;

      (b)* True and, in light of the member’s stated purpose, complete records 
regarding the activities and the status of the business and financial condition of 
the company;

      (c)* Promptly after becoming available, a copy of the company’s federal, 
state and local income tax returns for each year;

      (d)* True and complete records regarding the amount of cash and a 
description and statement of the agreed value of any other property or services 
contributed by each member and which each member has agreed to contribute in 
the future, and the date on which each became a member; and

      (e)* Other records regarding the affairs of the company as is just and 
reasonable under the circumstances and in light of the member’s stated purpose 
for demanding such records.

The right to obtain records under this subsection includes, if reasonable, the right 
to make copies or abstracts by photographic, xerographic, electronic or other 
means.

 

The language of subsection (e) applies here and justifies Claimant requesting the records 
requested, even if not specifically listed in the previous sections. These include litigation 
information and insurance policies. Given the circumstances of the request – pending litigation 
by Respondents, representations by Respondents suggesting the viability of the companies is in 
jeopardy, and the proposal that members sign a Redemption Agreement that substantially 
compromises their rights as members – all justify the categories of information requested by 
Claimant. The fact that Respondents have spent more than three years resisting the requested 
inspection further supports the justification to examine all these categories of documents.
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Therefore, the Panel awards in favor of Claimant and against Respondents in all respects on the 
primary claim, and orders Respondents to forthwith, but no later than ten ( 10) calendar days 
from the date of this AWARD, make all the requested documents and information available 
from both companies to Claimant for inspection and copying. 

Claimant has requested an award of attorneys' fees and costs. Section 13.9 of the Operating 
Agreement at Exhibit 3 to the Appendix sets forth the following pertinent language: "The 
arbitrators shall make findings of fact and law in writing in support of his (sic) decision, and 
shall award reimbursement of attorney fees and other costs of arbitration to the prevailing party 
as the arbitrator deems appropriate." 

In this case, the Panel deems it appropriate to award all of the attorneys' fees requested by 
Claimant against Respondents, in the amount of $17,011.50. The Panel also deems it 
appropriate to award to Claimant and against Respondent all of the arbitration filing fee(s) paid 
by the Claimant, and all of the fees for the arbitration Panel paid by Claimant. The total sum of 
$23,975.00 shall be paid by Respondents to Claimant within ten (10) calendar days of the date 
ofthis AWARD. 

The administrative fees of the American Arbitration Association totaling $4,400.00 and the 

compensation of the arbitrators totaling $19,575.00 shall be borne Respondent. Therefore, 

Respondent shall reimburse Claimant the sum of $23,975.00, representing that portion of said 

fees and expenses in excess of the apportioned costs previously incurred by Claimant. 

This Award is in full settlement of all claims submitted to this arbitration. All claims not 
expressly granted herein are hereby denied. 

This A ward may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an 
original, and all of which shall constitute together one and the same instrument. 

Date: hilip J. Dabney, Esq., 
Arbitrator and Panel Chair 
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9-15-2020
A)~·L f3ak.-

Date: Nikki L. Baker, Esq., 
Arbitrator 

sHZf~ / 
Anthony J. DiRaimondo, Esq., 

Arbitrator 
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OPPC 
JOSEPH A. GUTIERREZ, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 9046 
DANIELLE J. BARRAZA, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 13822 
MAIER GUTIERREZ & ASSOCIATES 
8816 Spanish Ridge Avenue 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89148 
Telephone: (702) 629-7900 
Facsimile: (702) 629-7925 
E-mail: jag@mgalaw.com 
 djb@mgalaw.com 
 
Attorneys for Defendants First 100, LLC 
and 1st One Hundred Holdings, LLC 
 
 
 
 

DISTRICT COURT 
 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 
 
 
TGC FARKAS FUNDING, LLC, 
 

Plaintiff, 
 
vs. 
 
FIRST 100, LLC, a Nevada limited liability 
company; 1st ONE HUNDRED HOLDINGS, 
LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, 
 

Defendants. 

 
Case No: A-20-822273-C 
Dept.:      13 
 
DEFENDANTS’ LIMITED OPPOSITION 
TO MOTION TO CONFIRM 
ARBITRATION AWARD AND 
COUNTERMOTION TO MODIFY 
AWARD PER NRS 38.242 
 

 
 Defendants First 100, LLC and 1st One Hundred Holdings, LLC (collectively “First 100”), by 

and through their attorneys of record, the law firm MAIER GUTIERREZ & ASSOCIATES, hereby submit 

this limited opposition to the motion filed by plaintiff TGC FARKAS FUNDING, LLC (“Plaintiff” 

or “TGC”) to confirm the arbitration award, along with this countermotion to modify the award 

pursuant to NRS 38.242.  

 This limited opposition and countermotion is based on the following Memorandum of Points 

and Authorities, the papers and pleadings on file, and such argument as the Court deems appropriate 

at the hearing on this matter.  

/ / / 

Case Number: A-20-822273-C

Electronically Filed
10/15/2020 5:18 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES 

I. INTRODUCTION 

Plaintiff demanded access to First 100’s proprietary business records, arguing that its status as 

a purported member of First 100 substantiated the right to examine Plaintiff’s company records.   

The matter proceeded to the American Arbitration Association, where the Arbitration Panel 

determined that Plaintiff is required to “make all the requested documents and information available 

from both companies to Claimant [Plaintiff] for inspection and copying.”  See Mot. at Ex. 1.  

Plaintiff does not dispute the merits of the Arbitration Award.  However, Plaintiff seeks a 

modification of the award to clarify that pursuant to the plain language of First 100’s Operating 

Agreement and NRS 86.243(3)(b), the demanding member (Plaintiff) must first pay to First 100 the 

reasonable cost of obtaining and furnishing such records.  The company information Plaintiff has 

requested is not readily available, and First 100 will only be able to comply with the Award by 

retaining a third party to access and organize the company records.  Because First 100 has no funds 

to pay for such a service, First 100 is respectfully requesting that the Court modify the Arbitration 

Award to indicate that Plaintiff will be responsible for paying the reasonable costs associated with 

First 100 obtaining and furnishing the company records.   

II. LEGAL ANALYSIS 

Pursuant to NRS 38.242, “[u]pon motion made within 90 days after the movant receives notice 

of the arbitration award . . . the Court shall modify or correct the award if: . . . (c) The award is 

imperfect in a matter of form not affecting the merits of the decision on the claims submitted.”  NRS 

38.242 (emphasis added).  Notice of the Arbitration Award was provided on September 15, 2020.  

This motion to modify the Award is therefore timely.  

Here, Defendants submit a limited opposition to the Arbitration Award, as the Award is 

incomplete and “imperfect” in light of First 100’s practical inability to comply with the Award without 

the Plaintiff first paying to First 100 the reasonable costs of obtaining and furnishing the company 

records.   

Pursuant to NRS 86.243(3), the “district court may . . . order the company to furnish the 

demanding member or manager the records . . . on the condition that the demanding member or 
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manager first pay to the company the reasonable cost of obtaining and furnishing such records and on 

such other conditions as the district court deems appropriate.”  

Here, First 100 has no funds and no reasonable means of accessing and furnishing the company 

records to Plaintiff without retaining a third party to accomplish that.  See Exhibit A, Declaration of 

Jay Bloom.  As such, if the Court is inclined to confirm the Arbitration Award, it should also modify 

the Award to clarify that Plaintiff must first pay to First 100 the reasonable costs associated with First 

100 obtaining and furnishing all of the company records to be produced to Plaintiff.  

Indeed, the parties have already agreed to such an arrangement pursuant to the First 100 

Operating Agreement (See Mot. at Ex. 2, p. 21) which states that such company documents shall be 

provided “at the Member’s expense.”  

 This modification request does not go to the merits, as First 100 has no dispute with being 

compelled to produce the company records, but merely goes to procedurally how that production will 

work, as First 100 has no reasonable means of complying with the Award unless and until the Plaintiff 

abides by its obligations agreed to in the Operating Agreement and actually pays for First 100 to obtain 

and furnish the company records.  

III. CONCLUSION 

Based on the foregoing, First 100 opposes the motion to confirm the Arbitration Award in a 

limited capacity, and asks that the Court modify the Award to clarify that Plaintiff are first required 

to pay to First 100 the reasonable costs associated with obtaining and furnishing the company records, 

and then First 100 shall provide the company records.  

DATED this 15th day of October, 2020. 

 Respectfully submitted, 
 
MAIER GUTIERREZ & ASSOCIATES 

___/s/ Danielle J. Barraza________________ 
JOSEPH A. GUTIERREZ, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 9046 
DANIELLE J. BARRAZA, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 13822 
8816 Spanish Ridge Avenue 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89148 
Attorneys for First 100, LLC and 1st One 
Hundred Holdings, LLC 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
 

 Pursuant to Administrative Order 14-2, a copy of the DEFENDANTS’ LIMITED 

OPPOSITION TO MOTION TO CONFIRM ARBITRATION AWARD AND 

COUNTERMOTION TO MODIFY AWARD PER NRS 38.242 was electronically filed on the 

15th day of October, 2020, and served through the Notice of Electronic Filing automatically 

generated by the Court's facilities to those parties listed on the Court's Master Service List as 

follows: 

Erika P. Turner, Esq. 
GARMAN TURNER GORDON, LLP 

650 White Drive, Suite 100 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89119 

Attorneys for TGC Farkas Funding LLC 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 
 

 

 

 

  

  

  

  

/s/ Natalie Vazquez 
An Employee of MAIER GUTIERREZ & ASSOCIATES 
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DECLARATION OF JAY BLOOM 

 
 I, JAY BLOOM (“Declarant”), declare as follows:  

1. This declaration is made in support of First 100, LLC and 1st One Hundred Holdings, 

LLC’s limited opposition to the motion to confirm arbitration and the countermotion to modify the 

arbitration award per NRS 38.242.  

2. I am over the age of eighteen (18) and I have personal knowledge of all matters set 

forth herein.  If called to do so, I would competently and truthfully testify to all matters set forth 

herein, except for those matters stated to be based upon information and belief. 

3. I make this declaration in my capacity as the principal, founding director, and chairman 

of the Board of Directors of First 100, LLC and 1st One Hundred Holdings, LLC (collectively referred 

to as “First 100”). 

4. First 100 understands that the Arbitration Panel has ordered First 100 to “make all the 

requested documents and information available from both companies to Claimant [Plaintiff] for 

inspection and copying.”  However, First 100 has no funds to effectuate this goal.  Nor does First 100 

have employees available to search through the records.  The only way for First 100 to obtain the 

requested documents and information will be to retain a third-party to obtain and furnish the records 

that First 100 has been compelled to produce.  

5. First 100 therefore respectfully requests that the Court order the Plaintiffs to first pay 

the reasonable costs associated with obtaining and furnishing the company records, and then such 

records will be provided. 

I declare under penalty of perjury of the laws of the United States of America and the State of 

Nevada that the foregoing is true and correct. 

 DATED this ___ day of October, 2020 

  

 
 
 
 
 

 

JAY BLOOM  

15th
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RPLY 
GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP 
ERIKA PIKE TURNER 
Nevada Bar No. 6454 
Email: eturner@gtg.legal 
7251 Amigo Street, Suite 210 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89119 
Tel: (725) 777-3000 
Fax: (725) 777-3112 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 
 

DISTRICT COURT 
 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 
 
TGC/FARKAS FUNDING, LLC, 
 
                          Plaintiff, 
 
vs. 
 
FIRST 100, LLC, a Nevada Limited Liability
Company; FIRST ONE HUNDRED
HOLDINGS, LLC, a Nevada limited liability
company aka 1st ONE HUNDRED HOLDINGS
LLC, a Nevada Limited Liability Company, 
 

   Defendants. 

CASE NO.  A-20-822273-C 
DEPT. 13  
 
 
PLAINTIFF’S REPLY TO DEFENDANTS’ 
LIMITED OPPOSITION 
TO MOTION TO CONFIRM 
ARBITRATION AWARD AND 
OPPOSITION TO DEFENDANTS’ 
COUNTERMOTION TO MODIFY 
AWARD PER NRS 38.242  
 
Hearing Date: November 2, 2020 
Hearing Time: 9:00am 
 

 

Plaintiff TGC/FARKAS FUNDING, LLC (“Plaintiff”), through counsel, Garman Turner 

Gordon LLP, submits this Reply to Defendants’ Limited Opposition to Motion to Confirm 

Arbitration Award and Opposition to Defendants’ Countermotion to Modify Award Per NRS 

38.242. 

This Opposition and Reply is based upon the following Memorandum of Points and 

Authorities, the pleadings and papers on file, and any oral argument permitted by the Court at a 

hearing of the matter. 

… 

… 

… 

… 

Case Number: A-20-822273-C

Electronically Filed
10/26/2020 5:31 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES 

I 

INTRODUCTION 

 By their Countermotion, Defendants improperly ask this Court to substantively modify the 

Final Award by inserting a requirement that Plaintiff pays Defendants up-front, an unspecified 

amount as a condition precedent for assembling business records they have been ordered to 

produce to Plaintiff—their member. Plaintiffs’ request seeks relief contrary to controlling law and 

the parties’ arbitration agreement. Further, Defendants never raised this issue in the Arbitration, 

thereby waiving it.  Quite simply, Nevada law does not permit Defendants to go through the 

arbitration process only to assert a new claim to the Court post-award.   The Arbitrators’ order to 

produce the requested documents must be confirmed as-is.  

Notably, Defendants have improperly resisted their obligation to provide the requested 

information to Plaintiff for three years. The Final Award issued by the 3-arbitrator panel should 

be confirmed and the meritless Countermotion, which is just another tactic to delay fulfillment of 

their production obligations, should be denied.  

II. 

LEGAL ARGUMENT. 

A. There are no grounds for modification of the award. 

The district court’s power of review of an arbitration award is limited to the statutory 

grounds provided in the Uniform Arbitration Act. Mausbach v. Lemke, 110 Nev. 37, 42, 866 P.2d 

1146, 1149–50 (1994). Specifically, NRS 38.242 prescribes that a district court may modify or 

correct an award in one of three circumstances, none of which are present here:.   
(1) if the arbitrator made an “evident mathematical miscalculation or a mistake in 
the description of a person, thing or property in the award”;  
(2) if the “arbitrator has made an award on a claim not submitted to the arbitrator”; 
or  
(3) if the award “is imperfect in a matter of form” that does not affect the merits of 
the decision.  

Manor Health Care Ctr., Inc. v. Monsour, 126 Nev. 735, 367 P.3d 796 (2010) (quoting NRS 

38.242(1)). 
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In the Final Award, pursuant to the relevant operating agreement and NRS 86.241, the 

Arbitrators, in addition to awarding Plaintiff a monetary judgment, ordered that Defendants “make 

all the requested documents and information available from both companies to [Plaintiff] for 

inspection and copying.” Motion at Exhibit 1, p.5. Defendants now request that the Court modify 

the Final Award to require that Plaintiff pay a third-party to assemble and produce the requested 

“documents and information.” While Defendants claim that the “modification” corrects an 

“imperfection in a matter of form” of the award—it does not—it actually alters the merits of the 

decision, supplants the Arbitrators’ discretion, and imposes financial conditions upon Plaintiff, all 

of which are strictly prohibited by NRS 38.242.  

Specifically, no where in the Final Award did the Arbitrators condition the inspection of 

records upon Plaintiff’s payment of “fees and costs.” By inserting such a condition, the Court 

would change the substance of the award and create a financial obligation by Plaintiff to 

Defendants. While the Arbitrators may have had the discretion to condition the inspection upon 

the payment of costs, they chose not to do so as evidenced by the fact that there is no such 

requirement in the Final Order. Defendants cannot now seek to modify the Final Order to include 

relief that was not provided—or requested.  

B. The Court Lacks Jurisdiction to Consider the Dispute Over Defendants’ Demand 
for Pre-Payment of Production Costs. 

Defendants’ modification request is an improper attempt to have this Court consider and 

resolve a substantive argument about the parties’ rights and obligations under the First Amended 

Operating Agreement of First 100, LLC (“Operating Agreement”). See Countermotion at 3 (“the 

parties have already agreed to such an arrangement pursuant to the First 100 Operating 

Agreement.”). The Operating Agreement requires that “Any dispute, controversy or claim arising 

out of or relating to this Agreement or the breach thereof shall solely be settled by arbitration. 

Motion at Ex. 2 (Operating Agreement) § 13.9. It further states that “[t]he parties specifically 

waive any rights to litigation as a dispute resolution methodology and further divest any Court of 

jurisdiction to determine disputes between the parties to this Agreement.” Id. 
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The proper forum for Defendants to argue that the Operating Agreement or NRS 86.243 

contemplated and required Plaintiff’s pre-payment for producing the requested documents was the 

Arbitration, not in response to a motion before this Court to confirm the Final Award. Not only 

does the Court lack the jurisdiction to make any such determination, but Defendants never raised 

a claim for expenses to be awarded at any time in the Arbitration.  See Ex. 1 (Final Award) to 

Motion at 3 (list of all defenses raised by Defendants in the Arbitration did not include pre-payment 

argument).  Defendant’s Countermotion is an improper request for this Court to reevaluate the 

Arbitrators’ decision concerning the parties’ contractual rights and obligations.  

In fact, NRS 86.243(3) provides that  the Arbitrators1 “may” in their “discretion, prescribe 

any limitations or conditions with reference to the obtaining or examining of records” or “order 

the company to furnish to the demanding member or manager the records . . . on the condition that 

the demanding member or manager first pay to the company the reasonable cost of obtaining and 

furnishing such records and on such other conditions as the [Arbitrators] deems appropriate.” NRS 

86.243(3)(b), (c).  Plainly, the Arbitrators “may” impose conditions that they found appropriate, 

including an award of fees and costs. They, however, did not do so. The Countermotion therefore 

requests that the Court impose a condition that was subject to the exclusive discretion of the 

Arbitrators. 

As the Court’s subject matter jurisdiction does not include altering the substance of the 

arbitration award, it lacks the jurisdiction to impose a financial condition as a condition precedent 

to the inspection of records. New Shy Clown Casino, Inc. v. Baldwin, 103 Nev. 269, 271, 737 P.2d 

524, 525–26 (1987). Defendants request that the Court substitute its discretion for that of the 

Arbitrators lacks a basis in fact or law. 

C. Defendants Failed to Seek Relief from the Arbitrators. 

As discussed, the Operating Agreement required the dispute concerning pre-payment to 

have been addressed in Arbitration. Defendants failed to raise the issue in Arbitration. Moreover, 

to the extent they seek reformation of the Final Award on a theory that it was merely an oversight 

 
1 As the dispute was subject to arbitration, the Arbitrators had the rights conferred to the district court in NRS 86.243. 
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by the panel not to include such a finding, NRS 38.237 requires that a petition be made to the 

Arbitrators to clarify the Final Award. 

Defendants are also now time-barred from seeking clarification of the award from the 

Arbitrators. NRS 38.237(2) provides that a party must move for clarification from the Arbitrators 

within twenty (20) days of receiving notice of the Final Award. Defendants never moved for an 

order of clarification. As more than twenty (20) days has elapsed since the issuance of the Final 

Award, Defendants have waived their ability to do so. Defendants’ Countermotion cannot cure 

their failure to petition the panel for clarification and, as presented to this Court, is an improper 

attempt to litigate an issue they failed to raise. 

III. 

CONCLUSION 

Based upon the foregoing, Plaintiff respectfully requests the Court confirm the Final Award 

and deny Defendants’ Countermotion. 

DATED this      day of October, 2020.  

   GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP 

 
  /s/ Erika Pike Turner      
ERIKA PIKE TURNER 
Nevada Bar No. 6454 
7251 Amigo Street, Suite 210 
Tel: (725) 777-3000 
Fax: (725) 777-3112  
Attorneys for Plaintiff   
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

The undersigned, hereby certifies that on the 26th day of October, 2020, he served a copy 

of the PLAINTIFF’S REPLY/OPPOSITION TO DEFENDANTS’ LIMITED OPPOSITION 

TO MOTION TO CONFIRM ARBITRATION AWARD AND COUNTERMOTION TO 

MODIFY AWARD PER NRS 38.242, by electronic service in accordance with Administrative 

Order 14.2, to all interested parties, through the Court’s Odyssey E-File & Serve system addressed 

to: 

 
Joseph A. Gutierrez, Esq.  
Danielle J. Barraza, Esq.  
MAIER GUTIERREZ & ASSOCIATES  
8816 Spanish Ridge Avenue 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89148 
Email: jag@mgalaw.com 
           djb@mgalaw.com 
Attorneys for Defendants 
 
 
 

 
 /s/ Dylan T. Ciciliano 
An Employee of  
GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP
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ORDR 
GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP 
ERIKA PIKE TURNER 
Nevada Bar No. 6454 
Email: eturner@gtg.legal 
7251 Amigo Street, Suite 210 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89119 
Tel: (725) 777-3000 
Fax: (725) 777-3112 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 
 

DISTRICT COURT 
 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 
 
TGC/FARKAS FUNDING, LLC, 
 
                          Plaintiff, 
 
vs. 
 
FIRST 100, LLC, a Nevada Limited Liability 
Company; FIRST ONE HUNDRED 
HOLDINGS, LLC, a Nevada limited liability 
company aka 1st ONE HUNDRED HOLDINGS 
LLC, a Nevada Limited Liability Company, 
 

   Defendants. 

CASE NO.  A-20-822273-C 
DEPT. 13  
 
 
ORDER GRANTING PLAINTIFF’S 
MOTION TO CONFIRM ARBITRATION 
AWARD AND DENYING DEFENDANTS’ 
COUNTERMOTION TO MODIFY 
AWARD; AND JUDGMENT  
 
Date of Hearing: November 2, 2020 
Time of Hearing: 9:00 a.m. 
 

 

On October 1, 2020, Plaintiff TGC/FARKAS FUNDING, LLC (“Plaintiff”) filed the 

Motion to Confirm Arbitration Award (the “Motion”).  Defendants First 100, LLC and First One 

Hundred Holdings, LLC (“Defendants”) filed their Limited Opposition to Confirm Arbitration 

Award (the “Opposition”) and Countermotion to Modify Award Per NRS 38.242 (the 

“Countermotion”) on October 15, 2020, and Plaintiff filed its Reply to Defendants’ Limited 

Opposition to Confirm Arbitration Award and Countermotion to Modify Award Per NRS 38.242  

(the “Reply”) on October 26, 2020.  This Court held a hearing on November 2, 2020. 

The Court, having considered the Motion, the Opposition and Countermotion, and the 

Reply, as well as the oral argument of counsel, finds and concludes as follows: 

On January 7, 2020, Plaintiff initiated an arbitration with the American Arbitration 

Association against Defendants relating to whether Plaintiff was entitled to the production and 

examination of Defendants’ records. The requested records were set forth in Exhibit 13 to 

Case Number: A-20-822273-C

Electronically Filed
11/17/2020 11:53 AM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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2 

Claimant’s Appendix to Claimant’s Arbitration Brief. 

On September 15, 2020, the Arbitration Panel issued its Decision and Award of Arbitration 

Panel (the “Final Award”) (1) ordering that Defendants “forthwith, but no later than ten (10) 

calendar days from the date of [the Final Award], make all the requested documents and 

information available from both companies to [Plaintiff] for inspection and copying,” and (2) 

awarding attorneys’ fees and arbitration panel fees to Plaintiff in the total sum of $23,975.00, 

which sum was also to be paid within ten (10) calendar days from the date of the Final Award. 

Plaintiff served Defendants with this action and Motion on October 7 and October 8, 2020. 

Defendants are both Nevada limited-liability companies and subject to the Court’s 

jurisdiction.   

NRS 38.239 authorizes an applicant to move for confirmation of a final arbitration 

decision.  The plain language of the statute requires this Court to confirm the Final Award unless 

it is modified, corrected, or vacated.  Furthermore, Defendants do not oppose the confirmation of 

the Final Award.  

Instead, Defendants’ Countermotion requests that the Court modify the Final Award to 

require Plaintiff to pay, in advance, fees and costs associated with Defendants’ production of the 

requested company records.  Defendants contend that the requested modification is permitted 

under NS 38.242(1)(c). 

NRS 38.242 allows an award to be modified or corrected, but only if: 
 
(a) There was an evident mathematical miscalculation or an evident mistake in 
the description of a person, thing or property referred to in the award; 
(b) The arbitrator has made an award on a claim not submitted to the arbitrator 
and the award may be corrected without affecting the merits of the decision upon 
the claims submitted; or 
(c) The award is imperfect in a matter of form not affecting the merits of the 
decision on the claims submitted. 

NRS 38.242(1).  The Court finds that none of these situations apply here. 

 The Court finds that the modification requested in the Countermotion is not a mere 

correction of an “imperfection in a matter of form,” but instead seeks to alter the merits of the Final 

Award to award Defendants relief that was absent from the Final Award.   
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Based upon the foregoing, and good cause appearing therefore, 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Plaintiff’s Motion to Confirm Arbitration Award is 

GRANTED. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Plaintiff 

TGC/FARKAS FUNDING, LLC, shall have JUDGMENT jointly and severally against 

Defendants FIRST 100, LLC, and FIRST ONE HUNDRED HOLDINGS, LLC, aka 1st ONE 

HUNDRED HOLDINGS, LLC, in the amount of TWENTY-THREE THOUSAND, NINE 

HUNDRED AND SEVENTY-FIVE DOLLARS ($23,975.00), plus statutory interest, to be 

adjusted as set forth in NRS 17.130, which as of the date of the entry of Judgment was $3.45 per 

day, from October 8, 2020, until this Judgment is satisfied. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendants shall 

make all the requested documents and information available from both companies to Plaintiff for 

inspection and copying, as set forth in the Final Award and Exhibit 13 to Claimant’s Appendix to 

Claimant’s Arbitration Brief. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendants’ Countermotion to Modify Award Per 

NRS 38.242 is DENIED. 

IT IS SO ORDERED this _____ day of ____________________, 2020.  
 
 

      
     DISTRICT JUDGE  

17 November
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Order Granting Plaintiff’s Motion to Confirm Arbitration Award and Denying Defendants’ 
Countermotion to Modify Award; and Judgment 

A-20-822273-C 
 

Respectfully submitted: 

GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP 
 
 /s/ Dylan T. Ciciliano    
ERIKA PIKE TURNER 
Nevada Bar No. 6454 
DYLAN T. CICILIANO 
Nevada Bar No. 12348 
7251 Amigo Street, Suite 210 
Tel: (725) 777-3000 
Fax: (725) 777-3112  
Attorneys for Plaintiff 

Approved as to form and content: 

MAIER GUTIERREZ & ASSOCIATES 
 
/s/ Danielle J. Barraza                           
JOSEPH A. GUTIERREZ  
Nevada Bar No. 9046 
DANIELLE J. BARRAZA  
Nevada Bar No. 13822 
8816 Spanish Ridge Avenue 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89148 
Attorneys for Defendants 
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From: Danielle Barraza <djb@mgalaw.com>
Sent: Thursday, November 12, 2020 11:40 AM
To: Dylan Ciciliano
Cc: Erika Turner; Joseph Gutierrez; Max Erwin
Subject: RE: Order Re: Motion to Confirm

Yes, you can affix my e-signature on this version. 

Thanks, 

Danielle J. Barraza | Associate 
MAIER GUTIERREZ & ASSOCIATES 
8816 Spanish Ridge Avenue 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89148 
Tel: 702.629.7900 | Fax: 702.629.7925 
djb@mgalaw.com | www.mgalaw.com 

From: Dylan Ciciliano <dciciliano@Gtg.legal>  
Sent: Thursday, November 12, 2020 11:27 AM 
To: Danielle Barraza <djb@mgalaw.com> 
Cc: Erika Turner <eturner@Gtg.legal>; Joseph Gutierrez <jag@mgalaw.com>; Max Erwin <MErwin@Gtg.legal> 
Subject: RE: Order Re: Motion to Confirm 

Danielle, 

I accepted your redline changes. Can I affix your signature? 

Dylan T. Ciciliano, Esq. 

Attorney 

Phone: 725 777 3000  |  Fax: 725 777 3112 

GARMAN  |  TURNER  |  GORDON 
7251 AMIGO STREET, SUITE 210 
LAS VEGAS, NV 89119 

 Visit us online at www.gtg.legal  

From: Danielle Barraza <djb@mgalaw.com>  
Sent: Thursday, November 12, 2020 11:12 AM 
To: Dylan Ciciliano <dciciliano@Gtg.legal> 
Cc: Erika Turner <eturner@Gtg.legal>; Joseph Gutierrez <jag@mgalaw.com>; Max Erwin <MErwin@Gtg.legal> 
Subject: RE: Order Re: Motion to Confirm 
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Dylan, I’m not seeing that the Court actually made the majority of the findings set forth in the drafted order.  In 
any event, we have kept most of the findings in-tact and made only a few redlines in an effort to come to an 
agreement on this.  See attached. 
 
Thank you, 
 
 
Danielle J. Barraza | Associate 
MAIER GUTIERREZ & ASSOCIATES 
8816 Spanish Ridge Avenue 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89148 
Tel: 702.629.7900 | Fax: 702.629.7925 
djb@mgalaw.com | www.mgalaw.com 
 
From: Dylan Ciciliano <dciciliano@Gtg.legal>  
Sent: Thursday, November 12, 2020 10:15 AM 
To: Danielle Barraza <djb@mgalaw.com> 
Cc: Erika Turner <eturner@Gtg.legal>; Joseph Gutierrez <jag@mgalaw.com>; Max Erwin <MErwin@Gtg.legal> 
Subject: FW: Order Re: Motion to Confirm 
 
Danielle, 
 
I wanted to follow up on the attached. We intend on submitting the order to the Court by noon tomorrow. 
 
Thank you, 
 
Dylan 

Dylan T. Ciciliano, Esq. 

Attorney 
 
Phone: 725 777 3000  |  Fax: 725 777 3112 

GARMAN  |  TURNER  |  GORDON 
7251 AMIGO STREET, SUITE 210 
LAS VEGAS, NV 89119 

 Visit us online at www.gtg.legal  

 

From: Dylan Ciciliano  
Sent: Monday, November 9, 2020 9:24 PM 
To: Danielle Barraza <djb@mgalaw.com> 
Cc: Erika Turner <eturner@Gtg.legal>; jag@mgalaw.com; Max Erwin <MErwin@Gtg.legal> 
Subject: Order Re: Motion to Confirm 
 
Danielle, 
 
Attached is the draft order on Plaintiff TGC/FARKAS FUNDING, LLC’s Motion to Confirm Arbitration Award. Please let me 
know if I may affix your signature. 
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Thank you, 
 
Dylan 
 

Dylan T. Ciciliano, Esq. 

Attorney 
 
Phone: 725 777 3000  |  Fax: 725 777 3112 

GARMAN  |  TURNER  |  GORDON 
7251 AMIGO STREET, SUITE 210 
LAS VEGAS, NV 89119 

 Visit us online at www.gtg.legal  

 
 
The information contained in this transmission may contain privileged and confidential information. It is intended only 
for the use of the person(s) named above. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any review, 
dissemination, distribution or duplication of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you are not the intended 
recipient, please contact the sender by reply email and destroy all copies of the original message.  
 
The information contained in this transmission may contain privileged and confidential information. It is intended only 
for the use of the person(s) named above. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any review, 
dissemination, distribution or duplication of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you are not the intended 
recipient, please contact the sender by reply email and destroy all copies of the original message.  
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NEOJ 
GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP 
ERIKA PIKE TURNER 
Nevada Bar No. 6454 
Email: eturner@gtg.legal 
DYLAN T. CICILIANO 
Nevada Bar. No. 12348 
Email: dciciliano@gtg.legal 
7251 Amigo Street, Suite 210 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89119 
Tel: (725) 777-3000 
Fax: (725) 777-3112 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 
 

DISTRICT COURT 
 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 
 
TGC/FARKAS FUNDING, LLC, 
 
                          Plaintiff, 
 
vs. 
 
FIRST 100, LLC, a Nevada Limited Liability 
Company; FIRST ONE HUNDRED 
HOLDINGS, LLC, a Nevada limited liability 
company aka 1st ONE HUNDRED HOLDINGS 
LLC, a Nevada Limited Liability Company, 
 

   Defendants. 

CASE NO.  A-20-822273-C 
DEPT. 13  
 
 
NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER 
GRANTING PLAINTIFF'S MOTION TO 
CONFIRM ARBITRATION AWARD AND 
DENYING DEFENDANTS' 
COUNTERMOTION TO MODIFY 
AWARD; AND JUDGMENT 
 

 
NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER GRANTING PLAINTIFF'S MOTION TO CONFIRM 

ARBITRATION AWARD AND DENYING DEFENDANTS' COUNTERMOTION TO 
MODIFY AWARD; AND JUDGMENT 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that an Order Granting Plaintiff's Motion to Confirm Arbitration 

Award and Denying Defendants' Countermotion to Modify Award; and Judgment, a copy of which 

is attached hereto, was entered in the above-captioned case on the 17th day of November, 2020. 

DATED this 17th day of November, 2020.  

   GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP 

 
  /s/ Erika Pike Turner      
ERIKA PIKE TURNER (NV Bar No. 6454) 
DYLAN T. CICILIANO (NV Bar. No. 12348) 
7251 Amigo Street, Suite 210 
Tel: (725) 777-3000 
Fax: (725) 777-3112  
Attorneys for Plaintiff   

Case Number: A-20-822273-C

Electronically Filed
11/17/2020 1:55 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

The undersigned, hereby certifies that on the 17th day of November, 2020, he served a copy 

of the NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER GRANTING PLAINTIFF'S MOTION TO 

CONFIRM ARBITRATION AWARD AND DENYING DEFENDANTS' 

COUNTERMOTION TO MODIFY AWARD; AND JUDGMENT, by electronic service in 

accordance with Administrative Order 14.2, to all interested parties, through the Court’s Odyssey 

E-File & Serve system addressed to: 

Joseph A. Gutierrez, Esq.  
Danielle J. Barraza, Esq.  
MAIER GUTIERREZ & ASSOCIATES  
8816 Spanish Ridge Avenue 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89148 
Email: jag@mgalaw.com 
           djb@mgalaw.com 
Attorneys for Defendants 
 
 
 

 
 /s/ Max Erwin 
An Employee of  
GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP
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ORDR 
GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP 
ERIKA PIKE TURNER 
Nevada Bar No. 6454 
Email: eturner@gtg.legal 
7251 Amigo Street, Suite 210 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89119 
Tel: (725) 777-3000 
Fax: (725) 777-3112 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 
 

DISTRICT COURT 
 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 
 
TGC/FARKAS FUNDING, LLC, 
 
                          Plaintiff, 
 
vs. 
 
FIRST 100, LLC, a Nevada Limited Liability 
Company; FIRST ONE HUNDRED 
HOLDINGS, LLC, a Nevada limited liability 
company aka 1st ONE HUNDRED HOLDINGS 
LLC, a Nevada Limited Liability Company, 
 

   Defendants. 

CASE NO.  A-20-822273-C 
DEPT. 13  
 
 
ORDER GRANTING PLAINTIFF’S 
MOTION TO CONFIRM ARBITRATION 
AWARD AND DENYING DEFENDANTS’ 
COUNTERMOTION TO MODIFY 
AWARD; AND JUDGMENT  
 
Date of Hearing: November 2, 2020 
Time of Hearing: 9:00 a.m. 
 

 

On October 1, 2020, Plaintiff TGC/FARKAS FUNDING, LLC (“Plaintiff”) filed the 

Motion to Confirm Arbitration Award (the “Motion”).  Defendants First 100, LLC and First One 

Hundred Holdings, LLC (“Defendants”) filed their Limited Opposition to Confirm Arbitration 

Award (the “Opposition”) and Countermotion to Modify Award Per NRS 38.242 (the 

“Countermotion”) on October 15, 2020, and Plaintiff filed its Reply to Defendants’ Limited 

Opposition to Confirm Arbitration Award and Countermotion to Modify Award Per NRS 38.242  

(the “Reply”) on October 26, 2020.  This Court held a hearing on November 2, 2020. 

The Court, having considered the Motion, the Opposition and Countermotion, and the 

Reply, as well as the oral argument of counsel, finds and concludes as follows: 

On January 7, 2020, Plaintiff initiated an arbitration with the American Arbitration 

Association against Defendants relating to whether Plaintiff was entitled to the production and 

examination of Defendants’ records. The requested records were set forth in Exhibit 13 to 

Case Number: A-20-822273-C

Electronically Filed
11/17/2020 11:53 AM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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Claimant’s Appendix to Claimant’s Arbitration Brief. 

On September 15, 2020, the Arbitration Panel issued its Decision and Award of Arbitration 

Panel (the “Final Award”) (1) ordering that Defendants “forthwith, but no later than ten (10) 

calendar days from the date of [the Final Award], make all the requested documents and 

information available from both companies to [Plaintiff] for inspection and copying,” and (2) 

awarding attorneys’ fees and arbitration panel fees to Plaintiff in the total sum of $23,975.00, 

which sum was also to be paid within ten (10) calendar days from the date of the Final Award. 

Plaintiff served Defendants with this action and Motion on October 7 and October 8, 2020. 

Defendants are both Nevada limited-liability companies and subject to the Court’s 

jurisdiction.   

NRS 38.239 authorizes an applicant to move for confirmation of a final arbitration 

decision.  The plain language of the statute requires this Court to confirm the Final Award unless 

it is modified, corrected, or vacated.  Furthermore, Defendants do not oppose the confirmation of 

the Final Award.  

Instead, Defendants’ Countermotion requests that the Court modify the Final Award to 

require Plaintiff to pay, in advance, fees and costs associated with Defendants’ production of the 

requested company records.  Defendants contend that the requested modification is permitted 

under NS 38.242(1)(c). 

NRS 38.242 allows an award to be modified or corrected, but only if: 
 
(a) There was an evident mathematical miscalculation or an evident mistake in 
the description of a person, thing or property referred to in the award; 
(b) The arbitrator has made an award on a claim not submitted to the arbitrator 
and the award may be corrected without affecting the merits of the decision upon 
the claims submitted; or 
(c) The award is imperfect in a matter of form not affecting the merits of the 
decision on the claims submitted. 

NRS 38.242(1).  The Court finds that none of these situations apply here. 

 The Court finds that the modification requested in the Countermotion is not a mere 

correction of an “imperfection in a matter of form,” but instead seeks to alter the merits of the Final 

Award to award Defendants relief that was absent from the Final Award.   
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Based upon the foregoing, and good cause appearing therefore, 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Plaintiff’s Motion to Confirm Arbitration Award is 

GRANTED. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Plaintiff 

TGC/FARKAS FUNDING, LLC, shall have JUDGMENT jointly and severally against 

Defendants FIRST 100, LLC, and FIRST ONE HUNDRED HOLDINGS, LLC, aka 1st ONE 

HUNDRED HOLDINGS, LLC, in the amount of TWENTY-THREE THOUSAND, NINE 

HUNDRED AND SEVENTY-FIVE DOLLARS ($23,975.00), plus statutory interest, to be 

adjusted as set forth in NRS 17.130, which as of the date of the entry of Judgment was $3.45 per 

day, from October 8, 2020, until this Judgment is satisfied. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendants shall 

make all the requested documents and information available from both companies to Plaintiff for 

inspection and copying, as set forth in the Final Award and Exhibit 13 to Claimant’s Appendix to 

Claimant’s Arbitration Brief. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendants’ Countermotion to Modify Award Per 

NRS 38.242 is DENIED. 

IT IS SO ORDERED this _____ day of ____________________, 2020.  
 
 

      
     DISTRICT JUDGE  

17 November
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Order Granting Plaintiff’s Motion to Confirm Arbitration Award and Denying Defendants’ 
Countermotion to Modify Award; and Judgment 

A-20-822273-C 
 

Respectfully submitted: 

GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP 
 
 /s/ Dylan T. Ciciliano    
ERIKA PIKE TURNER 
Nevada Bar No. 6454 
DYLAN T. CICILIANO 
Nevada Bar No. 12348 
7251 Amigo Street, Suite 210 
Tel: (725) 777-3000 
Fax: (725) 777-3112  
Attorneys for Plaintiff 

Approved as to form and content: 

MAIER GUTIERREZ & ASSOCIATES 
 
/s/ Danielle J. Barraza                           
JOSEPH A. GUTIERREZ  
Nevada Bar No. 9046 
DANIELLE J. BARRAZA  
Nevada Bar No. 13822 
8816 Spanish Ridge Avenue 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89148 
Attorneys for Defendants 
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From: Danielle Barraza <djb@mgalaw.com>
Sent: Thursday, November 12, 2020 11:40 AM
To: Dylan Ciciliano
Cc: Erika Turner; Joseph Gutierrez; Max Erwin
Subject: RE: Order Re: Motion to Confirm

Yes, you can affix my e-signature on this version. 

Thanks, 

Danielle J. Barraza | Associate 
MAIER GUTIERREZ & ASSOCIATES 
8816 Spanish Ridge Avenue 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89148 
Tel: 702.629.7900 | Fax: 702.629.7925 
djb@mgalaw.com | www.mgalaw.com 

From: Dylan Ciciliano <dciciliano@Gtg.legal>  
Sent: Thursday, November 12, 2020 11:27 AM 
To: Danielle Barraza <djb@mgalaw.com> 
Cc: Erika Turner <eturner@Gtg.legal>; Joseph Gutierrez <jag@mgalaw.com>; Max Erwin <MErwin@Gtg.legal> 
Subject: RE: Order Re: Motion to Confirm 

Danielle, 

I accepted your redline changes. Can I affix your signature? 

Dylan T. Ciciliano, Esq. 

Attorney 

Phone: 725 777 3000  |  Fax: 725 777 3112 

GARMAN  |  TURNER  |  GORDON 
7251 AMIGO STREET, SUITE 210 
LAS VEGAS, NV 89119 

 Visit us online at www.gtg.legal  

From: Danielle Barraza <djb@mgalaw.com>  
Sent: Thursday, November 12, 2020 11:12 AM 
To: Dylan Ciciliano <dciciliano@Gtg.legal> 
Cc: Erika Turner <eturner@Gtg.legal>; Joseph Gutierrez <jag@mgalaw.com>; Max Erwin <MErwin@Gtg.legal> 
Subject: RE: Order Re: Motion to Confirm 
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Dylan, I’m not seeing that the Court actually made the majority of the findings set forth in the drafted order.  In 
any event, we have kept most of the findings in-tact and made only a few redlines in an effort to come to an 
agreement on this.  See attached. 
 
Thank you, 
 
 
Danielle J. Barraza | Associate 
MAIER GUTIERREZ & ASSOCIATES 
8816 Spanish Ridge Avenue 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89148 
Tel: 702.629.7900 | Fax: 702.629.7925 
djb@mgalaw.com | www.mgalaw.com 
 
From: Dylan Ciciliano <dciciliano@Gtg.legal>  
Sent: Thursday, November 12, 2020 10:15 AM 
To: Danielle Barraza <djb@mgalaw.com> 
Cc: Erika Turner <eturner@Gtg.legal>; Joseph Gutierrez <jag@mgalaw.com>; Max Erwin <MErwin@Gtg.legal> 
Subject: FW: Order Re: Motion to Confirm 
 
Danielle, 
 
I wanted to follow up on the attached. We intend on submitting the order to the Court by noon tomorrow. 
 
Thank you, 
 
Dylan 

Dylan T. Ciciliano, Esq. 

Attorney 
 
Phone: 725 777 3000  |  Fax: 725 777 3112 

GARMAN  |  TURNER  |  GORDON 
7251 AMIGO STREET, SUITE 210 
LAS VEGAS, NV 89119 

 Visit us online at www.gtg.legal  

 

From: Dylan Ciciliano  
Sent: Monday, November 9, 2020 9:24 PM 
To: Danielle Barraza <djb@mgalaw.com> 
Cc: Erika Turner <eturner@Gtg.legal>; jag@mgalaw.com; Max Erwin <MErwin@Gtg.legal> 
Subject: Order Re: Motion to Confirm 
 
Danielle, 
 
Attached is the draft order on Plaintiff TGC/FARKAS FUNDING, LLC’s Motion to Confirm Arbitration Award. Please let me 
know if I may affix your signature. 
 

AA0067
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Thank you, 
 
Dylan 
 

Dylan T. Ciciliano, Esq. 

Attorney 
 
Phone: 725 777 3000  |  Fax: 725 777 3112 

GARMAN  |  TURNER  |  GORDON 
7251 AMIGO STREET, SUITE 210 
LAS VEGAS, NV 89119 

 Visit us online at www.gtg.legal  

 
 
The information contained in this transmission may contain privileged and confidential information. It is intended only 
for the use of the person(s) named above. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any review, 
dissemination, distribution or duplication of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you are not the intended 
recipient, please contact the sender by reply email and destroy all copies of the original message.  
 
The information contained in this transmission may contain privileged and confidential information. It is intended only 
for the use of the person(s) named above. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any review, 
dissemination, distribution or duplication of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you are not the intended 
recipient, please contact the sender by reply email and destroy all copies of the original message.  
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MATF 
GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP 
ERIKA PIKE TURNER 
Nevada Bar No. 6454 
Email: eturner@gtg.legal 
DYLAN T. CICILIANO 
Nevada Bar. No. 12348 
Email: dciciliano@gtg.legal 
7251 Amigo Street, Suite 210 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89119 
Tel: (725) 777-3000 
Fax: (725) 777-3112 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 
 

DISTRICT COURT 
 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 
 
TGC/FARKAS FUNDING, LLC, 
 
                          Plaintiff, 
 
vs. 
 
FIRST 100, LLC, a Nevada Limited Liability
Company; FIRST ONE HUNDRED
HOLDINGS, LLC, a Nevada limited liability
company aka 1st ONE HUNDRED HOLDINGS
LLC, a Nevada Limited Liability Company, 
 

   Defendants. 

CASE NO.  A-20-822273-C 
DEPT. 13  
 
 
MOTION FOR ATTORNEYS’ FEES AND 
COSTS 
 
(HEARING REQUESTED) 
 

 

Plaintiff TGC/FARKAS FUNDING, LLC (“Plaintiff”), through counsel, Garman Turner 

Gordon LLP, hereby files its Motion for Attorneys’ Fees and Costs (“Motion”) against Defendants, 

FIRST 100, LLC and FIRST ONE HUNDRED HOLDINGS, LLC (“Defendants”). 

/// 

/// 

/// 

/// 

/// 

/// 

/// 

/// 

Case Number: A-20-822273-C

Electronically Filed
11/17/2020 3:26 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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 This Motion is based on the Following Memorandum of Points and Authorities, the 

Declaration of Dylan T. Ciciliano (the “Ciciliano Dec.”), attached hereto as “Exhibit 1,” the papers 

and pleadings already on file herein, and any oral argument the Court may permit at the hearing of 

this matter. 

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES 

I. 

INTRODUCTION 

Nevada Revised Statute 38.243(3) provides that if a party contests or seeks the 

modification of an arbitration award, that upon application, the prevailing party may be awarded 

reasonable attorney’s fees and other reasonable litigation costs arising after the arbitration award. 

Plaintiff prevailed, confirming the Final Award and defeating Defendants request to modify the 

award. Thus, Plaintiff should be awarded its fees and costs . 

In exchange for $1,000,000 and other consideration, Plaintiff became a member of the 

limited liability company Defendants. Pursuant to Defendants’ operating agreements and NRS 86, 

Plaintiff has the right to inspect Defendants’ book and records. After Defendants systematically 

denied Plaintiff’s right to access the books and records, Plaintiff successfully brought an American 

Arbitration Association arbitration (the “Arbitration”). On September 15, 2020, the arbitration 

panel entered its final award and Defendants were ordered to produce business records and pay 

Plaintiffs’ attorneys’ fees and costs (the “Final Award”). (Final Award, Exhibit 1-A). In rendering 

their decision, the three-member arbitration panel concluded that Defendants “spent more than 

three years resisting the requested inspection” in a “long and bad faith effort . . . to avoid their 

statutory and contractual duties to [Plaintiff] to produce requested records.” (Id. at p. 4). To date, 

Defendants have not produced the records or paid Plaintiffs’ fees and costs. 

As a result, Plaintiff moved to confirm the Final Award pursuant to NRS 38.239. 

Defendants again attempted to defeat Plaintiff’s right to the business records by requesting that the 

Court modify the Final Award pursuant to NRS 38.242 and impose an additional hurdle on 

Plaintiff’s unequivocal right to inspect records—the payment of unknown fees and costs. The 
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Court rejected Defendants’ requests and confirmed the Final Award. As the prevailing party, 

Plaintiff should be awarded fees in the amount of $8,447.00 and costs in the amount of $613.20. 

II. 

STATEMENT OF RELEVANT FACTS 

Plaintiff “invested $1 million into the business of [Defendants] in exchange for a” 

membership interest in Defendants (Final Award, Exhibit 1-A, at p. 2). 

Beginning on May 2, 2017, Plaintiff made requests to inspect Defendants’ records pursuant 

to its status as a member of Defendants. (Id.). 

Immediately thereafter, despite conceding that Plaintiff were members, Defendants’ 

refused to produce the company records, which the Arbitration panel found to be “the first in a 

long and bad faith effort by [Defendants] to avoid their statutory and contractual duties to a 

member to produce requested records.” (Id.)(emphasis added). 

Plaintiff made an additional demand for records on September 13, 2019. (Id. at p. 3). 

Defendants again refused. (Id.). 

Plaintiff filed its arbitration demand on January 7, 2020, in order to enforce its rights as a 

member of Defendants to obtain business records from Defendants. 

On September 15, 2020, the Panel entered its Final Award, wherein it compelled 

Defendants to produce the requested records. (Id.). Furthermore, pursuant to Section 13.9 of 

Defendants’ operating agreements, the Panel awarded Plaintiff all of its fees and costs related to 

the arbitration in the amount of $23,975.00. (Id. at p. 5). 

Plaintiff moved to confirm the Final Award on October 1, 2020. (See Motion to Confirm 

Arbitration Award, on file herein). 

Defendants filed a limited opposition to the Motion to Confirm Arbitration Award and 

requested that the Court modify the award per NRS 38.242. (See Defendants’ Limited Opposition 

to Motion to Confirm Arbitration Award and Countermotion to Modify Award per NRS 38.252 

(the “Countermotion to Modify”), on file herein). 

On November 17, 2020, the Court entered its order granting the Motion to Confirm 
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Arbitration Award and denying the Countermotion to Motion. (See Order Granting Plaintiff’s 

Motion to Confirm Arbitration Award and Denying Defendants’ Countermotion to Modify Award; 

and Judgment, on file herein). 

III. 

LEGAL ARGUMENT 

A. Plaintiff should be awarded its attorneys’ fees and costs and . 

Pursuant to NRS 38.243(3), a district court may, “[o]n application of a prevailing party to 

a contested judicial proceeding under NRS 38.239, 38.241 or 38.242, ... add reasonable attorney[ 

] fees and other reasonable expenses of litigation incurred ... after the [arbitration] award is made 

to a judgment confirming... an award.” Artemis Expl. Co. v. Ruby Lake Estates Homeowner's Ass'n, 

464 P.3d 124 (Nev. 2020); Sanchez v. Elizondo, , 2018 WL 5833052, at *1 (D. Nev. Nov. 7, 2018) 

Here, this proceeding was contested, as Defendants sought to modify the arbitration award 

pursuant to NRS 38.242. (See Countermotion to Modify). As the Court denied the Countermotion 

to Modify, Plaintiff is the prevailing party to a contested judicial proceeding and may apply for 

fees and costs under NRS 38.243. 

The Court should enter an award of fees and costs here as there is ample evidence that 

Defendants brought the Countermotion to Modify to delay entry of the Final Award and to increase 

Plaintiff’s costs. Specifically, the Arbitrators have already concluded that Defendants efforts to 

deny Plaintiff’s access to records is part of a “long and bad faith effort by [Defendants] to avoid 

their statutory and contractual duties.” (Final Award at p. 2)(emphasis added). The 

Countermotion to Modify and opposition to the Final Award was in furtherance of Defendants’ 

bad faith efforts. After the Panel ordered Defendants to produce the records Plaintiff requested, 

Defendants again interfered with Plaintiff’s rights vis-à-vis their Countermotion to Modify. It is 

blatantly clear that Defendants have and will continue to take every effort to deny Plaintiff’s 

statutory and contractual rights—likely for the purpose of concealing what Defendants have done 

with Plaintiff’s investment. Moreover, an award of fees is consistent with Defendants operating 

agreement, which contains a mandatory prevailing party provision. (See Motion to Confirm, on 
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file herein, at Exh. 2, Sect 13.9 (stating “the arbitrations . . . shall award reimbursement of 

attorney’s fees and other costs”.)). Accordingly, the law and the Parties’ operating agreement 

recognizes Plaintiff’s right to recover fees and costs from Defendants for this proceeding. Thus, 

the Court should award Plaintiff its fees and costs from the date of the Final Award pursuant to 

NRS 38.243. 

B. Plaintiff’s fees are reasonable under Brunzell. 

While the trial court has discretion to determine the reasonable amount of attorney fees, 

the court must evaluate the factors set forth in Brunzell v. Golden Gate National Bank, 85 Nev. 

345, 349, 455 P.2d 31, 33 (1969), the “Brunzell factors.”  See Miller v. Wilfong, 121 Nev. 619, 

623, 119 P.3d 727, 730 (2005); see also Shuette v. Beazer Homes Holdings Corp., 121 Nev. 837, 

864-65, 124 P.3d 530, 548-49 (2005).  The Brunzell factors are as follows: 

(1)  the advocate's qualities, including ability, training, education, experience, 
professional standing, and skill; 

(2)  the character of the work, including its difficulty, intricacy, importance, as 
well as the time and skill required, the responsibility imposed, and the 
prominence and character of the parties when affecting the importance of 
the litigation; 

(3)  the work performed, including the skill, time, and attention given to the 
work; and 

(4)  the result—whether the attorney was successful and what benefits were 
derived. 

 

Wilfong, 121 Nev. at 623, 119 P.3d at 730; Shuette, 121 Nev. at 865, 124 P.3d at 549.  

1. Plaintiff was represented by qualified counsel. 

The Ciciliano Decl. attached hereto discusses the experience of Plaintiff’s counsel.  See 

also the biographies at the Garman Turner Gordon LLP website, url: gtg.legal. 

2. This matter has significant importance, as it was Plaintiff’s sole means to 

enforce its rights.. 

While the action was short-lived, a member of a limited liability company has the 

fundamental right to inspect the books and records of the company. Here, Defendants have 

absconded with $1,000,000 of Plaintiff’s investment. As found by the Panel, through bad faith, 

Defendants actively denied Plaintiff’s statutory and contractual rights to inspect Defendants books 
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and records, including but not limited to ascertaining what happened to Plaintiff’s investment. As 

a result, it was necessary to both bring the arbitration and this action to confirm the Final Award. 

Thus, this action has significant importance.  

3. The work performed by GTG was reasonable and necessary.

As set forth above, the work performed by GTG was reasonable and necessary. GTG’s

billing records establish that Plaintiff seeks attorneys’ fees related to confirming the arbitration 

award and opposing the Countermotion to Modify. Each of the billing entries in Exhibit 1-B are 

related to these discrete and necessary tasks. Given the importance of the issues, as well as the 

comprehensive briefing, 24.2 hours at a cost of $8,447.00 is reasonable. 

4. Plaintiff prevailed, such that the fourth factor weighs in its favor.

The fourth Brunzell factor speaks to the results achieved. Here, Plaintiff undeniably

prevailed and successfully defeated the Countermotion to Modify. The success obtained therefore 

weighs in favor of granting Plaintiff its costs. 

C. Plaintiff’s costs are reasonable.

As set forth in the attached Memorandum of Costs, Exhibit 1-C, Plaintiff’s costs in the

amount of $613.20 are related purely to filing fees and service costs. Accordingly, they are 

allowable and reasonable. 

IV. 

CONCLUSION 

Based upon the foregoing, Plaintiff respectfully requests that the Court grant the instant 

Motion, and award Plaintiff an award of attorneys’ fees in the amount of $8,447.00, and costs in 

the amount of $613.20. 

DATED this 17th day of November, 2020.  

   GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP 

  /s/ Dylan T. Ciciliano  
ERIKA PIKE TURNER (NV Bar No. 6454) 
DYLAN T. CICILIANO (NV Bar. No. 12348) 
7251 Amigo Street, Suite 210 
Tel: (725) 777-3000/Fax: (725) 777-3112  
Attorneys for Plaintiff  
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

The undersigned, hereby certifies that on the 17th day of November, 2020, he served a copy 

of the MOTION FOR ATTORNEYS’ FEES AND COSTS, by electronic service in accordance 

with Administrative Order 14.2, to all interested parties, through the Court’s Odyssey E-File & 

Serve system addressed to: 

Joseph A. Gutierrez, Esq.  
Danielle J. Barraza, Esq.  
MAIER GUTIERREZ & ASSOCIATES  
8816 Spanish Ridge Avenue 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89148 
Email: jag@mgalaw.com 
           djb@mgalaw.com 
Attorneys for Defendants 
 
 
 

 
 /s/ Max Erwin 
An Employee of  
GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP
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DECL 
GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP 
ERIKA PIKE TURNER 
Nevada Bar No. 6454 
Email: eturner@gtg.legal 
DYLAN T. CICILIANO 
Nevada Bar. No. 12348 
Email: dciciliano@gtg.legal 
7251 Amigo Street, Suite 210 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89119 
Tel: (725) 777-3000 
Fax: (725) 777-3112 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 
 

DISTRICT COURT 
 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 
 
TGC/FARKAS FUNDING, LLC, 
 
                          Plaintiff, 
 
vs. 
 
FIRST 100, LLC, a Nevada Limited Liability
Company; FIRST ONE HUNDRED
HOLDINGS, LLC, a Nevada limited liability
company aka 1st ONE HUNDRED HOLDINGS
LLC, a Nevada Limited Liability Company, 
 

   Defendants. 

CASE NO.  A-20-822273-C 
DEPT. 13  
 
 
DECLARATION OF DYLAN T. 
CICILIANO IN SUPPORT OF MOTION 
FOR ATTORNEYS’ FEES AND COSTS 
 
 
 

 

I, Dylan T. Ciciliano, declare as follows: 

1. I am an attorney licensed to practice law in the State of Nevada and am an associate 

in the law firm of Garman Turner Gordon LLP, counsel of record for Plaintiff TGC/Farkas 

Funding, LLC (“Plaintiff”) in the above-captioned case.  In such capacity, I have developed 

personal knowledge regarding the facts set forth below. 

2. I make this Declaration in support of the Motion for Attorneys’ Fees and Costs (the 

“Motion”). 

3. Attached hereto as Exhibit 1-A is a true and correct copy of the September 15, 

2020 Decision and AWARD of Arbitration Panel (1) Compelling Production of Company 

Records; and (2) Ordering Reimbursement of Claimant’s Attorneys’ Fees and Costs (the “Final 

Award”) entered in American Arbitration Association Case No. 01-20-0000-0613. 

4. In the present action, Plaintiff was represented by GTG. Due to GTG’s bankruptcy 
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practice, where hourly rates are frequently scrutinized by the Bankruptcy Court District of Nevada 

and the Department of Justice, GTG frequently evaluates its own attorneys’ rates for 

reasonableness in the community. I am directly involved in the process, which involves sampling 

rates of other attorneys from around the community. While I am primarily a litigator, litigators at 

GTG appear semi-frequently in Bankruptcy Court, particularly on commercial law disputes, and 

therefore it is essential that our rates are reasonable. As such, I have personal knowledge of fees 

charged in Clark County, Nevada, and particularly relating to commercial law matters. 

5. Attorney rates at GTG range from $265/hour to $850/hour. 

6. Erika Pike Turner was the primary attorney and partner in charge of Plaintiff’s 

representation. Plaintiff was also represented by Andrew LaJoie, Jared Sechrist, Walter Fick and 

me in the above-captioned case. 

7. I have more than 8 years of experience litigating commercial disputes, including at 

numerous bench and jury trials. I have been consistently recognized as an up and coming attorney 

by my peers. I also hold a master’s degree in economics, which is particularly valuable in 

commercial disputes. My billing rate on this matter, which is commensurate with, or less than, 

what is customary in the community for someone of similar qualification and expertise, is $345.00 

per hour. 

8. Ms. Turner has been licensed as a Nevada attorney since 1997, she was named an 

equity partner at the law firm of Gordon Silver in 2005, and is a founding partner at GTG. I have 

represented numerous clients in business litigation matters and has substantial trial experience. My 

billing rate on this matter, which is commensurate with, or less than, what is customary in the 

community for someone of similar qualification and expertise, is $535.00 per hour. 

9. Mr. Sechrist is a GTG attorney and has more than 16 years of experience. Mr. 

Sechrist was previously a partner at another Nevada law firm and has represented numerous clients 

in business litigation matters and has substantial trial experience. His billing rate on this matter, 

which is commensurate with, or less than, what is customary in the community for someone of 

similar qualification and expertise, is $400.00 per hour. 

10. Mr. Fick is a GTG attorney and has more than 3 years of experience. Mr. Fick 
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graduated cum laude from both Princeton University and the William S. Boyd School of Law. 

Prior to joining GTG, Mr. Fick was a law clerk for Judge Gary Fairman in the Seventh Judicial 

District Court. Mr. Fick’s billing rate on this matter, which is commensurate with, or less than, 

what is customary in the community for someone of similar qualification and expertise, is $265.00 

per hour. 

11. Mr. LaJoie was a GTG attorney and has more than 3 years of experience. Mr. LaJoie 

was a law clerk for Judge Mark Denton in the Eighth Judicial District Court. Mr. LaJoie’s billing 

rate on this matter, which is commensurate with, or less than, what is customary in the community 

for someone of similar qualification and expertise, is $265.00 per hour. 

12. Attached hereto as Exhibit 1-B is a true and correct copy of GTG’s invoices related 

to this matter, except that they have been redacted for privilege. The fees reflected therein were 

actually and necessarily incurred by Mr. Saucier.  

13. A true and correct copy of reasonable and necessary costs incurred by Plaintiff, as 

reflected in its memorandum of costs, which is attached hereto as Exhibit 1-C. 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the law of the State of Nevada that the foregoing 

is true and correct. 

Executed this 17th day of November, 2020. 

 
/s/ Dylan T. Ciciliano     

      DYLAN T. CICILIANO, Declarant 
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1 During the Preliminary Hearing, the Parties confirmed that party-appointed arbitrators Baker 
and DiRaimondo were serving as neutral, non-partisan arbitrators for purposes of these 
proceedings.

AMERICAN ARBITRATION ASSOCIATION

COMMERCIAL ARBITRATION TRIBUNAL

In the Matter of the Arbitration between:

Claimant TGC/Farkas Funding, LLC, hereinafter referred to as "Claimant"

-and-

Respondents First 100, LLC, and First One Hundred Holdings, LLC, hereinafter 
collectively referred to as "Respondents"

AAA Case No: 01-20-0000-0613

Decision and AWARD of Arbitration Panel (1) Compelling Production of Company 
Records; and (2) Ordering Reimbursement of Claimant’s Attorneys’ Fees and Costs

The undersigned Arbitrators, having been designated in accordance with the arbitration 
agreement entered into between the above-named parties1, and having been duly sworn, and 
having duly heard the proofs and allegations of the Parties, hereby AWARD as follows:

This matter came before the Panel for a hearing to determine whether Claimant is 
entitled to production and examination of company records of Respondents. The Parties 
requested that the Panel not hold an evidentiary hearing but instead render a reasoned decision 
based on the briefings and documents presented. The Parties presented their briefs; the Panel 
convened and considered the briefs and evidence; the Panel then requested further evidence 
regarding the alleged Redemption Agreement. Upon receipt of the additional evidence, the 
Panel declared the hearing closed and further deliberated. This decision is the product of that 
deliberation.

AMERICAN 
ARBITRATION 
ASSOCIATION• 

INTERNATIONAL CENTRE 
FOR DISPUTE RESOLUTION • 
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Respondents appear to be in the business of purchasing unpaid receivables of HOAs on 
discounted terms and profiting from those purchases in various ways. Exhibit 1 to Claimant’s 
Appendix to Claimant’s Arbitration Brief (“Appendix” or “Appx”).  Claimant is an entity 
owned by Matthew Farkas and Adam Flatto. Exhibit 1 to Claimant’s Response to Order 
Regarding Additional Evidence Request.  Matthew Farkas was an officer/employee of  
Respondents. Exhibits 1 and5 to Claimant’s Appx. Claimant invested $1 million into the 
business of Respondents in exchange for a one percent (1%) membership interest. That was 
parlayed into a three percent (3%) total interest in First 100, LLC, after  Respondents granted a 
two percent (2%) ownership interest to Mr. Farkas for his “services rendered in the VP of 
Finance position…” Exhibits 4 and 5 to Claimant’s Appx. It is not clear exactly when Claimant 
became a member of Respondents, due to a lack of dates on many of the exhibits, but it appears 
from Exhibit 1 to Claimant’s Appendix that Respondents were marketing membership interests 
in 2013. Claimants’ interest is acknowledged by Exhibit 5 to Claimant’s Appendix, an undated 
letter from Respondent 1st One Hundred, LLC. Exhibit 4 appears to conclusively establish that  
Claimant held 3% of Respondent First 100, LLC’s membership interests.

Likely in 2017, possibly on or about April 13, 2017, Respondents sent a memo to members 
describing litigation against a funding source, financial issues facing the companies, and 
recommending that members execute a redemption agreement due to the financial condition of 
Respondents. The memo included a draft of the "Membership Interest Redemption Agreement" 
(the "Redemption Agreement"), which was to be entered into by and between Claimant and 
Respondent 1st One Hundred Holdings, LLC.  Exhibit 6 to Appx.  The Redemption Agreement 
states, among other things, that Respondent 1st One Hundred Holdings, LLC "desires to redeem 
all of [Claimant's] membership interests in [Respondent 1st One Hundred Holdings, LLC], as 
well as any interest claimed in any and all subsidiaries…."  Id.   The memo also apparently 
accompanied the IRS Schedule K-1 to Claimant TCG/Farkas Funding, LLC, as a member of 
"First 100 Holdings, LLC", dated April 13, 2017. Exhibit 6 to Appx. This Schedule K-1 
appears to be conclusive evidence that Respondents considered Claimant to be a Member of 
"First 100 Holdings, LLC".

By letter dated May 2, 2017, to the law firm representing Respondents, Claimant’s counsel set 
forth objections to the proposed Redemption Agreement, concerns about the financial condition 
of Respondents, and requests for production of the company records of Respondents. Exhibit 9 
to Appx. This appears to be the initial request for company records that is the subject of the 
arbitration demand filed by Claimant.

Exhibit 11 to Claimant’s Appendix is the first response from counsel for the Respondents to the 
request to inspect the company records of the Respondents. It is dated June 6, 2017. 
Significantly, Respondents' counsel concedes in this letter that Claimant "holds a membership 
interest in 1st One Hundred Holdings, LLC."  Nevertheless, it is the first in a long and bad faith 
effort by Respondents to avoid their statutory and contractual duties to a member to produce 
requested records.
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On September 13, 2019, counsel for Claimant made another request for company records to 
counsel for Respondents. Exhibit 13 to Appx.. On September 24, 2017, counsel for 
Respondents refused to honor the request to inspect based on a claim that counsel for Claimant 
might not represent Claimant, and based on the argument that the request was overbroad. 
Exhibit 14 to Appx. Nothing in this letter contends that the execution of the Redemption 
Agreement by Mr. Farkas for Claimant constituted a legitimate basis to refuse to make the 
records available for inspection. Thereafter, Claimant initiated this arbitration proceeding.

In the arbitration proceeding, Respondents make three arguments why they are not required to 
produce the records requested by Claimant. First, they argue that Claimant may not be a 
Member, and as such is only entitled to a refund of the investment money paid to the 
Respondents and no records. Second, they argue that the signing of a Redemption Agreement 
by Mathew Farkas releases the Respondents from any responsibility to make company records 
available to Claimant. Third, they argue that the request is overbroad and must be pared down. 
None of these arguments has merit, as discussed below.

The contention that Claimant is not a member of Respondents is belied by the records of the 
Respondents, as discussed above. The fact that Respondents believe that the Claimant signed a 
Redemption Agreement as a member of Respondents is an additional admission on the part of 
the Respondents that the Claimant is a Member of the Respondents with standing to inspect 
records of the Company.

It was not clear from the initial briefs and exhibits whether Mathew Farkas signed a 
Redemption Agreement for Claimant. However, the additional evidence clarified that he 
actually did sign such an Agreement. However, the evidence also shows two additional points 
that render the Redemption Agreement irrelevant for the purpose of this proceeding. First, the 
evidence shows that Mr. Farkas did not have authority to bind Claimant to the Redemption 
Agreement, as he did not seek and obtain the consent of Mr. Flatto. Exhibit 1 to Supplemental 
Declaration of Flatto attached to Claimant’s Response to Order Regarding Additional Evidence 
Request; Supplemental Declarations of Flatto and Farkas attached to Claimant’s Response to 
Order Regarding Additional Evidence Request.  And, Claimant notified Respondents via email 
on April 18, 2017, that Mr. Farkas did not have the authority to bind Claimant under the 
Redemption Agreement "unless and until approved by Adam Flatto."   Exhibit 12 to Claimant's 
Appx. at Ex. 3.

Secondly, the Respondents have yet to perform under the terms of the Redemption Agreement.  
Specifically, Section 2(a) requires payment by the Company to Redeemer.  Exhibit A to 
Supplemental Declaration of Jay Bloom in support of Respondents’ Arbitration Brief.  
Respondents concede that payment has not been made and that Respondents only “intend[]” to 
“fully perform” at a later point in time, when sufficient funds are available.  Supplemental 
Declaration of Jay Bloom in support of Respondents’ Arbitration Brief ¶ 16.  The Redemption 

--
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Agreement, therefore, does not constitute a basis for Respondents to refuse to make company 
records available to Claimant as a Member of Respondents.

Finally, Respondents contend the records inspection request is overbroad. NRS 86.241(2) 
applies to the fact of this case:

2.* * Each member of a limited-liability company is entitled to obtain from the 
company, from time to time upon reasonable demand, for any purpose 
reasonably related to the interest of the member as a member of the company:

      (a)* The records required to be maintained pursuant to subsection 1;

      (b)* True and, in light of the member’s stated purpose, complete records 
regarding the activities and the status of the business and financial condition of 
the company;

      (c)* Promptly after becoming available, a copy of the company’s federal, 
state and local income tax returns for each year;

      (d)* True and complete records regarding the amount of cash and a 
description and statement of the agreed value of any other property or services 
contributed by each member and which each member has agreed to contribute in 
the future, and the date on which each became a member; and

      (e)* Other records regarding the affairs of the company as is just and 
reasonable under the circumstances and in light of the member’s stated purpose 
for demanding such records.

The right to obtain records under this subsection includes, if reasonable, the right 
to make copies or abstracts by photographic, xerographic, electronic or other 
means.

 

The language of subsection (e) applies here and justifies Claimant requesting the records 
requested, even if not specifically listed in the previous sections. These include litigation 
information and insurance policies. Given the circumstances of the request – pending litigation 
by Respondents, representations by Respondents suggesting the viability of the companies is in 
jeopardy, and the proposal that members sign a Redemption Agreement that substantially 
compromises their rights as members – all justify the categories of information requested by 
Claimant. The fact that Respondents have spent more than three years resisting the requested 
inspection further supports the justification to examine all these categories of documents.
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Therefore, the Panel awards in favor of Claimant and against Respondents in all respects on the 
primary claim, and orders Respondents to forthwith, but no later than ten ( 10) calendar days 
from the date of this AWARD, make all the requested documents and information available 
from both companies to Claimant for inspection and copying. 

Claimant has requested an award of attorneys' fees and costs. Section 13.9 of the Operating 
Agreement at Exhibit 3 to the Appendix sets forth the following pertinent language: "The 
arbitrators shall make findings of fact and law in writing in support of his (sic) decision, and 
shall award reimbursement of attorney fees and other costs of arbitration to the prevailing party 
as the arbitrator deems appropriate." 

In this case, the Panel deems it appropriate to award all of the attorneys' fees requested by 
Claimant against Respondents, in the amount of $17,011.50. The Panel also deems it 
appropriate to award to Claimant and against Respondent all of the arbitration filing fee(s) paid 
by the Claimant, and all of the fees for the arbitration Panel paid by Claimant. The total sum of 
$23,975.00 shall be paid by Respondents to Claimant within ten (10) calendar days of the date 
ofthis AWARD. 

The administrative fees of the American Arbitration Association totaling $4,400.00 and the 

compensation of the arbitrators totaling $19,575.00 shall be borne Respondent. Therefore, 

Respondent shall reimburse Claimant the sum of $23,975.00, representing that portion of said 

fees and expenses in excess of the apportioned costs previously incurred by Claimant. 

This Award is in full settlement of all claims submitted to this arbitration. All claims not 
expressly granted herein are hereby denied. 

This A ward may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an 
original, and all of which shall constitute together one and the same instrument. 

Date: hilip J. Dabney, Esq., 
Arbitrator and Panel Chair 

Page 5 of 6 
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9-15-2020
A)~·L f3ak.-

Date: Nikki L. Baker, Esq., 
Arbitrator 

sHZf~ / 
Anthony J. DiRaimondo, Esq., 

Arbitrator 
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Date Hours Description Rate ($) Billable ($) User

9/29/2020 4.2 Prepare Motion to Confirm Arbitration Award 265.00$   1,113.00$   Andrew Lajoie

9/30/2020 1.5 Continue to prepare Motion to Confirm Arbitration Award 265.00$   397.50$       Andrew Lajoie

9/30/2020 1

Attend to finalizing motion to confirm award and 

commencing action to lodge same  535.00$   535.00$       Erika Turner

10/1/2020 0.3

Review notice of hearing + follow up on service  of process 

on defts and email with client rep re hearing  535.00$   160.50$       Erika Turner

10/16/2020 0.2

Review opposition to motion to enforce and counter 

motion  535.00$   107.00$       Erika Turner

10/22/2020 0.9

Research modification of arbitration award and begin 

drafting reply 345.00$   310.50$       Dylan Ciciliano

10/23/2020 4.8

Prepare reply in support of motion to confirm arbitration 

award and opposition to motion to amend award; legal 

research re same 400.00$   1,920.00$   Jared Sechrist

10/26/2020 0.8 Revise opposition to countermotion to modify 345.00$   276.00$       Dylan Ciciliano

10/26/2020 0.6

Attend to finalizing preparation of reply on motion to 

confirm award 535.00$   321.00$       Erika Turner

10/27/2020 0.1

Email communication with client rep re status and 

strategy on how to proceed 535.00$   53.50$         Erika Turner

11/2/2020 1.9

Prepare for and attend motion to confirm arbitration 

award. 345.00$   655.50$       Dylan Ciciliano

11/2/2020 1.6

Prepare order granting motion to confirm arbitration 

award, denying countermotion, and entering equitable 

and monetary judgment 265.00$   424.00$       Walter Fick

11/9/2020 0.9 Review and revise Order granting motion to confirm. 345.00$   310.50$       Dylan Ciciliano

11/12/2020 0.2 Follow up on Court Order 345.00$   69.00$         Dylan Ciciliano

11/12/2020 5.2 Research and draft motion for fees/costs 345.00$   1,794.00$   Dylan Ciciliano

24.2 8,447.00$  
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MEMC 
GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP 
ERIKA PIKE TURNER 
Nevada Bar No. 6454 
Email: eturner@gtg.legal 
DYLAN T. CICILIANO 
Nevada Bar. No. 12348 
Email: dciciliano@gtg.legal 
7251 Amigo Street, Suite 210 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89119 
Tel: (725) 777-3000 
Fax: (725) 777-3112 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 
 

DISTRICT COURT 
 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 
 
TGC/FARKAS FUNDING, LLC, 
 
                          Plaintiff, 
 
vs. 
 
FIRST 100, LLC, a Nevada Limited Liability 
Company; FIRST ONE HUNDRED 
HOLDINGS, LLC, a Nevada limited liability 
company aka 1st ONE HUNDRED HOLDINGS 
LLC, a Nevada Limited Liability Company, 
 

   Defendants. 

CASE NO.  A-20-822273-C 
DEPT. 13  
 
 
MEMORANDUM OF COSTS AND 
DISBURSEMENTS 
 

 
NRS 18.110 Category of Costs Amount 

(1) Clerk’s Fees (Odyssey E-File). $299.10 
(2) Reporters’ fees for depositions, including a reporter’s fee for one copy 

of each deposition. 
$0.00 

(3) Jurors’ fees and expenses, together with reasonable compensation of 
an officer appointed to act in accordance with NRS 16.120. 

$0.00 

(4) Fees for witnesses at trial, pretrial hearings and deposing witnesses, 
unless the court finds that the witness was called at the instance of the 
prevailing party without reason or necessity. 

$0.00 

(5) Reasonable fees of not more than five expert witnesses in an amount 
of not more than $1,500 for each witness unless the court allows a 
larger fee after determining that the circumstances surrounding the 
expert’s testimony were of such necessity as to require the larger fee.  

$0.00 

(6) Reasonable fees of necessary interpreters. $0.00 
(7) The fee of any sheriff or licensed process server for the delivery or 

service of any summons or subpoena used in the action, unless the 
court determines that the service was not necessary.  

$312.70 

(8) Compensation for the official reporter or reporter pro tempore. $0.00 

Case Number: A-20-822273-C

Electronically Filed
11/17/2020 2:56 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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(9) Reasonable costs for any bond or undertaking required as part of the 
action. 

$0.00 

(10) Fees of a court bailiff or deputy marshal who was required to work 
overtime. 

$0.00 

(11) Reasonable costs for telecopies. $0.00 
(12) Reasonable costs for photocopies.  $0.00 
(13) Reasonable costs for long distance telephone calls. $0.00 
(14) Reasonable costs for postage. $1.40 
(15) Reasonable costs for travel and lodging incurred taking depositions 

and conducting discovery. 
$0.00 

(16) Fees charged pursuant to NRS 19.0335. $0.00 
(17) Reasonable and necessary expense incurred in connection with the 

action 
$0.00 

(18) Messenger Service $0.00   
 TOTAL $613.20 

 

DATED this 17th day of November, 2020.  

   GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP 

 
  /s/ Dylan T. Ciciliano    
ERIKA PIKE TURNER 
Nevada Bar No. 6454 
DYLAN T. CICILIANO 
Nevada Bar. No. 12348 
7251 Amigo Street, Suite 210 
Tel: (725) 777-3000 
Fax: (725) 777-3112  
Attorneys for Plaintiff   
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DECLARATION OF DYLAN T. CICILIANO, ESQ. IN SUPPORT OF 
MEMORANDUM OF COSTS AND DISBURSEMENTS 

1. I am an attorney with the law firm of Garman Turner Gordon, LLP, counsel for 

Plaintiff Ovation Finance Holdings, LLC (“Plaintiff”) in the above-captioned matter. I am duly 

licensed to practice law in the State of Nevada. 

2. I make this declaration in support of Plaintiff’s Memorandum of Costs and 

Disbursements. I am over the age of eighteen and am competent to testify to the matters and facts 

set forth herein.  I state the following matters and facts upon my own personal knowledge, except 

where stated upon information and belief, and as to those statements made upon information and 

belief, I believe them to be true. 

3. The items contained in the above memorandum are true and correct to the best of 

my knowledge and belief; and the said disbursements have been necessarily incurred and paid in 

this action. 

4. Attached hereto are true and correct copies of Garman Turner Gordon LLP’s 

transactions listing. 

 I declare under penalty of perjury under the law of the State of Nevada (NRS 53.045), that 

the foregoing is true and correct. 

Dated this 17th day of November, 2020. 

 /s/ Dylan T. Ciciliano     
      DYLAN T. CICILIANO, Declarant 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

The undersigned, hereby certifies that on the 17th day of November, 2020, he served a copy 

of the MEMORANDUM OF COSTS AND DISBURSEMENTS, by electronic service in 

accordance with Administrative Order 14.2, to all interested parties, through the Court’s Odyssey 

E-File & Serve system addressed to: 

Joseph A. Gutierrez, Esq.  
Danielle J. Barraza, Esq.  
MAIER GUTIERREZ & ASSOCIATES  
8816 Spanish Ridge Avenue 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89148 
Email: jag@mgalaw.com 
           djb@mgalaw.com 
Attorneys for Defendants 
 
 
 

 
 /s/ Max Erwin 
An Employee of  
GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP
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11/17/2020 Odyssey File & Serve - Envelope Receipt

https://nevada.tylerhost.net/OfsWeb/FileAndServeModule/Envelope/ViewPrintableEnvelope?Id=6710516 1/3

Case # A-20-822273-C - TGC/Farkas Funding, LLC, Plaintiff(s)vs. Fir

Envelope Information

Case Information

Filings

Envelope Id
6710516

Submitted Date
10/1/2020 10:02 AM PST

Submitted User Name
merwin@gtg.legal

Location
Department 13

Category
Civil

Case Type
Other Civil Matters

Case Initiation Date
10/1/2020

Case #
A-20-822273-C

Assigned to Judge
Denton, Mark R.

Filing Type
EFile

Filing Code
Motion - MOT (CIV)

Filing Description
Motion to Confirm Arbitration Award

Client Reference Number
01245

Filing on Behalf of
TGC/Farkas Funding, LLC

Filing Status
Accepted

Accepted Date
10/1/2020 10:06 AM PST

Accept Comments
Auto Review Accepted

Lead Document

File Name
Motion to Confirm Arbitration Award.pdf 

Security Download
Original File 

Court Copy

Help
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Filing Type
EFile

Filing Code
Civil Cover Sheet - CCS (CIV)

Filing Description
Civil Cover Sheet

Client Reference Number
01245

Filing on Behalf of
TGC/Farkas Funding, LLC

Filing Status
Accepted

Accepted Date
10/1/2020 10:06 AM PST

Accept Comments
Auto Review Accepted

Lead Document

File Name
Civil Cover Sheet.pdf 

Security
Non-Public Document

Download
Original File 

Court Copy

Filing Type
EFile

Filing Code
Notice - NOTC (CIV)

Filing Description
Notice of Appearance

Client Reference Number
01245

Filing on Behalf of
TGC/Farkas Funding, LLC

Filing Status
Accepted

Accepted Date
10/1/2020 10:06 AM PST

Accept Comments
Auto Review Accepted

Lead Document

File Name
Notice of Appearance.pdf 

Security
Public Filed Document

Download
Original File 

Court Copy
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Fees

Motion - MOT (CIV)

Filing Total: $270.00

Civil Cover Sheet - CCS (CIV)

Filing Total: $0.00

Notice - NOTC (CIV)

Filing Total: $0.00

Envelope Total: $281.60

Description Amount

Filing Fee $0.00

01 Civil Complaint $270.00

Description Amount

Filing Fee $0.00

Description Amount

Filing Fee $0.00

Total Filing Fee $270.00

Payment Service Fee $8.10

E-File Fee $3.50

Transaction Amount $281.60

Transaction Id 7844212

Filing Attorney Erika Turner Order Id 006710516-0

Transaction Response Payment Complete
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Case # A-20-822273-C - TGC/Farkas Funding, LLC, Plaintiff(s)vs. Fir

Envelope Information

Case Information

Filings

Envelope Id
6718194

Submitted Date
10/2/2020 11:12 AM PST

Submitted User Name
merwin@gtg.legal

Location
Department 13

Category
Civil

Case Type
Other Civil Matters

Case Initiation Date
10/1/2020

Case #
A-20-822273-C

Assigned to Judge
Denton, Mark R.

eService Details

Filing Type
EFileAndServe

Filing Code
Certificate of Service - CSERV (CIV)

Filing Description
Certificate of Service

Client Reference Number
01245

Filing on Behalf of
TGC/Farkas Funding, LLC

Filing Status
Accepted

Accepted Date
10/2/2020 11:13 AM PST

Accept Comments
Auto Review Accepted

Lead Document

File Name
Certificate of Service.pdf 

Security
Public Filed Document

Download
Original File 

Court Copy

Help
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Parties with No eService

Fees

Status Name Firm Served Date OpenedStatus Name Firm Served Date Opened

Sent Erika Pike Turner Garman Turner Gordon LLP Yes Not Opened

Sent Tonya Binns Garman Turner Gordon LLP Yes 10/2/2020 11:14 AM PST

Sent Max Erwin Garman Turner Gordon LLP Yes Not Opened

Name
First One Hundred Holdings, LLC

Address

Certificate of Service - CSERV (CIV)

Filing Total: $0.00

Envelope Total: $3.50

Description Amount

Filing Fee $0.00

Total Filing Fee $0.00

E-File Fee $3.50

Transaction Amount $3.50

Transaction Id 7851211

Filing Attorney Erika Turner Order Id 006718194-0

Transaction Response Payment Complete
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Case # A-20-822273-C - TGC/Farkas Funding, LLC, Plaintiff(s)vs. Fir

Envelope Information

Case Information

Filings

Envelope Id
6736520

Submitted Date
10/6/2020 4:00 PM PST

Submitted User Name
merwin@gtg.legal

Location
Department 13

Category
Civil

Case Type
Other Civil Matters

Case Initiation Date
10/1/2020

Case #
A-20-822273-C

Assigned to Judge
Denton, Mark R.

eService Details

Filing Type
EFileAndServe

Filing Code
Errata - ERR (CIV)

Filing Description
Errata to Motion to Confirm Arbitration
Award

Client Reference Number
01245

Filing on Behalf of
TGC/Farkas Funding, LLC

Filing Status
Accepted

Accepted Date
10/6/2020 4:01 PM PST

Accept Comments
Auto Review Accepted

Lead Document

File Name
Errata to Motion to Confirm Arbitration
Award.pdf 

Security
Public Filed Document

Download
Original File 

Court Copy

Help
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Parties with No eService

Fees

Status Name Firm Served Date Opened

Sent Erika Pike Turner Garman Turner Gordon LLP Yes Not Opened

Sent Tonya Binns Garman Turner Gordon LLP Yes 10/6/2020 4:01 PM PST

Sent Max Erwin Garman Turner Gordon LLP Yes Not Opened

Name
First One Hundred Holdings, LLC

Address

Errata - ERR (CIV)

Filing Total: $0.00

Envelope Total: $3.50

Description Amount

Filing Fee $0.00

Total Filing Fee $0.00

E-File Fee $3.50

Transaction Amount $3.50

Transaction Id 7869692

Filing Attorney Erika Turner Order Id 006736520-0

Transaction Response Payment Complete
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Case # A-20-822273-C - TGC/Farkas Funding, LLC, Plaintiff(s)vs. Fir

Envelope Information

Case Information

Filings

Envelope Id
6748218

Submitted Date
10/8/2020 11:53 AM PST

Submitted User Name
merwin@gtg.legal

Location
Department 13

Category
Civil

Case Type
Other Civil Matters

Case Initiation Date
10/1/2020

Case #
A-20-822273-C

Assigned to Judge
Denton, Mark R.

eService Details

Filing Type
EFileAndServe

Filing Code
Affidavit of Service - AOS (CIV)

Filing Description
Affidavit of Process Server - First 100 LLC

Client Reference Number
01245

Filing on Behalf of
TGC/Farkas Funding, LLC

Filing Status
Accepted

Accepted Date
10/8/2020 11:55 AM PST

Accept Comments
Auto Review Accepted

Lead Document

File Name
Affidavit of Process Server - First 100
LLC.pdf 

Security
Public Filed Document

Download
Original File 

Court Copy

Help

AA0101
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Parties with No eService

Fees

Status Name Firm Served Date OpenedStatus Name Firm Served Date Opened

Sent Erika Pike Turner Garman Turner Gordon LLP Yes Not Opened

Sent Tonya Binns Garman Turner Gordon LLP Yes 10/8/2020 11:54 AM PST

Sent Max Erwin Garman Turner Gordon LLP Yes Not Opened

Name
First One Hundred Holdings, LLC

Address

Affidavit of Service - AOS (CIV)

Filing Total: $0.00

Envelope Total: $3.50

Description Amount

Filing Fee $0.00

Total Filing Fee $0.00

E-File Fee $3.50

Transaction Amount $3.50

Transaction Id 7880788

Filing Attorney Erika Turner Order Id 006748218-0

Transaction Response Payment Complete
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Case # A-20-822273-C - TGC/Farkas Funding, LLC, Plaintiff(s)vs. Fir

Envelope Information

Case Information

Filings

Envelope Id
6755994

Submitted Date
10/9/2020 1:47 PM PST

Submitted User Name
merwin@gtg.legal

Location
Department 13

Category
Civil

Case Type
Other Civil Matters

Case Initiation Date
10/1/2020

Case #
A-20-822273-C

Assigned to Judge
Denton, Mark R.

Filing Type
EFileAndServe

Filing Code
Affidavit of Service - AOS (CIV)

Filing Description
Affidavit of Service - First One Hundred
Holdings, LLC aka 1st One Hundred
Holdings LLC

Client Reference Number
01245

Filing on Behalf of
TGC/Farkas Funding, LLC

Filing Status
Accepted

Accepted Date
10/9/2020 1:48 PM PST

Accept Comments
Auto Review Accepted

Lead Document

File Name
Affidavit of Service - First One Hundred
Holdings LLC aka 1st One Hundred
Holdings LLC.pdf 

Security
Public Filed Document

Download
Original File 

Court Copy

Help
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Parties with No eService

Fees

eService Details

Status Name Firm Served Date Opened

Sent Erika Pike Turner Garman Turner Gordon LLP Yes Not Opened

Sent Tonya Binns Garman Turner Gordon LLP Yes 10/9/2020 1:48 PM PST

Sent Max Erwin Garman Turner Gordon LLP Yes Not Opened

Name
First One Hundred Holdings, LLC

Address

Affidavit of Service - AOS (CIV)

Filing Total: $0.00

Envelope Total: $3.50

Description Amount

Filing Fee $0.00

Total Filing Fee $0.00

E-File Fee $3.50

Transaction Amount $3.50

Transaction Id 7888012

Filing Attorney Erika Turner Order Id 006755994-0

Transaction Response Payment Complete
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Case # A-20-822273-C - TGC/Farkas Funding, LLC, Plaintiff(s)vs. Fir

Envelope Information

Case Information

Filings

Envelope Id
6836593

Submitted Date
10/26/2020 5:31 PM PST

Submitted User Name
dciciliano@gtg.legal

Location
Department 13

Category
Civil

Case Type
Other Civil Matters

Case Initiation Date
10/1/2020

Case #
A-20-822273-C

Assigned to Judge
Denton, Mark R.

Filing Type
EFileAndServe

Filing Code
Reply - RPLY (CIV)

Filing Description
Plaintiff's Reply to Defendants' Limited
Opposition to Motion to Confirm
Arbitration Award and Opposition to
Defendants' Countermotion to Modify
Award Per NRS 38.242

Filing on Behalf of
TGC/Farkas Funding, LLC

Filing Status
Accepted

Accepted Date
10/26/2020 5:32 PM PST

Accept Comments
Auto Review Accepted

Lead Document

File Name
Plaintiffs Reply-Opposition to
Defendants Limited Opposition to
Motion to Confirm Arbitration Award and
Countermotion to Modify Award Per
NRS 38.2~ 4820-5654-9583 v. (002).pdf

Security
Public Filed Document

Download
Original File 

Court Copy

Help
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Parties with No eService

Fees

eService Details

Status Name Firm Served Date Opened

Sent Erika Pike Turner Garman Turner Gordon LLP Yes Not Opened

Sent Tonya Binns Garman Turner Gordon LLP Yes 10/27/2020 7:52 AM PST

Sent Max Erwin Garman Turner Gordon LLP Yes 10/27/2020 7:52 AM PST

Sent MGA Docketing Maier Gutierrez & Associates Yes 10/27/2020 7:51 AM PST

Name
First One Hundred Holdings, LLC

Address

Reply - RPLY (CIV)

Filing Total: $0.00

Envelope Total: $3.50

Description Amount

Filing Fee $0.00

Total Filing Fee $0.00

E-File Fee $3.50

Transaction Amount $3.50

Transaction Id 7968687

Filing Attorney Dylan Ciciliano Order Id 006836593-0

Transaction Response Payment Complete
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OPP 
JOSEPH A. GUTIERREZ, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 9046 
DANIELLE J. BARRAZA, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 13822 
MAIER GUTIERREZ & ASSOCIATES 
8816 Spanish Ridge Avenue 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89148 
Telephone: (702) 629-7900 
Facsimile: (702) 629-7925 
E-mail: jag@mgalaw.com 
 djb@mgalaw.com 
 
Attorneys for Defendants First 100, LLC 
and 1st One Hundred Holdings, LLC 
 
 
 
 

DISTRICT COURT 
 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 
 
 
TGC FARKAS FUNDING, LLC, 
 

Plaintiff, 
 
vs. 
 
FIRST 100, LLC, a Nevada limited liability 
company; 1st ONE HUNDRED HOLDINGS, 
LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, 
 

Defendants. 

 
Case No: A-20-822273-C 
Dept.:      13 
 
DEFENDANTS’ OPPOSITION TO 
MOTION FOR ATTORNEYS’ FEES AND 
COSTS 
 

 
 Defendants First 100, LLC and 1st One Hundred Holdings, LLC (collectively “First 100”), by 

and through their attorneys of record, the law firm MAIER GUTIERREZ & ASSOCIATES, hereby submit 

this opposition to the motion for attorneys’ fees and costs filed by plaintiff TGC FARKAS FUNDING, 

LLC (“Plaintiff” or “TGC”).  

 This opposition is based on the following Memorandum of Points and Authorities, the papers 

and pleadings on file, and such argument as the Court deems appropriate at the hearing on this matter.  

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES 

I. INTRODUCTION 

Plaintiff has already been awarded $17,011.50 in attorneys’ fees from the Arbitration Panel.  
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Nonetheless, Plaintiff is seeking an additional $8,447.00 in fees and $613.20 in costs.  While First 

100 has no objection to the costs, there is simply no reason to award Plaintiff any additional fees than 

the generous (and unreduced) amount that the Arbitration Panel has already awarded. 

Plaintiff’s motion heavily relies on the Arbitration Panel’s finding that Defendants “avoid[ed] 

their statutory and contractual duties.”  Mot. at p. 4.  But attorneys’ fees have already been factored 

in and awarded to Plaintiff as a result of that finding that Plaintiff is now trying to seek a double-

recovery on.  There is no basis to award Plaintiff an amount in excess of $8,000.00 as a result of First 

100 filing (in good faith) a motion to modify the arbitration award. 

Accordingly, the Court should deny Plaintiff’s motion as it applies to the additional attorneys’ 

fees that Plaintiff is seeking.  

II. LEGAL ANALYSIS 

Attorney’s fees may not be awarded absent authority under a statute, rule, or contract.  See, 

e.g., Albios v. Horizon Communities, Inc., 122 Nev. 409, 417, 132 P.3d 1022, 1028 (2006); Bobby 

Berosini, Ltd. v. PETA, 114 Nev. 1348, 1352-53, 971 P.2d 383, 386 (1998).   

Pursuant to NRS 38.243, the Court may “add reasonable attorney’s fees and other reasonable 

expenses of litigation incurred in a judicial proceeding after the award is made to a judgment 

confirming, vacating without directing a rehearing, modifying or correcting an [arbitration] award.”  

Here, Plaintiff’s main basis for requesting fees and costs is the Arbitration Panel’s findings, 

but that is misplaced, as the Arbitration Panel already awarded significant fees to Plaintiff in support 

of its findings.   

First 100 only opposed Plaintiff’s motion to confirm the Arbitration Panel’s Award in a limited 

capacity, arguing that the award was incomplete and “imperfect” in light of First 100’s practical 

inability to comply with the Award without the Plaintiff first paying to First 100 the reasonable costs 

of obtaining and furnishing the company records.  First 100 did not set forth meritless arguments 

opposing the substance of the Arbitrator’s Award.  First 100 only set forth a limited opposition as to 

how that award would be applied.   While the Court ultimately did not find in favor of First 100, there 

is no basis for Plaintiff to attempt to claim that First 100 was filing that motion to modify in bad faith 

or in an effort to delay entry of a Final Award.   
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Tellingly, Plaintiff fails to cite to any cases where the court awarded attorneys’ fees consisting 

not only of those fees incurred in opposing a motion to modify an arbitration award but all fees 

incurred in simply drafting the motion to confirm the arbitration award and the motion seeking fees 

and cost following an arbitration hearing where the Arbitration Panel already awarded the moving 

party their attorneys’ fees.   

Even if the Court were to determine that First 100’s motion to modify was not brought in good 

faith and that Plaintiff is entitled to even more fees under NRS 38.243 than it has already been awarded 

from the Arbitration Panel, there is no basis for this Court to award any fees in excess of the time 

spent specifically on opposing First 100’s motion to modify the arbitration award.   

In other words, there is no basis to award Plaintiff the over $2,000 spent on preparing and 

filing its motion to confirm the arbitration award, just as there is no basis to award Plaintiff the over 

$2,000 spent on activities following the Court’s decision to confirm the arbitration award.  

Tellingly, the Court never made a finding that First 100 exercised bad faith in filing its motion 

to modify the Arbitration Panel’s award.  Nor did the Court determine that First 100’s motion was 

meritless or frivolous.   

Plaintiff’s sole basis for the fourth Brunzell factor is that it successfully defeated First 100’s 

motion to modify.  But the fees sought far exceed those incurred in defeating First 100’s motion to 

modify.  If the Court is inclined to award any additional fees (which First 100 contends it should not), 

such fees should not exceed those fees incurred by Plaintiff in specifically opposing Plaintiff’s motion 

to modify (which appears to be no more than $2,505 pursuant to Exhibit 1-B of Plaintiff’s motion for 

fees and costs.  This Court should recognize that Plaintiff seeking approximately $8,500.00 for motion 

practice that occurred after the Arbitration Panel issued its decision is beyond unreasonable and more 

importantly, lacking support from legal authorities.  As such, Plaintiff’s motion should be denied as 

it relates to the additional fees being sought.  

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 
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III. CONCLUSION 

Based on the foregoing, First 100 respectfully opposes Plaintiff’s motion for attorneys’ fees 

and costs as it relates to the more than $8,000 in attorneys’ fees being sought on top of the $17,011.50 

in attorneys’ fees that has already been awarded to Plaintiff from the Arbitration Panel. 

DATED this 24th day of November, 2020. 

 Respectfully submitted, 
 
MAIER GUTIERREZ & ASSOCIATES 

___/s/ Danielle J. Barraza________________ 

JOSEPH A. GUTIERREZ, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 9046 
DANIELLE J. BARRAZA, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 13822 
8816 Spanish Ridge Avenue 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89148 
Attorneys for First 100, LLC and 1st One 
Hundred Holdings, LLC 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 

 Pursuant to Administrative Order 14-2, a copy of the DEFENDANTS’ OPPOSITION TO 

MOTION FOR ATTORNEYS’ FEES AND COSTS was electronically filed on the 24th day of 

November, 2020, and served through the Notice of Electronic Filing automatically generated by the 

Court's facilities to those parties listed on the Court's Master Service List as follows: 

Erika P. Turner, Esq. 
GARMAN TURNER GORDON, LLP 

650 White Drive, Suite 100 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89119 

Attorneys for TGC Farkas Funding LLC 
 

 
 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

  

  

  

  

/s/ Danielle Barraza 

An Employee of MAIER GUTIERREZ & ASSOCIATES 
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RIS 
GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP 
ERIKA PIKE TURNER 
Nevada Bar No. 6454 
Email: eturner@gtg.legal 
DYLAN T. CICILIANO 
Nevada Bar. No. 12348 
Email: dciciliano@gtg.legal 
7251 Amigo Street, Suite 210 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89119 
Tel: (725) 777-3000 
Fax: (725) 777-3112 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 
 

DISTRICT COURT 
 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 
 
TGC/FARKAS FUNDING, LLC, 
 
                          Plaintiff, 
 
vs. 
 
FIRST 100, LLC, a Nevada Limited Liability 
Company; FIRST ONE HUNDRED 
HOLDINGS, LLC, a Nevada limited liability 
company aka 1st ONE HUNDRED HOLDINGS 
LLC, a Nevada Limited Liability Company, 
 

   Defendants. 

CASE NO.  A-20-822273-C 
DEPT. 13  
 
 
REPLY IN SUPPORT OF MOTION FOR 
ATTORNEYS’ FEES AND COSTS 
 
Date of Hearing: December 21, 2020 
Time of Hearing: 9:00 a.m. 
 

 

Plaintiff TGC/FARKAS FUNDING, LLC (“Plaintiff”), through counsel, Garman Turner 

Gordon LLP, hereby files its Reply in Support of its Motion for Attorneys’ Fees and Costs 

(“Reply”). 

 This Reply is based on the following Memorandum of Points and Authorities, the Motion 

for Attorneys’ Fees and Costs (the “Motion”), as well as the papers and pleadings already on file 

herein, and any oral argument the Court may permit at the hearing of this matter. 

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES 

I. 

INTRODUCTION 

The arguments contained in the Opposition to the Motion filed by Defendants First 100, 

LLC and First One Hundred Holdings, LLC’s (“Defendants”) are each fatally flawed. First, the 

Case Number: A-20-822273-C

Electronically Filed
12/14/2020 2:25 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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Motion does not seek any fees already included in the Final Award.1 The fees sought in the Motion 

are only those related to this judicial proceeding initiated for the purpose of confirming an 

arbitration award. Accordingly, there is no double recovery, and aside from hollow words, 

Defendants have not shown that any of the fees have already been awarded.  

Second, the Opposition argues that the Court should not award fees because the 

Countermotion to Modify brought in response to Plaintiff’s Motion to Confirm Arbitration Award 

was not meritless or brought in bad faith. While it was, NRS 38.243(3) does not require that the 

Court make any such finding with respect to the Countermotion to Modify. To the contrary, to 

grant fees and other expenses incurred in the contested judicial proceeding on the Motion to 

Confirm Arbitration Award under NRS 38.239 and the Countermotion to Modify under NRS 

38.242 is that the Court make his determinations and that a final judgment be entered resolving 

the motions in favor of Plaintiff.  See NRS 38.243(3). 

Finally, the Opposition argues that the Court limit an award of fees to only those fees 

related to the Countermotion to Modify. NRS 38.243(3), however, does not limit the award to fees 

associated with the contested matter, but instead extends to all “reasonable attorney's fees and other 

reasonable expenses of litigation incurred in a judicial proceeding after the award is made to a 

judgment confirming, vacating without directing a rehearing, modifying or correcting an award.” 

NRS 38.243(3). Thus, all fees “incurred in a judicial proceeding after the [Final Award]” are 

encompassed by the statute. As the prevailing party, Plaintiff should be awarded fees in the amount 

of $8,447.00 and costs in the amount of $613.20. 

II. 

LEGAL ARGUMENT 

A. Plaintiff should be awarded its attorneys’ fees and costs . 

Under NRS 38.243(3), a district court may, “[o]n application of a prevailing party to a 

contested judicial proceeding under NRS 38.239, 38.241 or 38.242, ... add reasonable attorney[ ] 

 
1 All capitalized terms shall have the same definitions as ascribed to them in the Motion. 
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fees and other reasonable expenses of litigation incurred ... after the [arbitration] award is made to 

a judgment confirming... an award.” Artemis Expl. Co. v. Ruby Lake Estates Homeowner's Ass'n, 

464 P.3d 124 (Nev. 2020); Sanchez v. Elizondo, , 2018 WL 5833052, at *1 (D. Nev. Nov. 7, 2018). 

Unlike other statutory schemes (see e.g. NRS 18.010(2)(b)(requiring vexatious litigation)), there 

is no requirement that the Court find that the Countermotion to Modify was brought in bad faith 

or was meritless. Instead, the only requirement is that Plaintiff prevailed in a contested judicial 

proceeding. 

Here, this proceeding was contested, as Defendants sought to modify the arbitration award 

pursuant to NRS 38.242. (See Countermotion to Modify). As the Court denied the Countermotion 

to Modify, Plaintiff is the prevailing party to a contested judicial proceeding and may apply for 

fees and costs under NRS 38.243. Thus, the Court has authority to award fees and costs. 

1. Defendants’ conduct underlying the Final Award warrants an award of further 

fees and costs. 

While there is no requirement that the Court find that the Countermotion to Modify was 

meritless, the merits and nature of the Countermotion to Modify, as well as Defendants’ conduct, 

militate in favor of an award of fees and costs. 

Defendants continue to take every action to deny Plaintiff the ordered relief—access to 

Defendants’ book and records. The Final Award ordered that Defendants make their books and 

records available to Plaintiff by September 25, 2020. (Final Order at p. 5). Defendants failed to 

seek relief from the Final Order from the arbitrators. NRS 38.237(setting a 20 day deadline to seek 

relief). Three months have passed since the expiration of the Final Order’s deadline to produce 

records.  Additionally, a month has passed since this Court confirmed the Final Award and ordered 

that the same records be produced. (Order Granting Plaintiff’s Motion to Confirm Arbitration 

Award and Denying Defendants’ Countermotion to Modify Award; and Judgment (the 

“Judgment”), on file herein, a p.3). To date, Defendants have not complied with the Final Award 

or Judgment and are still withhold the records that were ordered to be produced. 

There also can be no dispute that Defendants are unwilling to produce records 
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demonstrating what happened to Plaintiff’s $1,000,000 investment and have been unwilling to do 

so for years. The unimpeached recover before the Court is that Defendants have engaged in a “long 

and bad faith effort by [Defendants] to avoid their statutory and contractual duties” to permit 

Plaintiff to inspect Defendants’ book and records. (Final Award at p. 2)(emphasis added). That 

finding is established law of the case.  

Defendants’ Countermotion to Modify was yet another attempt to deny Plaintiff’s statutory 

and contractual rights. Defendants requested that the Court condition Plaintiff’s receipt of ordered 

records upon Plaintiff’s payment of unspecified attorney’s fees and costs. As found by the Court, 

the requested “modification” was not permitted under NRS 38.242. (Judgment at p. 2:24-27). 

Accordingly, the Countermotion to Modify was without legal authority and meritless. 

NRS 38.243 provides that there are consequences when a party unsuccessfully seeks to 

modify an arbitration award—the award to the opposing parties of fees and costs. Those 

consequences become more important when, as is the case here, Defendants are attempting to 

defeat the arbitration award and have consistently and continuously failed to comply with their 

contractual and statutory obligations. Thus, the Court should award Plaintiff its fees and costs from 

the date of the Final Award pursuant to NRS 38.243. 

B. Plaintiff’s fees are reasonable under Brunzell. 

Defendants only dispute whether certain fees should be recovered by Plaintiff, not whether 

the time expended and rates of Plaintiff’s counsel were reasonable.  

Defendants’ first gripe is that “Plaintiff is now trying to seek a double-recovery,” i.e. fees 

that were already considered or awarded by the panel. (Opposition at p. 2:6-7). That is simply not 

true, and Defendants have submitted no evidence that any fees being sought in the Motion were 

incurred prior to the Final Award. To the contrary, the Final Award was entered on September 15, 

2020. (Motion at Exh. 1-A). The Motion seeks to recover fees arising on and after September 29, 

2020. (Id. at Exh. 1-B). Thus, the fees were not awarded as part of the Final Award and could not 

have been considered by the panel. 

Defendants next complain that the fees sought by Plaintiff include fees related to the 
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Motion to Confirm Arbitration Award. Indeed, they do. However, NRS 38.243(3) extends to all 

“reasonable attorney's fees and other reasonable expenses of litigation incurred in a judicial 

proceeding after the award is made to a judgment confirming, vacating without directing a 

rehearing, modifying or correcting an award.” NRS 38.243(3). NRS 38.243(3) does not limit fees 

to the contested proceeding, but instead includes all fees incurred in a “judicial proceeding” after 

the final award. The Motion to Confirm Arbitration Award was part of this judicial proceeding 

and were incurred after the Final Award. Thus, NRS 38.243 the recovery of all fees sought in the 

Motion. 

Even if the Court were to attempt to parse the fees, of the $8,447.00 in fees sought, only 

$2,206, amounting to 7 hours of attorney work, pertained solely to the Motion to Confirm 

Arbitration Award. (Motion at Exhibit 1-B, entries from 9/29/2020 to 10/1/2020). The remaining 

$6,241.00 in fees relate to the opposition to Countermotion to Modify, the hearing, the related 

order, and the Motion. (Id. at Exh. 1-B, entries from 10/16/2020 to 11/12/2020). Accordingly, even 

if Plaintiff could not recover the fees that predate the Countermotion to Modify, Plaintiff would 

still be entitled to $6,241.00 in fees. 

C. Defendants admit Plaintiff can recover its costs and that the costs are reasonable. 

The Motion seeks costs in the amount of $613.20. As set forth in Opposition, Defendants 

have “no objection to the costs.” Accordingly, the Court should award Plaintiff its costs. 

/// 

/// 

/// 

/// 

/// 

/// 

/// 

/// 

/// 
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IIII. 

CONCLUSION 

Based upon the foregoing, Plaintiff respectfully requests that the Court grant the Motion, 

and award Plaintiff an award of attorneys’ fees in the amount of $8,447.00, and costs in the amount 

of $613.20. 

DATED this 14th day of December, 2020.  

   GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP 

  /s/ Dylan T. Ciciliano      
ERIKA PIKE TURNER  
Nevada Bar No. 6454 
DYLAN T. CICILIANO  
Nevada Bar. No. 12348 
7251 Amigo Street, Suite 210 
Tel: (725) 777-3000 
Fax: (725) 777-3112  
Attorneys for Plaintiff   
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

The undersigned, hereby certifies that on the 14th day of December, 2020, he served a copy 

of the REPLY IN SUPPORT OF MOTION FOR ATTORNEYS’ FEES AND COSTS, by 

electronic service in accordance with Administrative Order 14.2, to all interested parties, through 

the Court’s Odyssey E-File & Serve system addressed to: 

Joseph A. Gutierrez, Esq.  
Danielle J. Barraza, Esq.  
MAIER GUTIERREZ & ASSOCIATES  
8816 Spanish Ridge Avenue 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89148 
Email: jag@mgalaw.com 
           djb@mgalaw.com 
Attorneys for Defendants 
 
 
 

 
 /s/ Max Erwin 
An Employee of  
GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP
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EPAP 
GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP 
ERIKA PIKE TURNER 
Nevada Bar No. 6454 
Email: eturner@gtg.legal 
DYLAN T. CICILIANO 
Nevada Bar. No. 12348 
Email: dciciliano@gtg.legal 
7251 Amigo Street, Suite 210 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89119 
Tel: (725) 777-3000 
Fax: (725) 777-3112 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 
 

DISTRICT COURT 
 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 
 
TGC/FARKAS FUNDING, LLC, 
 
                          Plaintiff, 
 
vs. 
 
FIRST 100, LLC, a Nevada Limited Liability 
Company; FIRST ONE HUNDRED 
HOLDINGS, LLC, a Nevada limited liability 
company aka 1st ONE HUNDRED HOLDINGS 
LLC, a Nevada Limited Liability Company, 
 

   Defendants. 

CASE NO.  A-20-822273-C 
DEPT. 13  
 
 
PLAINTIFF’S EX PARTE APPLICATION 
FOR ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE WHY 
DEFENDANTS AND JAY BLOOM 
SHOULD NOT BE HELD IN CONTEMPT 
OF COURT 
 

 

Plaintiff TGC/FARKAS FUNDING, LLC (“Plaintiff”), by and through counsel, the law 

firm of Garman Turner Gordon LLP, respectfully requests that this Court issue an Order to Show 

Cause why Defendants/Judgment Debtors FIRST 100, LLC and FIRST ONE HUNDRED 

HOLDINGS, LLC, aka 1st ONE HUNDRED HOLDINGS LLC (the “Defendants”) and their agent 

Jay Bloom (“Bloom”), should not be held in contempt for failing to comply with the Order 

Granting Plaintiff’s Motion to Confirm Arbitration Award and Denying Defendant’s 

Countermotion to Modify Award; and Judgment (“Orders”), and Plaintiff requests that this Court, 

upon hearing, to enter an Order of Contempt. 

This Application is based upon the Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure (“NRCP”), the 

Nevada Revised Statutes (“NRS”), the Memorandum of Points and Authorities attached hereto,  

as well as the pleadings and papers on file herein, and any oral argument by counsel as the Court 

Case Number: A-20-822273-C

Electronically Filed
12/18/2020 11:27 AM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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may allow. 

DATED this 18th day of December, 2020. 

   GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP 

  /s/ Erika Pike Turner 
ERIKA PIKE TURNER  
Nevada Bar No. 6454 
DYLAN T. CICILIANO  
Nevada Bar. No. 12348 
7251 Amigo Street, Suite 210 
Tel: (725) 777-3000 
Fax: (725) 777-3112 
Attorneys for Plaintiff  

DECLARATION OF DYLAN T. CICILIANO IN SUPPORT OF EX PARTE 
APPLICATION FOR ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE WHY DEFENDANTS AND JAY 

BLOOM SHOULD NOT BE HELD IN CONTEMPT OF COURT, AND STATEMENT 
OF RELEVANT FACTS  

Dylan T. Ciciliano, declares and states as follows: 

1. I am an attorney licensed to practice law in the State of Nevada and am an associate

in the law firm of Garman Turner Gordon, attorneys for the Plaintiff. I am competent to testify to 

the matters asserted herein, of which I have personal knowledge, except as to those matters stated 

upon information and belief.  As to those matters stated upon information and belief, I believe 

them to be true. 

2. I make this declaration in support of the Application.

3. On September 15, 2020, an Arbitration Panel entered its Decision and AWARD of

Arbitration Panel (1) Compelling Production of Company Records; and (2) Ordering 

Reimbursement of Claimant’s Attorneys’ Fees and Costs (the “Final Award”). The Final Award 

ordered that “Respondents [were] to forthwith, but no later than ten (10) calendar days from the 

date of this AWARD, make all the requested documents and information available from both 

companies to Claimant for inspection and copying.” 

4. On November 17, 2020, this Court entered Order Granting Plaintiff’s Motion to

Confirm Arbitration Award and Denying Defendant’s Countermotion to Modify Award; and 
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Judgment (the “Judgment”). 

5. The Judgment provided, in pertinent part, as follows:

Defendants shall make all the requested documents and information available from 
both companies to Plaintiff for inspection and copying, as set forth in the Final 
Award and Exhibit 13 to Claimant’s Appendix to Claimant’s Arbitration Brief. 

6. As of the date of this Application, Defendants have not complied with Judgment

or the Final Order. 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Nevada that the foregoing 

statements are true and correct to the best of my knowledge. 

Dated this 18th day of December 2020. 

 /s/ Dylan T. Ciciliano  
DYLAN T. CICILIANO, Declarant 

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES 

I. THE COURT SHOULD ISSUE AN ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE WHY
DEFENDANTS AND JAY BLOOM SHOULD NOT BE HELD IN CONTEMPT OF
THE ORDERS.

“Disobedience or resistance to any lawful writ, order, rule or process issued by the court

or judge at chambers” is contempt. NRS § 22.010(3). “person[s] fail[] to act as ordered by the 

court when [they fail] to take ‘all the reasonable steps within [their] power to insure compliance 

with the [Court’s] order . . . .” In re Crystal Palace Gambling Hall, Inc., 817 F.2d 1361, 1365 (9th 

Cir 1987) (citations omitted). The Nevada Supreme Court has long held that disobedience or 

resistance to any order of the Court constitutes a prima facie contempt of court. See City Council 

of Reno v. Reno Newspapers, Inc., 105 Nev. 886, 889, 784 P.2d 974, 976 (1989). Moreover, 

disobedience of an order of a court in supplementary proceedings is expressly punishable as 

contempt. See NRS § 21.340. 

Courts have inherent power to enforce their decrees through civil contempt proceedings. 

See, In re Determination of the Relative Rights of the Claimants and Appropriators of the Waters 

of the Humboldt River Stream & Tributaries, 118 Nev. 901, 909, 59 P.3d 1226, 1231 (2002). 

Moreover, NRS § 22.030 provides that when the “contempt is not committed in the immediate 
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view and presence of the court or judge at chambers, an affidavit must be presented to the court or 

judge of the facts constituting the contempt, or a statement of the facts by the masters or 

arbitrators.” NRS § 22.030(2).   

Plaintiff “invested $1 million into the business of [Defendants] in exchange for a” 

membership interest in Defendants (Final Award, October 1, 2020 Motion to Confirm Arbitration 

Award, at Exhibit 1, at p. 2). Beginning on May 2, 2017, Plaintiff made requests to inspect 

Defendants’ records pursuant to its status as a member of Defendants. (Id.). Immediately 

thereafter, despite conceding that Plaintiff were members, Defendants’ refused to produce the 

company records, which the Arbitration panel found to be “the first in a long and bad faith effort 

by [Defendants] to avoid their statutory and contractual duties to a member to produce 

requested records.” (Id.)(emphasis added). Plaintiff made an additional demand for records on 

September 13, 2019. (Id. at p. 3). Defendants again refused. (Id.). 

Plaintiff filed its arbitration demand on January 7, 2020, in order to enforce its rights as a 

member of Defendants to obtain business records from Defendants. On September 15, 2020, the 

Panel entered its Final Award, wherein it compelled Defendants to produce the requested records 

by September 25, 2020. (Id.). 

On November 17, 2020, this Court entered Order Granting Plaintiff’s Motion to Confirm 

Arbitration Award and Denying Defendant’s Countermotion to Modify Award; and Judgment (the 

“Judgment”). Judgment, on file herein. The Judgment likewise ordered Defendants to provide 

business records to Plaintiff as required in the Final Order. Id.  

As Defendants’ confirmed, Jay Bloom is the “principal, founding director, and chairman 

of the Board of Directors of First 100, LLC and 1st One Hundred Holdings, LLC.” Defendants’ 

Limited Opposition to Motion to Confirm Arbitration Award and Countermotion to Modify Award 

per NRS 38.242, at Exh. A. He has the ability and control to cause Defendants to comply with the 

Final Order and Judgment.  

As set forth in the Declaration of Plaintiff’s counsel, Dylan T. Ciciliano, Esq., despite the 

fact that Defendants were ordered to produce the records by September 25, 2020, Defendants have 
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failed to do so. Nearly three months have passed since the deadline has expired.  

Without any doubt, the Final Order and Judgment were properly entered. Plaintiff properly 

served the Judgment. Not only did Defendants fail to abide by the Judgment, but they have 

intentionally acted to deny Plaintiff its statutory and contractual rights over a period of years. 

Defendants understand the significance of this Court’s Orders and the implications of disobeying 

it. The Orders are clear and unambiguous, and there is absolutely no justifiable reason for 

Defendants complete disregard for this Court’s authority. 

Therefore, Plaintiff asks the Court to issue an Order to Show Cause Why Defendants and 

Jay Bloom Should Not Be Held in Contempt of Court and then, upon hearing, issue an order 

holding Defendants and Jay Bloom in contempt, with all its consequences, until such time as they 

comply with the Order by producing all of the documents required by the Judgment and that the 

payment of the fees entered as part of the Judgment, as well as this application, be a condition 

precedent to ending Defendants and Jay Bloom’s contempt sanction.   

II. CONCLUSION

Plaintiff requests that this Court issue an Order to Show Cause Why Defendants and Jay

Bloom Should Not Be Held in Contempt of Court for failing to produce documents in compliance 

with this Court’s Judgment; Plaintiff requests that this Court, upon hearing, enter an order holding 

Defendants and Jay Bloom in contempt, until such time as they comply with the Judgment by 

producing all of the documents and that the payment of the amount due under the Judgment and 

the fees associated with this Application be a condition precedent to ending their contempt 

sanction. 

DATED this 18th day of December, 2020. 

   GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP 

  /s/ Erika Pike Turner 
ERIKA PIKE TURNER  
Nevada Bar No. 6454 
DYLAN T. CICILIANO  
Nevada Bar. No. 12348 
7251 Amigo Street, Suite 210 
Tel: (725) 777-3000 

  Attorneys for Plaintiff 
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ORDG 
GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP 
ERIKA PIKE TURNER 
Nevada Bar No. 6454 
Email: eturner@gtg.legal 
DYLAN T. CICILIANO 
Nevada Bar. No. 12348 
Email: dciciliano@gtg.legal 
7251 Amigo Street, Suite 210 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89119 
Tel: (725) 777-3000 
Fax: (725) 777-3112 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 
 

DISTRICT COURT 
 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 
 
TGC/FARKAS FUNDING, LLC, 
 
                          Plaintiff, 
 
vs. 
 
FIRST 100, LLC, a Nevada Limited Liability 
Company; FIRST ONE HUNDRED 
HOLDINGS, LLC, a Nevada limited liability 
company aka 1st ONE HUNDRED HOLDINGS 
LLC, a Nevada Limited Liability Company, 
 

   Defendants. 

CASE NO.  A-20-822273-C 
DEPT. 13  
 
 
ORDER GRANTING PLAINTIFF’S EX 
PARTE APPLICATION FOR ORDER TO 
SHOW CAUSE WHY DEFENDANTS AND 
JAY BLOOM SHOULD NOT BE HELD IN 
CONTEMPT OF COURT 
 

 

The Court, having considered Plaintiff and Judgment Creditor TGC/FARKAS FUNDING, 

LLC’s (the “Judgment Creditor”) Ex Parte Application for Order to Show Cause Why Defendants 

and Jay Bloom Should Not Be Held in Contempt of Court (the “Application”), is GRANTED. 

IT IS THEREFORE HEREBY ORDERED that on the _____________ of _____, 2021, at 

the hour of _________ o’clock a.m./p.m., Defendants and Jay Bloom shall appear and show cause, 

if any, why they should not be held in contempt of the Order Granting Plaintiff’s Motion to 

Confirm Arbitration Award and Denying Defendant’s Countermotion to Modify Award; and 

Judgment. 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 
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2 

IT IS FURTHER HEREBY ORDERED that Plaintiff shall serve Defendants and Jay 

Bloom, a copy of the Application, and this Order to Show Cause, immediately upon its entry and 

no later than _______,______, 2021. 

 

 IT IS SO ORDERED this _____ day of        ,  . 

       

 
        

     DISTRICT COURT JUDGE 

 

 

Prepared and submitted by:  

GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP 

  /s/ Erika Pike Turner    
ERIKA PIKE TURNER  
Nevada Bar No. 6454 
DYLAN T. CICILIANO  
Nevada Bar. No. 12348 
7251 Amigo Street, Suite 210 
Tel: (725) 777-3000 
Fax: (725) 777-3112  
Attorneys for Plaintiff  
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NEOJ 
GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP 
ERIKA PIKE TURNER 
Nevada Bar No. 6454 
Email: eturner@gtg.legal 
DYLAN T. CICILIANO 
Nevada Bar. No. 12348 
Email: dciciliano@gtg.legal 
7251 Amigo Street, Suite 210 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89119 
Tel: (725) 777-3000 
Fax: (725) 777-3112 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 
 

DISTRICT COURT 
 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 
 
TGC/FARKAS FUNDING, LLC, 
 
                          Plaintiff, 
 
vs. 
 
FIRST 100, LLC, a Nevada Limited Liability 
Company; FIRST ONE HUNDRED 
HOLDINGS, LLC, a Nevada limited liability 
company aka 1st ONE HUNDRED HOLDINGS 
LLC, a Nevada Limited Liability Company, 
 

  Defendants. 

CASE NO.  A-20-822273-C 
DEPT. 13  
 
 
NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER 
GRANTING PLAINTIFF’S EX PARTE 
APPLICATION FOR ORDER TO SHOW 
CAUSE WHY DEFENDANTS AND JAY 
BLOOM SHOULD NOT BE HELD IN 
CONTEMPT OF COURT 
 

 
NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER GRANTING PLAINTIFF’S EX PARTE 

APPLICATION FOR ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE WHY DEFENDANTS AND JAY 
BLOOM SHOULD NOT BE HELD IN CONTEMPT OF COURT 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that an Order Granting Plaintiff’s Ex Parte Application for 

Order to Show Cause Why Defendants and Jay Bloom Should Not Be Held in Contempt of Court, 

a copy of which is attached hereto, was entered in the above-captioned case on the 18th day of 

December, 2020. 

DATED this 21st day of December, 2020.  

   GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP 

  /s/ Erika Pike Turner      
ERIKA PIKE TURNER (NV Bar No. 6454) 
DYLAN T. CICILIANO (NV Bar. No. 12348) 
7251 Amigo Street, Suite 210 
Tel: (725) 777-3000/Fax: (725) 777-3112  
Attorneys for Plaintiff   

Case Number: A-20-822273-C

Electronically Filed
12/21/2020 9:56 AM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

The undersigned, hereby certifies that on the 21st day of December, 2020, he served a copy 

of the NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER GRANTING PLAINTIFF’S EX PARTE 

APPLICATION FOR ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE WHY DEFENDANTS AND JAY 

BLOOM SHOULD NOT BE HELD IN CONTEMPT OF COURT, by electronic service in 

accordance with Administrative Order 14.2, to all interested parties, through the Court’s Odyssey 

E-File & Serve system addressed to: 

Joseph A. Gutierrez, Esq.  
Danielle J. Barraza, Esq.  
MAIER GUTIERREZ & ASSOCIATES  
8816 Spanish Ridge Avenue 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89148 
Email: jag@mgalaw.com 
           djb@mgalaw.com 
Attorneys for Defendants 
 

 I further certify that I served a copy of this document by mailing a true and correct copy 

thereof via regular U.S. Mail, addressed to: 
 
First 100, LLC 
c/o Business Filings Incorporated 
108 W. 13th Street,  
Wilmington, DE 19801 

First One Hundred Holdings, LLC aka  
1st One Hundred Holdings LLC 
c/o SJC Ventures LLC 
10170 W. Tropicana Ave., #156-290 
Las Vegas, NV 89147 

 
 
 
 

 
 /s/ Max Erwin 
An Employee of  
GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP
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ORDG 
GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP 
ERIKA PIKE TURNER 
Nevada Bar No. 6454 
Email: eturner@gtg.legal 
DYLAN T. CICILIANO 
Nevada Bar. No. 12348 
Email: dciciliano@gtg.legal 
7251 Amigo Street, Suite 210 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89119 
Tel: (725) 777-3000 
Fax: (725) 777-3112 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 
 

DISTRICT COURT 
 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 
 
TGC/FARKAS FUNDING, LLC, 
 
                          Plaintiff, 
 
vs. 
 
FIRST 100, LLC, a Nevada Limited Liability 
Company; FIRST ONE HUNDRED 
HOLDINGS, LLC, a Nevada limited liability 
company aka 1st ONE HUNDRED HOLDINGS 
LLC, a Nevada Limited Liability Company, 
 

   Defendants. 

CASE NO.  A-20-822273-C 
DEPT. 13  
 
 
ORDER GRANTING PLAINTIFF’S EX 
PARTE APPLICATION FOR ORDER TO 
SHOW CAUSE WHY DEFENDANTS AND 
JAY BLOOM SHOULD NOT BE HELD IN 
CONTEMPT OF COURT 
 

 

The Court, having considered Plaintiff and Judgment Creditor TGC/FARKAS FUNDING, 

LLC’s (the “Judgment Creditor”) Ex Parte Application for Order to Show Cause Why Defendants 

and Jay Bloom Should Not Be Held in Contempt of Court (the “Application”), is GRANTED. 

IT IS THEREFORE HEREBY ORDERED that on the _____________ of _____, 2021, at 

the hour of _________ o’clock a.m./p.m., Defendants and Jay Bloom shall appear and show cause, 

if any, why they should not be held in contempt of the Order Granting Plaintiff’s Motion to 

Confirm Arbitration Award and Denying Defendant’s Countermotion to Modify Award; and 

Judgment. 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

9

January21st

Electronically Filed
12/18/2020 7:37 PM

Case Number: A-20-822273-C

ELECTRONICALLY SERVED
12/18/2020 7:37 PM
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2 

IT IS FURTHER HEREBY ORDERED that Plaintiff shall serve Defendants and Jay 

Bloom, a copy of the Application, and this Order to Show Cause, immediately upon its entry and 

no later than _______,______, 2021. 

 

 IT IS SO ORDERED this _____ day of        ,  . 

       

 
        

     DISTRICT COURT JUDGE 

 

 

Prepared and submitted by:  

GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP 

  /s/ Erika Pike Turner    
ERIKA PIKE TURNER  
Nevada Bar No. 6454 
DYLAN T. CICILIANO  
Nevada Bar. No. 12348 
7251 Amigo Street, Suite 210 
Tel: (725) 777-3000 
Fax: (725) 777-3112  
Attorneys for Plaintiff  

 

January 6

AA0154



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

CSERV

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

CASE NO: A-20-822273-CTGC/Farkas Funding, LLC, 

Plaintiff(s)

vs. 

First 100, LLC, Defendant(s)

DEPT. NO.  Department 13

AUTOMATED CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

This automated certificate of service was generated by the Eighth Judicial District 

Court. The foregoing Order to Show Cause was served via the court’s electronic eFile system 

to all recipients registered for e-Service on the above entitled case as listed below:

Service Date: 12/18/2020

Dylan Ciciliano dciciliano@gtg.legal

Erika Turner eturner@gtg.legal

MGA Docketing docket@mgalaw.com

Tonya Binns tbinns@gtg.legal

Max Erwin merwin@gtg.legal
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RSPN 
JASON R. MAIER, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 8557 
JOSEPH A. GUTIERREZ, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 9046 
DANIELLE J. BARRAZA, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 13822 
MAIER GUTIERREZ & ASSOCIATES 
8816 Spanish Ridge Avenue 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89148 
Telephone: (702) 629-7900 
Facsimile: (702) 629-7925 
E-mail: jrm@mgalaw.com 
 jag@mgalaw.com 
 djb@mgalaw.com 
 
Attorneys for Defendants First 100, LLC 
and 1st One Hundred Holdings, LLC 
and Jay Bloom 
 
 
 
 

DISTRICT COURT 
 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 
 
 
TGC FARKAS FUNDING, LLC, 
 

Plaintiff, 
 
vs. 
 
FIRST 100, LLC, a Nevada limited liability 
company; 1st ONE HUNDRED HOLDINGS, 
LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, 
 

Defendants. 
 

 
Case No:  A-20-822273-C 
Dept. No.:      XIII 
 
DEFENDANTS AND NON-PARTY JAY 
BLOOM’S RESPONSE TO ORDER TO 
SHOW CAUSE 
 
 

 
 
 Defendants First 100, LLC and 1st One Hundred Holdings, LLC (collectively “First 100”) and 

non-party Jay Bloom (“Mr. Bloom”), by and through their attorneys of record, the law firm MAIER 

GUTIERREZ & ASSOCIATES, hereby submit this response to the Court’s order to show cause why First 

100 and non-party Bloom should not be held in contempt of Court.  This response is based on the 

following Memorandum of Points and Authorities, the exhibits attached hereto, and any oral argument 

entertained at the hearing on the motion.  

/ / / 

Case Number: A-20-822273-C

Electronically Filed
1/20/2021 2:49 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES 

I. INTRODUCTION 

This show-cause hearing is moot because this case has settled and the Court vacated the show-

cause hearing originally set for January 21, 2021, in conjunction with granting First 100’s order 

shortening time contained within its motion to enforce the settlement agreement. 

In any event, non-party Jay Bloom has zero liability for any debts or responsibilities of First 

100, and therefore should not be held in contempt for failing to abide by an arbitration award that does 

not pertain to him and that he has nothing to do with.  Crucially, neither the arbitrator nor this Court 

have ever found Mr. Bloom to be the alter ego of First 100, and Plaintiff’s speculative claim that Mr. 

Bloom personally has the “ability and control to cause Defendants to comply with the Final Order and 

Judgment” is complete nonsense supported by zero facts or evidence.  See Ex Parte Application for 

Order to Show Cause at p. 4, on file.   

Further, First 100 has no financial ability to comply with the pending order.  If Plaintiff is 

willing to pay for an accounting of First 100’s records, then First 100 can make such arrangements, 

but First 100 cannot create and compile the requested company documents and make them available 

for inspection and copying to Plaintiff, as it is impossible to do so without retaining an accountant – 

which First 100 does not have the financial capacity to do. 

As such, cause has been shown as to why non-party Jay Bloom (who has nothing to do with 

this case) has not complied with an order that has nothing to do with him, and as to why First 100 is 

incapable of abiding by the order due to financial constraints.  

II. LEGAL ARGUMENT 

A. THE SHOW-CAUSE HEARING IS MOOT 

On January 19, 2021, the Court signed an order shortening time with respect to First 100’s 

motion to enforce the settlement agreement executed by the parties.  That order shortening time 

indicates that “the show cause hearing scheduled for January 21, 2021 is continued until further order 

of the Court.”  See Motion to Enforce Settlement at p. 5, on file.  

As such, the show-cause hearing that is still on the Court’s docket for January 21, 2021, should 

be vacated accordingly, as the Court has elected to first adjudicate the issue of the parties’ settlement, 

AA0210
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as any finding of a valid settlement would completely moot this show-cause hearing.  

B. NON-PARTY JAY BLOOM HAS NOT VIOLATED ANY ORDER 

It should go without saying that because Jay Bloom is not a party to this case, and because he 

has never been the subject of any orders from this Court, it is impossible for him to somehow be in 

violation of any orders, which makes it simple for him to “show cause” as to why he should not be 

held in contempt for failing to follow an order that does not pertain to him. 

Plaintiff’s sole “argument” for trying to implicate Mr. Bloom in this case is by virtue of Mr. 

Bloom’s status as principal and founding director of First 100, LLC and 1st One Hundred Holdings, 

LLC – limited liability companies that are completely separate from Mr. Bloom personally.  But 

pursuant to NRS 86.371, “[u]nless otherwise provided in the articles of organization or an agreement 

signed by the member or manager to be charged, no member or manager of any limited-liability 

company formed under the laws of this State is individually liable for the debts or liabilities of the 

company.”  (emphasis added). 

No judgment was obtained against Mr. Bloom in this action, therefore Mr. Bloom has zero 

personal liability for the judgment obtained against First 100, LLC and First One Hundred Holdings, 

LLC.  Further, no alter ego findings were made in the action as it relates to Mr. Bloom and First 100, 

LLC and First One Hundred Holdings, LLC, and Mr. Bloom obviously would have made arguments 

establishing the lack of any alter ego relationship had he been put on notice of any such allegation 

which was never made. 

Nevertheless, Plaintiff is attempting to unilaterally pierce the corporate veil without having 

ever successfully obtained an alter ego finding, and without ever lodging an alter ego claim where 

Plaintiff would have been required to prove the existence of an alter ego relationship pursuant to the 

factors set forth in LFC Marketing Group, Inc. v. Loomis, 116 Nev. 896, 904, 8 P.3d 841, 846 (2000).   

Plaintiff’s claim that non-party Mr. Bloom has somehow violated this Court’s orders 

constitutes a blatant attempt to obstruct the statutory and legal authorities regarding the non-liability 

of members or managers of LLCs with respect to the debt and responsibilities of LLCs, and should 

not be tolerated by the Court.  

/ / / 
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C. FIRST 100 DOES NOT HAVE FINANCIAL ABILITY TO COMPLY WITH THE ORDER 

While First 100 acknowledges that the Court has ordered First 100 to make its financial records  

(including balance sheets and profit and loss statements, documents relating to First 100’s assets, and 

tax returns) available to Plaintiff for inspection and copying, the records need to be compiled and in 

some cases created and there is no way for First 100 to abide by this order without retaining a 

professional accountant. 

However, First 100 does not have the financial resources to hire an accountant, and can only 

comply with the Court’s order if Plaintiff pays First 100’s accounting costs in order to effectuate 

compliance with the Court’s order.  See NRS 86.243(3), the “district court may . . . order the company 

to furnish the demanding member or manager the records . . . on the condition that the demanding 

member or manager first pay to the company the reasonable cost of obtaining and furnishing such 

records and on such other conditions as the district court deems appropriate.”  

Plaintiff has long-known that First 100 has no means of complying with the Court’s order 

without Plaintiff paying accounting costs, yet Plaintiff is still somehow arguing that First 100 is 

intentionally violating the Court’s order.  First 100 is doing no such thing, as it is simply impossible 

to comply with an order without having the financial means to do so.  First 100 has no employees, no 

offices, and has not been operational in over three years.  There is no one available to gather the 

documents that Plaintiff has requested and produce them.  Thus, cause has been shown, as it is 

impossible for First 100 to comply with the order as stated. 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 
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III. CONCLUSION 

Based on the foregoing, non-party Jay Bloom (who has nothing to do with any order issued 

by the Court), along with First 100, LLC and 1st One Hundred Holdings, LLC, have shown adequate 

cause as to why they should not be held in contempt. 

DATED this 20th day of January, 2021. 

 Respectfully submitted, 
 
MAIER GUTIERREZ & ASSOCIATES 

__/s/ Joseph A. Gutierrez______________ 
JASON R. MAIER, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 8557 
JOSEPH A. GUTIERREZ, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 9046 
DANIELLE J. BARRAZA, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 13822 
8816 Spanish Ridge Avenue 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89148 
Attorneys for First 100, LLC and 1st One 
Hundred Holdings, LLC 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
 
 Pursuant to Administrative Order 14-2, a copy of the DEFENDANTS AND NON-PARTY 

JAY BLOOM’S RESPONSE TO ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE was electronically filed on the 

20th day of January, 2021, and served through the Notice of Electronic Filing automatically 

generated by the Court's facilities to those parties listed on the Court's Master Service List as 

follows: 

Erika P. Turner, Esq. 
GARMAN TURNER GORDON, LLP 

650 White Drive, Suite 100 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89119 

Attorneys for TGC Farkas Funding LLC 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 
 

 

 

 

  

  

  

  

/s/ Natalie Vazquez 
An Employee of MAIER GUTIERREZ & ASSOCIATES 
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SUPP 
GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP 
ERIKA PIKE TURNER 
Nevada Bar No. 6454 
Email: eturner@gtg.legal 
DYLAN T. CICILIANO 
Nevada Bar. No. 12348 
Email: dciciliano@gtg.legal 
7251 Amigo Street, Suite 210 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89119 
Tel: (725) 777-3000 
Fax: (725) 777-3112 
Attorneys for Plaintiff/Judgment Creditor 
 

DISTRICT COURT 
 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 
 
TGC/FARKAS FUNDING, LLC, 
 
                          Plaintiff, 
 
vs. 
 
FIRST 100, LLC, a Nevada Limited Liability 
Company; FIRST ONE HUNDRED 
HOLDINGS, LLC, a Nevada limited liability 
company aka 1st ONE HUNDRED HOLDINGS 
LLC, a Nevada Limited Liability Company, 
 

   Defendants. 

CASE NO.  A-20-822273-C 
DEPT. 13  
 
 
SUPPLEMENT TO PLAINTIFF’S EX 
PARTE APPLICATION FOR ORDER TO 
SHOW CAUSE WHY DEFENDANTS AND 
JAY BLOOM SHOULD NOT BE HELD IN 
CONTEMPT OF COURT 
 
Date of Hearing:  January 21, 2021 

 

Plaintiff/Judgment Creditor TGC/FARKAS FUNDING, LLC (“Plaintiff”), by and through 

counsel, the law firm of Garman Turner Gordon LLP, hereby submits its supplement to its request 

for Order to Show Cause why Defendants/Judgment Debtors FIRST 100, LLC and FIRST ONE 

HUNDRED HOLDINGS, LLC, aka 1st ONE HUNDRED HOLDINGS LLC (the “Defendants”) 

and their manager Jay Bloom (“Bloom”) should not be held in contempt for failing to comply with 

the Order Granting Plaintiff’s Motion to Confirm Arbitration Award and Denying Defendant’s 

Countermotion to Modify Award; and Judgment (“Orders”). 

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES 

Consistent with the Arbitrator’s findings, Defendants continue to act in bad faith to deny 

Plaintiff the right to inspect Defendants’ books and records. Specifically, a week before the 

scheduled hearing on the duly entered and served order to show cause, Defendants, through their 

Case Number: A-20-822273-C

Electronically Filed
1/20/2021 4:45 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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manager, principal, and chairman Bloom1, unsuccessfully attempted to orchestrate a scheme to 

take over the case and avoid the hearing and the consequences for the subject undeniable contempt.  

This scheme is so beyond the pale, it bears the Court’s consideration when considering the nature of 

Defendants’ contempt and the necessary sanctions. Accordingly, Plaintiff files this supplement. 

Specifically, on January 14, 2021, Mr. Nahabedian sent a letter to Plaintiff’s counsel stating 

that he had been hired by Plaintiff to replace it in the above captioned action. (Exhibit 1-A). Mr. 

Nahabedian claims he was retained by Matthew Farkas (“Farkas”), one of Plaintiff’s members. 

Despite the assertion, Mr. Nahabedian refused to produce related communications regarding his 

retention. This of course posed several problems. First, Farkas has no authority to hire or fire 

counsel. Second, Mr. Nahabedian has an unwaivable conflict—he currently represents Bloom and 

has represented Defendants’ affiliates. Thus, not only could Mr. Nahabedian not represent Plaintiff, 

but it was completely improper for him to speak directly with Farkas. Making matter’s worse, Mr. 

Nahabedian claimed that the matter had been settled—although in follow up, he refused to provide any 

evidence of a settlement. Mr. Nahabedian then pressed Plaintiff’s counsel to sign a substitution of 

counsel so that the matter could be dismissed before this Court’s show cause hearing. Of course, the 

entire scenario was a sham perpetrated by Defendants who will do anything to conceal records Plaintiff 

is entitled to receive that might reveal where Plaintiff’s $1 million investment went. Once the sham 

was revealed, both Defendants’ counsel and Mr. Nahabedian swore that they had no involvement in 

either the “settlement” or any related discussions. While that seems improbable, it leaves one solitary 

person holding the bag—Bloom.  

Defendants response is a fraud on the Court, as evidenced by the transcript attached hereto as 

Exhibit 1-K. A response to Defendants’ motion to enforce settlement will be filed in due course, with 

a substantial request for sanctions. In the meantime, the Court should enter an order of contempt and/or 

set an evidentiary hearing for further proceedings. 

/ / / 
 

 
1 Defendants’ Limited Opposition to Motion to Confirm Arbitration Award and Countermotion to Modify Award per 
NRS 38.242, at Exh. A. 
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A. After the Court issued its order to show cause, Defendants and Bloom’s contemptuous 

behavior has accelerated, with Bloom attempting to wrest control of Plaintiff and 

instill his own attorney as counsel to dismiss this action. 

Plaintiff is a Delaware Limited Liability, with two members, TGC 100 Investor, LLC and 

Farkas. Plaintiff “invested $1 million into the business of [Defendants] in exchange for a” 

membership interest in Defendants (Final Award, October 1, 2020 Motion to Confirm Arbitration 

Award, at Exhibit 1, at p. 2). 

On May 2, 2017, Plaintiff made a statutory request to inspect Defendants’ records pursuant 

to its status as a member of Defendants. (Id.). Defendants’ refused to produce the company records 

in what the Arbitration panel found to be “the first in a long and bad faith effort by [Defendants] 

to avoid their statutory and contractual duties to a member to produce requested records.” 

(Id.)(emphasis added). 

On September 15, 2020, the Panel entered its Final Award, wherein it compelled 

Defendants to produce the requested records by September 25, 2020. (Id.). 

On November 17, 2020, this Court entered Order Granting Plaintiff’s Motion to Confirm 

Arbitration Award and Denying Defendant’s Countermotion to Modify Award; and Judgment (the 

“Judgment”). Judgment, on file herein. The Judgment likewise ordered Defendants to provide 

business records to Plaintiff as required in the Final Order. Id.  

Defendants failed to produce the records, and on December 21, 2020, the Court entered an 

Order to Show Cause why Defendants and Jay Bloom Should Not Be Held in Contempt of Court, 

on file herein. 

1. Immediately after the Order to Show Cause was entered and served, Defendants 

illicitly acted to frustrate Plaintiff’s post-judgment enforcement efforts. 

On January 5, 2021, Defendants’ counsel failed to comply with a subpoena for records 

with respect to the source of funds received by it on behalf on Defendants. (Exhibit 1-B). 

Defendants’ counsel agreed to supplement its productions on January 6, 2021. (Exhibit 1-C). 

Defendants’ counsel never made a supplemental production. (Declaration of Dylan T. Ciciliano, 
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at ¶ 5). 

 On January 7, 2021, Bloom refused to produce documents in response to a post-judgment 

subpoena. (Exhibit 1-D). On January 8, 2021, Bloom stated that he would not appear for a 

deposition, as he was “not a party” to this action. (Exhibit 1-E).   Of course, this disregards 

Plaintiff’s right to depose any person believed to have knowledge regarding the Judgment Debtors’ 

assets that could be used to satisfy the Judgment, as well as knowledge regarding the location of 

the documents ordered to be produced.  Mona v. Eighth Judicial Dist. Court of State in & for 

County of Clark, 132 Nev. 719, 726, 380 P.3d 836, 841 (2016) 

When Defendants’ counsel requested a meet and confer, Plaintiff provided dates, including 

over the weekend. (Exhibit 1-F). Defendants, however, failed to follow up and schedule a meet 

and confer. (Ciciliano Decl. at ¶ 10).  After having vigorously opposed post-judgment discovery 

efforts, Defendants fell silent. The purpose soon became entirely clear, Bloom was attempting to 

defeat the judgment with a coup. 

On January 14, 2021, Raffi Nahabedian, Esq. sent a letter to Plaintiff’s counsel claiming 

that he had been retained by Farkas to represent Plaintiff, that Plaintiff’s counsel of record would 

be terminated, that Plaintiff’s counsel was to execute a substitution of counsel and that Plaintiff 

would be dismissing this matter pursuant to a settlement. (Exhibit 1-A). As part of the letter, 

Nahabedian included a letter purportedly drafted by Farkas, but which was actually drafted by 

Bloom or his counsel. (Exhibit- 1-G). In fact, Farkas had not even communicated with Nahabedian 

until after Bloom presented Farkas with an engagement agreement. Even if that were not the case, 

Nahabedian’s letter created a myriad of concerns.  

First, Farkas lacked the ability to control Plaintiff. On September 17, 2020, Plaintiff’s 

members adopted an amended operating agreement, whereby TGC 100 Investor, LLC had “full, 

exclusive, and complete discretion, power and authority” . . . “to manage, control, administer and 

operate the business and affairs of the Company.” (See Exhibit 2-A, a September 17, 2020 Email 

from Farkas signed the Amendment to Limited Liability Company Agreement of TGC/Farkas 

Funding, LLC; Exhibit 2-B, Amendment to Limited Liability Company Agreement of TGC/Farkas 
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Funding, LLC). Thus, Farkas has no ability to control Plaintiff. Moreover, TGC 100 Investor, LLC 

did not authorize Mr. Nahabedian’s retention, Garman Turner Gordon’s termination or the 

settlement of this matter. (Declaration of Adam Flatto, Manager of TGC 100 Investor, LLC, 

attached hereto as Exhibit 2, at ¶¶ 5-8). 

Second, Mr. Nahabedian’s appearance caused red flags. First, Mr. Nahabedian 

concurrently represents Bloom. See Case No. A-20-809882-B. Furthermore, Mr. Nahabedian has 

represented Defendants’ and/or their affiliate (Kal-Mor-USA,LLC) in more than a dozen cases. See 

e.g. Case No.’s A-14-705587-C, A-16-730447-C. In those cases where Mr. Nahabedian represented 

Defendants or their affiliate, Maier Guitterez & Associates (“MGA”), Defendants’ and Bloom’s 

current counsel, was almost always counsel of record as well. Id. These facts undeniably give rise to 

the specter of impropriety, and could only occur with Bloom’s involvement.  

Additionally, they give rise to an unwaivable conflict of interest. Mr. Nahabedian’s 

representation of Defendants’ principal and Plaintiff is a concurrent conflict of interest. This 

concurrent representation violates Nevada Rule of Professional Conduct 1.7(a), and 1.6, and is 

unwaivable. NRPC 1.7(b)(3). Thus, Mr. Nahabedian could not serve as Plaintiff’s counsel, even if 

Farkas was authorized to hire him (he is not).  

Of additional concern is the fact that Farkas has in his possession Plaintiff’s attorney-client 

privileged information. Mr. Nahabedian’s ex-parte communicate with Farkas about this matter creates 

ethical issues given Mr. Nahabedian’s concurrent representation of Bloom. Brown v. Eighth Judicial 

Dist. Court ex rel. County of Clark,  116 Nev. 1200, 1205, 14 P.3d 1266, 1270 (2000). 

Finally, Mr. Nahabedian’s allegation that Plaintiff settled the matter was disturbing because, 

in fact, Plaintiff did not settle the action and is actively pursuing its remedies. (Flatto Decl. at ¶ 8). 

Defendants, however, were desperate and the purported (and non-evidenced) settlement was the lynch 

pin of Defendants’ scheme.2  

 On January 15, 2021, Plaintiff addressed Mr. Nahabedian’s letter. (See Exhibit 1-H).  When 

 
2 After Mr. Nahabedian sent his letter, Defendants’ counsel MGA affirmatively asserted that they were 
aware that Mr. Nahabedian would be substituting in and insisted that they communicate with him in 
relation to the case. (Exh. 1-F). 
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faced with the outrageous conduct in which Defendants and Mr. Nahabedian were engaged, Mr. 

Nahabedian stepped back and he and MGA disavowed any involvement in any settlement negotiations 

or the drafting of any settlement documents. (Exhibit 1-I).  

To date, and despite demand, Mr. Nahabedian have refused to produce any documents related 

to any “settlement,” including the settlement agreement, Mr. Nahabedian’s purported retention, or 

settlement negotiations. (Exhibit 1-J). 

CONCLUSION 

 Plaintiff requests that this Court hold Defendants and Jay Bloom in Contempt of Court for 

failing to produce documents in compliance with this Court’s Judgment and impose monetary 

sanctions upon Defendants and Bloom as a condition precedent to purging contempt. 

DATED this 20th day of January, 2021.  

   GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP 

  /s/ Erika Pike Turner    
ERIKA PIKE TURNER  
Nevada Bar No. 6454 
DYLAN T. CICILIANO  
Nevada Bar. No. 12348 
7251 Amigo Street, Suite 210 
Tel: (725) 777-3000 

        Attorneys for Plaintiff 
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DECL 
GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP 
ERIKA PIKE TURNER 
Nevada Bar No. 6454 
Email: eturner@gtg.legal 
DYLAN T. CICILIANO 
Nevada Bar. No. 12348 
Email: dciciliano@gtg.legal 
7251 Amigo Street, Suite 210 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89119 
Tel: (725) 777-3000 
Fax: (725) 777-3112 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 
 

DISTRICT COURT 
 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 
 
TGC/FARKAS FUNDING, LLC, 
 
                          Plaintiff, 
 
vs. 
 
FIRST 100, LLC, a Nevada Limited Liability
Company; FIRST ONE HUNDRED
HOLDINGS, LLC, a Nevada limited liability
company aka 1st ONE HUNDRED HOLDINGS
LLC, a Nevada Limited Liability Company, 
 

   Defendants. 

CASE NO.  A-20-822273-C 
DEPT. 13  
 
 
DECLARATION OF DYLAN T. 
CICILIANO IN SUPPORT OF 
SUPPLEMENT TO PLAINTIFF’S EX 
PARTE APPLICATION FOR ORDER TO 
SHOW CAUSE WHY DEFENDANTS AND 
JAY BLOOM SHOULD NOT BE HELD IN 
CONTEMPT OF COURT 
 
 
 

 

I, Dylan T. Ciciliano, declare as follows: 

1. I am an attorney licensed to practice law in the State of Nevada and am an associate 

in the law firm of Garman Turner Gordon LLP, counsel of record for Plaintiff TGC/Farkas 

Funding, LLC (“Plaintiff”) in the above-captioned case.  In such capacity, I have developed 

personal knowledge regarding the facts set forth below. 

2. I make this Declaration in support of the Supplement to Plaintiff’s Ex Parte 

Application for Order to Show Cause Why Defendants and Jay Bloom Should Not Be Held In 

Contempt of Court (the “Supplement”). 

3. Attached hereto as Exhibit 1-A is a true and correct copy of a January 14, 2021, 

letter from Raffi Nahabedian, Esq. to Plaintiff’s counsel claiming that he had been retained by 

Farkas to represent Plaintiff, that Plaintiff’s counsel of record would be terminated, that Plaintiff’s 
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counsel was to execute a substitution of counsel and that Plaintiff would be dismissing this matter 

pursuant to a settlement. 

4. Attached hereto as Exhibit 1-B is a true and correct copy of objections to a 

subpoena duces tecum to Defendants’ counsel. 

5. Attached hereto as Exhibit 1-C is a true and correct copy of an email chain from 

January 5, 2021, with Plaintiff’s counsel. 

6. Defendants’ counsel has failed to supplement its production. 

7. On January 7, 2021, Bloom refused to respond to a post-judgment subpoena for 

records relevant to Defendants’ assets. A true and correct copy of the objections are attached hereto 

as Exhibit 1-D. To date Bloom has produced no records. 

8. On January 8, 2021, Bloom stated that he would not appear for a deposition, as he 

was “not a party” to this action. A true and correct copy of his email is attached hereto as Exhibit 

1-E. 

9. A true and correct copy of an email from Defendants counsel is attached hereto as 

Exhibit 1-F. 

10. Defendants failed to follow up with Plaintiff’s counsel on a meet and confer. 

11. Attached hereto as Exhibit 1-G is a true and correct copy of a January 19, 2021 

email from Matthew Farkas. 

12. Attached hereto as Exhibit 1-H is a true and correct copy of a letter from Plaintiff’s 

counsel to Nahabedian. 

13. Attached hereto as Exhibit 1-I is a true and correct copy of a  January 15, 2020 

email from Mr. Nahabedian and Defendants’ counsel. 

14. Attached hereto as Exhibit 1-J is a true and correct copy of an emails from Mr. 

Nahabedian. 

15. Attached hereto as Exhibit 1-K is a true and correct copy of a transcript of a 

recorded conversation with Matthew Farkas from January 21, 2021. 

/// 

/// 
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I declare under penalty of perjury under the law of the State of Nevada that the foregoing 

is true and correct. 

Executed this 20th day of January, 2021. 

 
/s/ Dylan T. Ciciliano     

      DYLAN T. CICILIANO, Declarant 
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RESP 
JASON R. MAIER, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 8557 
JOSEPH A. GUTIERREZ, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 9046 
MAIER GUTIERREZ & ASSOCIATES 
8816 Spanish Ridge Avenue 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89148 
Telephone: (702) 629-7900 
Facsimile: (702) 629-7925 
E-mail: jrm@mgalaw.com 
 jag@mgalaw.com 
 
Attorneys for Subpoenaed Party 
Maier Gutierrez PLLC  
dba Maier Gutierrez & Associates 
 
 

DISTRICT COURT 
 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 
 
 
TGC/FARKAS FUNDING, LLC, 
 

Plaintiff, 
 
vs. 
 
FIRST 100, LLC, a Nevada limited liability 
company; 1st ONE HUNDRED HOLDINGS, 
LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, 
 

Defendants. 

 
Case No.:  A-20-822273-C 
Dept. No.:  XIII 
 
MAIER GUTIERREZ PLLC dba MAIER 
GUTIERREZ & ASSOCIATES’ 
AMENDED RESPONSES AND 
OBJECTIONS TO REQUESTS FOR 
PRODUCTION ACCOMPANYING 
SUBPOENA 

 
TO: TGC/FARKAS FUNDING, LLC, plaintiff; and 

TO: ERIKA PIKE TURNER, ESQ., attorney for plaintiff. 

 Pursuant to Nevada Rule of Civil Procedure 45, subpoenaed party Maier Gutierrez PLLC dba 

Maier Gutierrez & Associates (“MGA”), hereby provides the following amended responses and 

objections to requests for production accompanying the subpoena dated December 18, 2020, and 

served on December 29, 2020.  By responding to these requests for production, MGA expressly 

reserves and does not waive the right to object to, oppose, and/or move to quash the subpoena and/or 

further action taken by any party to enforce the subpoena as to MGA on any and all procedural and 

substantive grounds, including but not limited to grounds that the subpoena is defective and was not 

properly issued, and that MGA is not a proper subpoenaed party in this action. 

Case Number: A-20-822273-C

ELECTRONICALLY SERVED
1/5/2021 10:50 AM
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RESPONSES TO REQUESTS FOR PRODUCTION 

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 1: 

 Documents evidencing the payment of any funds by, on behalf of, or on the account of the 

Judgment Debtors’, including but not limited to bank statements, wire receipts and checks. 

AMENDED RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 1: 

 Objection.  This request is vague and ambiguous, unduly burdensome and overbroad with no 

limitations as to time or scope.  Further, the discovery sought is not proportional to the needs of the 

case.  Subject to these objections, MGA limits its response to January 1, 2020, to the present, and 

responds as follows:  MGA is not in possession of any responsive documents. 

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 2: 

 Documents sufficient to identify any funds held in trust by YOU on relation to the Judgment 

Debtors or any of their affiliated entities. 

RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 2: 

 Objection.  This request is vague and ambiguous, unduly burdensome and overbroad with no 

limitations as to time or scope.  Further, the discovery sought is not proportional to the needs of the 

case.  Subject to these objections, MGA responds as follows:  MGA is not in possession of any 

responsive documents. 

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 3: 

 All documents and communications Relating to the source of any Person’s, including the 

Judgment Debtors, payments or transfers of an Asset to You (including the form and source of any 

payments) in payment of Your fees and costs incurred in representing Judgment Debtors since January 

1, 2015 to the present.  This would include copies of all checks, credit card deposits and wire 

confirmations as applicable. 

RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 3: 

 Objection.  This request is vague and ambiguous, unduly burdensome and overbroad with no 

limitations as to scope and a purported timeframe that is not reasonable or proportional to the needs 

of the case.  Subject to these objections, MGA limits its response to January 1, 2020, to the present, 

and responds as follows:  MGA is not in possession of any responsive documents. 
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REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 4: 

 Documents in your possession that are sufficient to identify any assets that Judgment Debtors 

own or in which they have an interest, including any accounts or property. 

RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 4: 

 Objection.  This request is vague and ambiguous, unduly burdensome and overbroad with no 

limitations as to time or scope.  Further, the discovery sought is not proportional to the needs of the 

case.  Subject to these objections, MGA responds as follows:  MGA is not in possession of any 

responsive documents. 

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 5: 

 Documents in your possession that are sufficient to identify any Real Property owned or once 

owned by Judgment Debtors. 

RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 5: 

 Objection.  This request is vague and ambiguous, unduly burdensome and overbroad with no 

limitations as to time or scope.  Further, the discovery sought is not proportional to the needs of the 

case.  Subject to these objections, MGA responds as follows:  MGA is not in possession of any 

responsive documents. 

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 6: 

 Any and all documents related to any judgments held by Judgment Debtors. 

RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 6: 

 Objection.  This request is vague and ambiguous, unduly burdensome and overbroad with no 

limitations as to time or scope.  Further, the discovery sought is not proportional to the needs of the 

case.  Subject to these objections, MGA responds as follows: 

See judgment against defendants Raymond K. Ngan, Ngan Ventures Limited and PI Global 

Holdings, LLC filed on March 28, 2017, in the case styled First 100, LLC, et al. v. Raymond K. Ngan, 

et al., formerly pending in the Eighth Judicial District Court, District of Nevada, as Case No. A-16-

738970-C.  Documents related to this judgment are publicly accessible via Case No. A-16-738970-C. 

See judgment against defendants Raymond K. Ngan, Relativity Capital Group, Ltd., Relativity 

Capital, LLC, and Relativity Enterprises, Inc. filed on June 22, 2017, in the case styled First 100, 
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LLC, et al. v. Raymond K. Ngan, et al., formerly pending in the Eighth Judicial District Court, District 

of Nevada, as Case No. A-17-753459-C.  Documents related to this judgment are publicly accessible 

via Case No. A-17-753459-C. 

See amended judgment against defendants Joel Just and Eagle Rock Asset Management, LLC, 

filed on August 27, 2020, in the case styled First 100, LLC, et al. v. Joel Just, et al., formerly pending 

in the Eighth Judicial District Court, District of Nevada, as Case No. A-14-705993-B.  Documents 

related to this judgment are publicly accessible via Case No. A-14-705993-B. 

REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 7: 

 Any and all documents related to any money You have collected on behalf of Judgment 

Debtors. 

RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION NO. 7: 

 Objection.  This request is vague and ambiguous, unduly burdensome and overbroad with no 

limitations as to time or scope.  Further, the discovery sought is not proportional to the needs of the 

case.  Subject to these objections, MGA responds as follows:  MGA is not in possession of any 

responsive documents. 

DATED this 5th day of January, 2021. 

 Respectfully submitted, 
 
MAIER GUTIERREZ & ASSOCIATES 

__/s/ Jason R. Maier____________________ 
JASON R. MAIER, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 8557 
JOSEPH A. GUTIERREZ, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 9046 
8816 Spanish Ridge Avenue 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89148 
Attorneys for Subpoenaed Party Maier 
Gutierrez PLLC dba Maier Gutierrez & 
Associates
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
 

 Pursuant to Administrative Order 14-2, a copy of the MAIER GUTIERREZ PLLC dba 

MAIER GUTIERREZ & ASSOCIATES’ AMENDED RESPONSES AND OBJECTIONS TO 

REQUESTS FOR PRODUCTION ACCOMPANYING SUBPOENA was electronically served 

on the 5th day of January, 2021, through the Notice of Electronic Filing automatically generated by 

the Court's facilities to those parties listed on the Court's Master Service List as follows: 

Erika P. Turner, Esq. 
Dylan T. Ciciliano, Esq. 

GARMAN TURNER GORDON, LLP 
7251 Amigo Street, Suite 210 

Las Vegas, Nevada 89119 
Attorneys for Plaintiff TGC/Farkas Funding LLC 

 
 
 

 
 

  
 
 

 

 

 

  

  

  

  

 

/s/ Charity Johnson 
An Employee of MAIER GUTIERREZ & ASSOCIATES 
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Dylan Ciciliano

From: Dylan Ciciliano
Sent: Thursday, January 7, 2021 5:32 PM
To: Jason Maier; Erika Turner; Max Erwin
Cc: Joseph Gutierrez; Charity Johnson; Danielle Barraza
Subject: RE: Case No. A-20-822273-C TGC Farkas Funding LLC v. First 100, LLC

Jason, 
 
With respect to Rock Bay, a judgment creditor’s discovery of “non‐parties’ assets” is limited. The “non‐parties’ assets” is 
the operative phrase missing from your statement. Also below, where you ponder if you are wrong, you are. 
 
We will, however, agree to limit the request to January 1, 2018, without prejudice should additional circumstances arise. 
I appreciate your willingness to work this out. 
 

Dylan T. Ciciliano, Esq. 

Attorney 
 
Phone: 725 777 3000  |  Fax: 725 777 3112 

GARMAN  |  TURNER  |  GORDON 
7251 AMIGO STREET, SUITE 210 
LAS VEGAS, NV 89119 

 Visit us online at www.gtg.legal  

 

From: Jason Maier <jrm@mgalaw.com>  
Sent: Wednesday, January 6, 2021 10:56 PM 
To: Dylan Ciciliano <dciciliano@Gtg.legal>; Erika Turner <eturner@Gtg.legal>; Max Erwin <MErwin@Gtg.legal> 
Cc: Joseph Gutierrez <jag@mgalaw.com>; Charity Johnson <cmj@mgalaw.com>; Danielle Barraza <djb@mgalaw.com> 
Subject: RE: Case No. A‐20‐822273‐C TGC Farkas Funding LLC v. First 100, LLC 
 

I’m surprised you would cite to Rock Bay given that it supports my objections previously stated.  Rock Bay 
literally says that judgment creditor discovery to non-parties is limited.  And NRCP 69 incorporates the 
remainder of the NRCP, which necessarily includes the limitations set forth in NRCP 26(b)(1).  
 
I appreciate your further clarification and limitation that you are only seeking the production of records of 
payments received by MGA from or on behalf of debtors.  However, I still disagree with your assertion that 
there is no undue burden.  It is a significant burden to go back and try to figure out what payments might have 
been made and when for any client, then try to locate and match up documents that might perhaps correlate to 
said payments for any client.  Every hour I spend on this harassment over a token judgment is another hour 
taken away from running my law firm and litigating cases on behalf of my clients.  I could certainly be wrong, 
and please correct me if I am, but your repeated assertions of simplicity regarding records from years past 
appears to indicate a lack of experience actually running a business. 
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Your comment regarding the fraudulent transfer SOL is interesting and actually further supports my prior 
objections.  However, given the three-year SOL, would you be willing to limit your request to January 1, 2018, 
to the present?  If so, I will consider it.  To be clear, I do not believe the SOL is determinative and this is 
certainly not a waiver of any objections previously stated.   
 
I’m happy to enlighten you regarding meet and confer availability.  As this subpoena involves my law firm as a 
non-party entity, you have to deal with me directly because I handle the administrative operations of my law 
firm.  If the subpoena were directed to one of my clients and my law firm were merely involved in a 
representative capacity, then you would be able to deal with other attorneys in my office.  So you are 
unfortunately stuck with me on this one.   
 
As for the unnecessary commentary and unfounded accusations, please save those for other attorneys who enjoy 
that sort of thing.  Your accusation that I am somehow concealing assets is a blatant violation of NRCP 
11.  And I’ve never made a single hollow threat in my career.  When I say something, I do it, particularly when 
it involves my law firm directly.   
 
I attempted to address everything in your email below.  But to the extent I missed anything, let’s just assume I 
disagree for the sake of clarity.   
 
Let me know if you are willing to limit your request to the production of records of payments received by MGA 
from or on behalf of debtors from January 1, 2018, to the present.   
 
 
Jason R. Maier 
MAIER GUTIERREZ & ASSOCIATES 
8816 Spanish Ridge Avenue 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89148 
Tel: 702.629.7900 | Fax: 702.629.7925 
jrm@mgalaw.com | www.mgalaw.com 
 
From: Dylan Ciciliano <dciciliano@Gtg.legal>  
Sent: Wednesday, January 06, 2021 12:36 PM 
To: Jason Maier <jrm@mgalaw.com>; Erika Turner <eturner@Gtg.legal>; Max Erwin <MErwin@Gtg.legal> 
Cc: Joseph Gutierrez <jag@mgalaw.com>; Charity Johnson <cmj@mgalaw.com>; Danielle Barraza <djb@mgalaw.com> 
Subject: RE: Case No. A‐20‐822273‐C TGC Farkas Funding LLC v. First 100, LLC 
 
Jason, 
 
I appreciate your response. It was because I didn’t want to assume that I clarified by an additional email.  
 
The request for records related to AAA Arbitration 01‐20‐0000‐0613 and Case No. A‐20‐822273‐C are clearly covered by 
the prior subpoena. Per your suggestion, I will also include additional requests in the NRCP 30(b)(6) notice. 
 
As to the scope of our requests, I’d remind you that NRCP 69(a)(2) provides that “in aid of the judgment or execution, 
the judgment creditor or a successor in interest whose interest appears of record may obtain discovery from any person 
— including the judgment debtor — as provided in these rules or by state law.” Rock Bay, LLC v. Dist. Ct., 129 Nev. 205, 
210, 298 P.3d 441, 445 (2013). In interpreting NRCP 69 and FRCP 69, the Court recognize that “the scope 
of discovery under Rule 69 is very broad.” Genx Processors Mauritius Ltd. v. Jackson, 2018 WL 5777485, at *7 (D. Nev. 
Nov. 2, 2018)(citing Republic of Argentina v. NML Capital, Ltd., 573 U.S. 134, 134 S. Ct. 2250, 2254 (2014) (noting that 
the “rules governing discovery in post‐judgment execution proceedings are quite permissive”); 12 Fed. Prac. & Proc. 
Civ. § 3014, Discovery in Aid of Execution (2d ed. Sept. 2018 update)). 
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We only seek the production of information related to payments received by MGA from or on behalf of debtors. Proof of 
these payments, such as checks and wires will identify Debtors’ assets, notably its accounts and whether anyone else is 
making payments on its behalf, a debtor of debtor. While I appreciate that you’re taking the position that you have 
received no payments related to AAA Arbitration 01‐20‐0000‐0613 or Case No. A‐20‐822273‐C, MGA does not deny that 
it’s received payments in the past from or on behalf of Debtors, and therefore has within its possession information 
related to Debtors’ assets. Moreover, as your firm is aware, the dispute between our clients arose no later than 2017. 
Not only is it immaterial whether you’ve been paid in 2020, as we are seeking the identification of debtors’ accounts, but 
it is irrelevant that the arbitration was filed in 2020, especially since MGA represented debtors in this dispute starting in 
2017. Furthermore, as the fraudulent transfer statute of limitations is three years, we are willing restrict records from 
2017 forward. 
 
There is also little to no burden in complying with the request. You simply need to produce checks or wires (or other 
records) of payments you received from or on behalf of Debtors. You’ve articulated no reason as to why you cannot 
identify funds received from or on behalf of Debtors. You have not stated that the proof of payments is voluminous or 
otherwise unavailable. You are simply refusing to produce the documents. As stated below, we had no intention at this 
time (and likely ever) of taking MGA’s deposition. However, a result of your actions, i.e. refusing to produce simple 
records, it’s now necessary to take MGA’s testimony on subject areas that could easily be answered with the requested 
records. So while I appreciate the hollow threats that you’ll seek fees, let’s be real clear about what’s happening here: 
You are refusing to abide by simple requests. You acknowledged that Debtors have paid MGA at some point in time, yet 
you will only agree to conduct a search for payments in 2020, even though you state that none occurred, i.e. you are 
stating you’ll produce nothing. By all measures, you are concealing the location of Debtors’ assets. That is why we must 
take MGA’s deposition and compel the production of the records. As stated above and below, if you produce records of 
payments received on or behalf of Debtors since January 1, 2017, a deposition and motion practice will not be 
necessary. It seems readily apparent that your compliance with the law will be far less burdensome than any of the 
threatened motion practice. Please confirm that you will produce records of payments received by MGA by or on behalf 
of Debtors from January 1, 2017 to present. 
 
Finally, perhaps you can enlighten me on why no one in your office is able to confer on the simple request for more than 
a week? I’m free on the 12th, however, it seems that we can meet and confer in a matter of moments in the next six days 
as well.  
 
 

Dylan T. Ciciliano, Esq. 

Attorney 
 
Phone: 725 777 3000  |  Fax: 725 777 3112 

GARMAN  |  TURNER  |  GORDON 
7251 AMIGO STREET, SUITE 210 
LAS VEGAS, NV 89119 

 Visit us online at www.gtg.legal  

 

From: Jason Maier <jrm@mgalaw.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, January 5, 2021 2:49 PM 
To: Dylan Ciciliano <dciciliano@Gtg.legal>; Erika Turner <eturner@Gtg.legal>; Max Erwin <MErwin@Gtg.legal> 
Cc: Joseph Gutierrez <jag@mgalaw.com>; Charity Johnson <cmj@mgalaw.com>; Danielle Barraza <djb@mgalaw.com> 
Subject: RE: Case No. A‐20‐822273‐C TGC Farkas Funding LLC v. First 100, LLC 
 

I would not “assume” anything.  The amended response went out following my earlier email stating as much.  I 
am just now seeing both of your follow-up emails. 
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If you know for sure that someone has been paying First 100’s legal fees in 2020, then I sure as heck would like 
that same information myself because I’m not aware of any such payments.  And I disagree with you that if a 
company has been unable to pay its bills in 2020 that it makes prior years much more relevant.  I believe it 
makes prior years much less relevant and far less proportional, as the more remote in time a transaction, the less 
relevance or proportionality it has to today.   
 
Regarding your meet and confer request, I am available for a telephone call in the afternoon on 1/12, 1/14 or 
1/15.   
 
Regarding your additional inquiries, if you want to send over another RFP specifically regarding payment of 
legal fees related to AAA Arbitration 01-20-0000-0613 and Case No. A-20-822273-C, I’m more than happy to 
respond to the same.  However, I can give you a courtesy heads up that no payment of legal fees have been 
made to my firm regarding those two proceedings. 
 
If you proceed with a deposition notice of intent today after I have already substantively responded to the RFPs, 
given you a courtesy heads up regarding the lack of payment of legal fees and/or without complying with your 
meet and confer obligations, I will file a motion for protective order and seek fees and costs against your firm 
for having to file the same.  Candidly, these inquiries are nothing more than harassment of my law firm over a 
judgment in an amount that doesn’t even meet, by way of example, the limited discovery mandates of the 
court’s arbitration program for small value cases. 
 
 
Jason R. Maier 
MAIER GUTIERREZ & ASSOCIATES 
8816 Spanish Ridge Avenue 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89148 
Tel: 702.629.7900 | Fax: 702.629.7925 
jrm@mgalaw.com | www.mgalaw.com 
 
From: Dylan Ciciliano <dciciliano@Gtg.legal>  
Sent: Tuesday, January 05, 2021 1:09 PM 
To: Jason Maier <jrm@mgalaw.com>; Erika Turner <eturner@Gtg.legal>; Max Erwin <MErwin@Gtg.legal> 
Cc: Joseph Gutierrez <jag@mgalaw.com>; Charity Johnson <cmj@mgalaw.com> 
Subject: RE: Case No. A‐20‐822273‐C TGC Farkas Funding LLC v. First 100, LLC 
 
Jason, 
 
In light of the supplement without any responsive records, am I to assume that MGA will not agree to produce records 
relevant to who has been paying Debtors’ legal bills? If that’s the case, do you agree we have met and conferred on the 
issue so that I can compel MGA’s compliance? If you don’t, when are you available for a telephone call. 
 
Additionally, in an effort to schedule a mutually agreeable deposition, what is MGA’s designee’s availability for a NRCP 
30(b)(6) deposition on the following topics: 

1) The Receipt of any funds or anything of value as payment or compensation, including but not limited to 
payment for legal services since 2015, by MGA from or on behalf of Debtors, including but not limited to 
those fees incurred in relation to AAA Arbitration 01‐20‐0000‐0613 and Case No. A‐20‐822273‐C. 

2) The terms of MGA’s retention by Debtors in any action, including those related to AAA Arbitration 01‐20‐
0000‐0613 and Case No. A‐20‐822273‐C. 

I’ll send out an intent to notice today, but if we can find a mutually agreeable time before I do so, I’ll be able to better 
accommodate MGA’s schedule. I don’t imagine that the deposition will take longer than an hour or two and will be 
conducted via Zoom. 
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Thank you in advance, 
 
Dylan  

Dylan T. Ciciliano, Esq. 

Attorney 
 
Phone: 725 777 3000  |  Fax: 725 777 3112 

GARMAN  |  TURNER  |  GORDON 
7251 AMIGO STREET, SUITE 210 
LAS VEGAS, NV 89119 

 Visit us online at www.gtg.legal  

 

From: Dylan Ciciliano  
Sent: Tuesday, January 5, 2021 10:33 AM 
To: Jason Maier <jrm@mgalaw.com>; Erika Turner <eturner@Gtg.legal>; Max Erwin <MErwin@Gtg.legal> 
Cc: Joseph Gutierrez <jag@mgalaw.com>; Charity Johnson <cmj@mgalaw.com> 
Subject: RE: Case No. A‐20‐822273‐C TGC Farkas Funding LLC v. First 100, LLC 
 
Not so, we are entitled to discovery into the assets of Debtors. If your responses were accurate, MGA claims to have not 
received any payment in 2020, which may be why you are attempting to limit the request. As stated below, we know 
that Debtors and/or someone on their behalf have paid legal fees, where those fees came from is relevant to Debtors’ 
assets. If the payments did not occur in 2020, it makes prior time periods that much more relevant. Given that you are 
required to maintain at least 7 years of records, it is not burdensome for you to identify the source of payments you 
received from Debtors during that period.  We would be willing to limit the request in time to a few years, but we have 
to know that we are receiving responsive records. Additionally, as a matter of fact, receiving bank records, including 
check copies/wires, requires little to no effort and banks (especially those maintaining IOLTA accounts) provide 
responses in short order. 
 
Alternatively, we’ll have to take a depositions of MGA to understand the terms/circumstances related to payment. It 
seems like a wholesome response to the subpoena would eliminate the need and save both sides time. If you disagree, 
please provide dates for a deposition and I’ll notice one. 
 
Also, to correct the below, the judgment will be over $30,000 with the entry of the additional attorney fees. Of course, if 
Debtors pay the judgment, we could forgo the above. 
 
Dylan 

Dylan T. Ciciliano, Esq. 

Attorney 
 
Phone: 725 777 3000  |  Fax: 725 777 3112 

GARMAN  |  TURNER  |  GORDON 
7251 AMIGO STREET, SUITE 210 
LAS VEGAS, NV 89119 
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 Visit us online at www.gtg.legal  

 

From: Jason Maier <jrm@mgalaw.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, January 5, 2021 10:18 AM 
To: Dylan Ciciliano <dciciliano@Gtg.legal>; Erika Turner <eturner@Gtg.legal>; Max Erwin <MErwin@Gtg.legal> 
Cc: Joseph Gutierrez <jag@mgalaw.com>; Charity Johnson <cmj@mgalaw.com> 
Subject: RE: Case No. A‐20‐822273‐C TGC Farkas Funding LLC v. First 100, LLC 
 

RFP 1 should have had the same time limitation as RFP 3.  This was an oversight.  We will serve amended 
responses today.   
 
I believe 1 year is reasonable, appropriate and proportional to the needs of this case.  It would be unduly 
burdensome to require me to attempt to review 5+ years of records when you only have a judgment for 23k – 
this fails the discovery proportionality requirement on its face.  I do not believe 5+ years is reasonable, 
appropriate, proportional or narrowly tailored in any way. 
 
 
Jason R. Maier 
MAIER GUTIERREZ & ASSOCIATES 
8816 Spanish Ridge Avenue 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89148 
Tel: 702.629.7900 | Fax: 702.629.7925 
jrm@mgalaw.com | www.mgalaw.com 
 
From: Dylan Ciciliano <dciciliano@Gtg.legal>  
Sent: Tuesday, January 05, 2021 9:23 AM 
To: Jason Maier <jrm@mgalaw.com>; Joseph Gutierrez <jag@mgalaw.com> 
Cc: Erika Turner <eturner@Gtg.legal>; Max Erwin <MErwin@Gtg.legal> 
Subject: Case No. A‐20‐822273‐C TGC Farkas Funding LLC v. First 100, LLC 
 
Good Afternoon, 
 
We are in receipt of Maier Gutierrez PLLC’s (“MGA”) Responses and Objections to Requests for Production 
Accompanying Subpoena. Of note, MGA has responded that it has not received any payments on behalf or for Debtors 
and/or alternatively that it does not maintain records of the same. It seems improbable (read: impossible) that MGA has 
not received compensation for the services that it has provided Debtors over the past 5+ years. Likewise, I am certain 
that you maintain those records, including but not limited to bank and trust account records. Accordingly, your 
responses to requests 1 and 3 are incomplete. We therefore demand that you supplement your responses to account 
for money received by MGA from or on behalf of Debtors. 
 
Additionally, your limitation of your response to January 1, 2020 is inappropriate. The request contained no such 
limitation and is narrowly tailed to identify potential assets for the debtor, namely bank accounts and those paying its 
debts, hence the request for the wires and checks themselves are directly responsive and must be produced. Likewise, 
you undoubtedly provided services to Debtors regarding this matter and dispute prior to January 1, 2020. 
 
Please let me know when we can expect the supplement or when you are free to meet and confer so that we may 
compel the records. 
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Dylan T. Ciciliano, Esq. 

Attorney 
 
Phone: 725 777 3000  |  Fax: 725 777 3112 

GARMAN  |  TURNER  |  GORDON 
7251 AMIGO STREET, SUITE 210 
LAS VEGAS, NV 89119 

 Visit us online at www.gtg.legal  

 
 
The information contained in this transmission may contain privileged and confidential information. It is intended only 
for the use of the person(s) named above. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any review, 
dissemination, distribution or duplication of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you are not the intended 
recipient, please contact the sender by reply email and destroy all copies of the original message.  
 
The information contained in this transmission may contain privileged and confidential information. It is intended only 
for the use of the person(s) named above. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any review, 
dissemination, distribution or duplication of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you are not the intended 
recipient, please contact the sender by reply email and destroy all copies of the original message.  
 
The information contained in this transmission may contain privileged and confidential information. It is intended only 
for the use of the person(s) named above. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any review, 
dissemination, distribution or duplication of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you are not the intended 
recipient, please contact the sender by reply email and destroy all copies of the original message.  
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OBJ 
JOSEPH A. GUTIERREZ, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 9046 
DANIELLE J. BARRAZA, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 13822 
MAIER GUTIERREZ & ASSOCIATES 
8816 Spanish Ridge Avenue 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89148 
Telephone: (702) 629-7900 
Facsimile: (702) 629-7925 
E-mail: jag@mgalaw.com 
 djb@mgalaw.com 
 
Attorneys for Defendants First 100, LLC 
and 1st One Hundred Holdings, LLC 
and non-party Jay Bloom 
 
 
 
 

 
DISTRICT COURT 

 
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

 
 

TGC/FARKAS FUNDING, LLC, 
 

Plaintiff, 
 
vs. 
 
FIRST 100, LLC, a Nevada limited liability 
company; 1st ONE HUNDRED HOLDINGS, 
LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, 
 
                                          Defendants. 

 
  Case No.:   A-20-822273-C 
  Dept. No.:  13 
 
NON-PARTY JAY BLOOM’S OBJECTION 
TO SUBPOENA -- CIVIL 

 

 

Pursuant to Rule 45 of the Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure (the “NRCP”), non-party Jay 

Bloom (“Bloom”), by and through his attorneys, MAIER GUTIERREZ & ASSOCIATES, hereby objects 

and responds to the Subpoena issued by counsel for Plaintiff, TGC/Farkas Funding, LLC (“Plaintiff”) 

in the above-captioned action (the “Action”) as follows:  

1. Bloom objects to the Subpoena as Plaintiff failed to take reasonable steps to avoid 

imposing an undue burden and expense on Bloom with regard to the documents sought by the 

Subpoena, which cover 36 separate requests.  This is particularly burdensome as Bloom is a non-party 

Case Number: A-20-822273-C

ELECTRONICALLY SERVED
1/7/2021 12:15 PM

AA0247



 

2 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28
 

to the Action, yet private financial information is being sought from Bloom in a personal capacity,  

including but not limited to Request for Production Nos. 7, 12, 21, 25, 34, 35, and 36. 

2. Bloom objects to the Subpoena as the Requests for Production which seek financial 

information of the actual Judgment Debtors (First 100, LLC and 1st One Hundred Holdings LLC), 

including but not limited to Request for Production Nos.  1-6 and Nos. 8-36, should be sought directly 

from the Judgment Debtors themselves, instead of harassing non-parties such as Bloom.   

3. Bloom objects to the Subpoena as pursuant to NRS 86.371, “[u]nless otherwise 

provided in the articles of organization or an agreement signed by the member or manager to be 

charged, no member or manager of any limited-liability company formed under the laws of this State 

is individually liable for the debts or liabilities of the company.”  No judgment was obtained against 

Bloom in this Action, therefore Bloom has zero personal liability for the judgment obtained against 

First 100, LLC and First One Hundred Holdings, LLC.  Further, no alter ego findings were made in 

the Action as it relates to Bloom and First 100, LLC and First One Hundred Holdings, LLC.  

Nevertheless, Plaintiff is attempting to unilaterally pierce the corporate veil without having ever 

successfully obtained an alter ego finding, and without ever lodging an alter ego claim where Plaintiff 

would have been required to prove the existence of an alter ego relationship pursuant to the factors 

set forth in LFC Marketing Group, Inc. v. Loomis, 116 Nev. 896, 904, 8 P.3d 841, 846 (2000).  Bloom 

objects to Plaintiff’s attempt to obstruct the statutory and legal authorities regarding the non-liability 

of members or managers of LLCs with respect to the debt of the LLCs.  

4. Bloom objects to the Subpoena to the extent it seeks to force Bloom to create 

documents or compilations that do not exist.  Such will not be provided.  

5. Bloom objects to the Subpoena (including but not limited to Request for Production 

Nos. 24 and 29) as it seeks documents and communications protected by the attorney-client privilege.  

See Nev. Rev. Stat. §§ 49.035, et seq. 

6. Bloom objects to the Subpoena as the Requests for Production are vague and 

ambiguous, overly broad, and not narrowly tailored to avoid imposing undue burden, and the 

discovery sought is not proportional to the needs of the case, specifically with documents being 

requested as far back as January 1, 2015, when there is only a nominal judgment of $23,975.00.  
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Moreover, numerous requests which seek the private financial information of Bloom personally and 

financial information of First 100 and 1st One Hundred Holdings are not limited in time at all, 

including but not limited to Request for Production Nos. 4, 23, 26, 27, 32, and 33.   

DATED this 7th day of January, 2021. 

 
MAIER GUTIERREZ & ASSOCIATES 

 
_/s/ Danielle J. Barraza_________________ 
JOSEPH A. GUTIERREZ, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 9046 
DANIELLE J. BARRAZA, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 13822 
8816 Spanish Ridge Avenue 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89148 
Attorneys for Defendants First 100, LLC 
and 1st One Hundred Holdings, LLC 
and non-party Jay Bloom 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

Pursuant to Administrative Order 14-2, a copy of the NON-PARTY JAY BLOOM’S 

OBJECTION TO SUBPOENA – CIVIL was electronically served on the 7th day of January, 2021, 

and served through the Notice of Electronic Filing automatically generated by the Court's facilities 

to those parties listed on the Court's Master Service List as follows: 

Erika P. Turner, Esq. 
Dylan T. Ciciliano, Esq. 

GARMAN TURNER GORDON, LLP 
7251 Amigo Street, Suite 210 

Las Vegas, Nevada 89119 
Attorneys for TGC Farkas Funding LLC 

 
 
 

 
 

  
 

/s/ Natalie Vazquez 
An Employee of MAIER GUTIERREZ & ASSOCIATES 
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Dylan Ciciliano

From: Max Erwin
Sent: Friday, January 8, 2021 11:42 AM
To: Erika Turner; Dylan Ciciliano
Subject: FW: Subpoena conflict

I received the email below from Jay Bloom regarding his Subpoena. 
 
Thank you. 
 
From: Jay Bloom <jbloom@lvem.com>  
Sent: Friday, January 8, 2021 11:40 AM 
To: Max Erwin <MErwin@Gtg.legal> 
Cc: Joseph Gutierrez <jag@mgalaw.com>; Danielle Barraza <DJB@mgalaw.com> 
Subject: Subpoena conflict 
 
Good morning. 
 
Please be advised that I am in receipt of your subpoena for case number A ‐ 20 ‐ 822273‐ C unilaterally setting an 
appearance date for January 11, 2021. 
 
This email is to provide notice that I am out of state at the moment and unavailable on that date. 
 
Please contact my attorney, as copied herein, to discuss the appropriateness of your notice as I am not a party to any 
action you may have pending, and further, if deemed appropriate, to set a mutually acceptable new date. 
 
Thank you, 
 
Jay Bloom 
Leading Ventures and Enterprise Matching 
m 702.423.0500  | f 702.974.0284 
Jbloom@lvem.com | www.LVEM.com  
  
Please consider the environment   

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This message is for the named person's use only. It may contain sensitive and private 
proprietary or legally privileged information. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any 
review, dissemination, distribution or duplication of this communication is strictly prohibited and may be unlawful. If 
you are not the intended recipient, please notify the sender immediately by return e‐mail and destroy this 
communication and all copies thereof, including all attachments. 
  
Sent from my iPhone 
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Dylan Ciciliano

From: Dylan Ciciliano
Sent: Thursday, January 7, 2021 5:18 PM
To: Danielle Barraza; Erika Turner
Cc: Jason Maier; Joseph Gutierrez
Subject: RE: Notification of Service for Case:  A-20-822273-C, TGC/Farkas Funding, LLC, Plaintiff(s)vs. First 100, 

LLC, Defendant(s) for filing Service Only, Envelope Number: 7193366

Danielle, 
 
I’ll be traveling tomorrow, but can do this weekend or Monday. The morning on Monday works best but have some time 
later in the afternoon if that works better. I can work around most times this weekend. 
 

Dylan T. Ciciliano, Esq. 

Attorney 
 
Phone: 725 777 3000  |  Fax: 725 777 3112 

GARMAN  |  TURNER  |  GORDON 
7251 AMIGO STREET, SUITE 210 
LAS VEGAS, NV 89119 

 Visit us online at www.gtg.legal  

 

From: Danielle Barraza <djb@mgalaw.com>  
Sent: Thursday, January 7, 2021 1:45 PM 
To: Dylan Ciciliano <dciciliano@Gtg.legal>; Erika Turner <eturner@Gtg.legal> 
Cc: Jason Maier <jrm@mgalaw.com>; Joseph Gutierrez <jag@mgalaw.com> 
Subject: FW: Notification of Service for Case: A‐20‐822273‐C, TGC/Farkas Funding, LLC, Plaintiff(s)vs. First 100, LLC, 
Defendant(s) for filing Service Only, Envelope Number: 7193366 

 
Counsel, we have been retained by non-party Jay Bloom with respect to the subpoena served upon him in the 
above-referenced matter.  Please advise your availability for a meet and confer on Mr. Bloom’s objections to 
the subpoena, my schedule is fairly open tomorrow if we can get something set.  
 
Thanks, 
 
 
Danielle J. Barraza | Associate 
MAIER GUTIERREZ & ASSOCIATES 
8816 Spanish Ridge Avenue 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89148 
Tel: 702.629.7900 | Fax: 702.629.7925 
djb@mgalaw.com | www.mgalaw.com 
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From: efilingmail@tylerhost.net <efilingmail@tylerhost.net>  
Sent: Thursday, January 07, 2021 12:16 PM 
To: docket <docket@mgalaw.com> 
Subject: Notification of Service for Case: A‐20‐822273‐C, TGC/Farkas Funding, LLC, Plaintiff(s)vs. First 100, LLC, 
Defendant(s) for filing Service Only, Envelope Number: 7193366 

 

 

Notification of Service 
Case Number: A-20-822273-C 

Case Style: TGC/Farkas Funding, LLC, Plaintiff(s)vs. First 
100, LLC, Defendant(s) 

Envelope Number: 7193366 

This is a notification of service for the filing listed. Please click the link below to retrieve the submitted 
document. 

Filing Details 
Case Number A-20-822273-C 
Case Style TGC/Farkas Funding, LLC, Plaintiff(s)vs. First 100, LLC, Defendant(s) 
Date/Time Submitted 1/7/2021 12:15 PM PST 
Filing Type Service Only 
Filing Description Non-party Jay Bloom's Objection to Subpoena - Civil 
Filed By Charity Johnson 

Service Contacts 

TGC/Farkas Funding, LLC: 
 
Dylan Ciciliano (dciciliano@gtg.legal) 
 
Erika Turner (eturner@gtg.legal) 
 
Tonya Binns (tbinns@gtg.legal) 
 
Max Erwin (merwin@gtg.legal) 
 
 
 
First 100, LLC: 
 
MGA Docketing (docket@mgalaw.com) 

 
Document Details 

Served Document Download Document 

This link is active for 30 days. 
 
 
The information contained in this transmission may contain privileged and confidential information. It is intended only 
for the use of the person(s) named above. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any review, 
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dissemination, distribution or duplication of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you are not the intended 
recipient, please contact the sender by reply email and destroy all copies of the original message.  

AA0256



Exhibit 1-G

AA0257



1

Dylan Ciciliano

From: Matthew Farkas <matthewfarkas70@gmail.com>
Sent: Tuesday, January 19, 2021 9:14 PM
To: Dylan Ciciliano
Subject: Re: CamScanner 01-19-2021 16.35

Again‐ I signed that letter that I didn’t write under duress. Happy to speak tomorrow. Good night.  
 
 

On Jan 19, 2021, at 7:19 PM, Dylan Ciciliano <dciciliano@gtg.legal> wrote: 

  
Thank you! Sorry for the delay, I was feeding my children. As I stated on the phone, I represent 
TGC/Farkas and in that capacity I’m representing it’s interest.  
 
Also, First 100 and Raffi are claiming that you hired  Raffi to represent TGC/Farkas and not that Raffi was 
representing you personally.  
 
Get Outlook for iOS 

 
From: Matthew Farkas <matthewfarkas70@gmail.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, January 19, 2021 7:12:09 PM 
To: Dylan Ciciliano <dciciliano@Gtg.legal> 
Subject: Re: CamScanner 01‐19‐2021 16.35  
  
Just wanted to add that I had never spoken to Rafi until after I signed the retainer and that he agreed to 
represent me because Jay told him I was his brother‐in‐law and needed a lawyer.  
 
> On Jan 19, 2021, at 6:46 PM, Matthew Farkas <matthewfarkas70@gmail.com> wrote: 
>  
> I have spoken on the phone with Rafi a couple of times, but we have never met. The only emails we 
have are documents I have sent him which I am happy to forward. I didn’t in fact write the email below. 
That email was written by Jay or his counsel which I signed under duress, because he said that he was 
going to sue me for breach of fiduciary responsibility to 1st One Hundred which I didn’t understand, but 
did not have the money to pay for legal representation to explain it to me.  
>  In addition, Jay misled Rafi by telling him that I was looking for a counsel other than your firm (which I 
was not). None of what has happened here is either Rafi’s fault or mine.  
> I have no idea what to do going forward and do not have the means to hire counsel.  
>  
>  
> Best Regards, 
> Matthew 
>  
>> On Jan 19, 2021, at 5:40 PM, Dylan Ciciliano <dciciliano@gtg.legal> wrote: 
>>  
>> Thank You Matthew, 
>>  
>> Did you ever speak with Raffi A Nahabedian in person, on the phone, or through email? If so, can you 
provide the emails?  
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>>  
>> Also, Raffi A Nahabedian provided the attached letter (purporting to be from you) to Garman Turner 
Gordon. What are the circumstances surrounding the letter? 
>>  
>> Dylan T. Ciciliano, Esq. 
>> Attorney 
>>  
>> Phone: 725 777 3000  |  Fax: 725 777 3112 
>> GARMAN  |  TURNER  |  GORDON 
>> 7251 AMIGO STREET, SUITE 210 
>> LAS VEGAS, NV 89119 
>> Visit us online at www.gtg.legal  
>>  
>> ‐‐‐‐‐Original Message‐‐‐‐‐ 
>> From: Matthew Farkas <matthewfarkas70@gmail.com>  
>> Sent: Tuesday, January 19, 2021 4:36 PM 
>> To: Dylan Ciciliano <dciciliano@Gtg.legal> 
>> Subject: CamScanner 01‐19‐2021 16.35 
>>  
>> A friend shared an encrypted document to you through the scanning app CamScanner: 
>> Link: 
https://www.camscanner.com/share/show?encrypt_id=MHg2NTU1MWQxNQ%3D%3D&sid=B99C8865C
3B34AC20D8YY9V6&pid=dsi 
>> Access Code:4EDA 
>> Link expires on: 01‐26‐2021 
>>  
>> Try to use an efficient learning office scanning app that is used by 400 million people: 
https://cc.co/16YRxd?c=sl&pid=dsi&af_sub1=IP_a9ed24047b1e04b3ac6587ad77990df4_lite&af_sub2=1
700076821 
>> <January 6 2021.pdf> 
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Erika Pike Turner, Esq. 
Email: eturner@gtg.legal  

 
 

 January 15, 2021 

VIA EMAIL AND U.S. MAIL: 
Raffi A. Nahabedian, Esq. 
748 Doe Avenue 
Las Vegas, NV 89117 
raffi@nahabedianlaw.com 
 
            Re:  TGC/Farkas Funding, LLC (the “Client”) 
           Case No. A-20-822273-C (the “Case”) and the Case Judgment 
 
Mr. Nahabedian,  
 

Garman Turner Gordon (“GTG”) is in receipt of your January 14, 2021 letter and 
attachments.  

 
As you are aware, or should be aware, on September 17, 2020, Mr. Farkas executed the 

Amendment to Limited Liability Company Agreement of TGC/Farkas Funding LLC (the 
“Amended Operating Agreement”).1 In relevant portion, I direct your attention to amended Section 
3.4(a), which provides: 

(a) Except as otherwise expressly provided for herein, the Members, unless 
they are the Administrative Member, shall not have any right or power to 
take part in the management or control of the Company or to act for or to 
bind the Company in any way 
 

Moreover, TGC Investor was appointed the Administrative Member of the Company pursuant to 
Amended Section 4.1(a) of the Operating Agreement. Section 4.1(c) of the Amended Operating 
Agreement, provides that TGC Investor has “full, exclusive, and complete discretion, power and 
authority” . . . “to manage, control, administer and operate the business and affairs of the 
Company.” Id. This power expressly extended to retaining counsel.  
 

Mr. Farkas therefore does not have the ability to terminate counsel for the Client, retain 
new counsel for the Client, or execute any “settlement agreement” to resolve the Client’s Case 
Judgment against First 100, LLC and First One Hundred Holdings, LLC.  

 
1 Moreover, even prior to the Amended Operating Agreement, Mr. Farkas consented to the litigation, both expressly 
and implicitly through his participation. 

7251 AMIGO STREET 
SUITE 210 
LAS VEGAS, NV 89119 
WWW.GTG.LEGAL 

PHONE: 725 777 3000 
FAX: 725 777 3112 

GARMAN 

TURNER 

GORDON 
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Beyond that, the facts appear much more torrid. First 100, LLC, First One Hundred 

Holdings, LLC, and Mr. Bloom are parties to post-judgment discovery and contempt proceedings 
in the Case for failure to abide by the Judgment. At this point, Mr. Bloom has failed to respond to 
a lawful subpoena in favor of jetting to California, nor has he provided any documents relating to 
the Case Judgment debtors he manages. It is extraordinary then that you also currently represent 
Mr. Bloom (before Department 13 in Case No. A-20-809882-B and have served as co-plaintiffs’ 
counsel with Maier Guitterez & Associates (“MGA”) on a variety of matters in which the Case 
Judgment debtors First 100, LLC or First One Hundred Holdings, LLC were plaintiffs along with 
an affiliate. The Client is clearly adverse to First 100, LLC, First One Hundred Holdings, LLC, as 
well as Mr. Bloom in the Judgment case.  

 
 I direct you to Nevada Rule of Professional Conduct 1.7(a), which prohibits your 
concurrent representation of Client and Mr. Bloom: 
 

Rule 1.7.  Conflict of Interest: Current Clients. 
(a) Except as provided in paragraph (b), a lawyer shall not represent a client if the 
representation involves a concurrent conflict of interest. A concurrent conflict of 
interest exists if: 
(1) The representation of one client will be directly adverse to another client; or 
(2) There is a significant risk that the representation of one or more clients will be 
materially limited by the lawyer’s responsibilities to another client, a former client 
or a third person or by a personal interest of the lawyer. 
(b) Notwithstanding the existence of a concurrent conflict of interest under 
paragraph (a), a lawyer may represent a client if: 
(1) The lawyer reasonably believes that the lawyer will be able to provide 
competent and diligent representation to each affected client; 
(2) The representation is not prohibited by law; 
(3) The representation does not involve the assertion of a claim by one client 
against another client represented by the lawyer in the same litigation or other 
proceeding before a tribunal; and 
(4) Each affected client gives informed consent, confirmed in writing. 

 
Undeniably, there is a concurrent representation and corresponding conflict of interest. Further, as 
a result of your prior representation of the affiliate of First 100, LLC and/or First One Hundred 
Holdings, LLC in conjunction with them, there appears to be a further conflict of interest subject 
of Rule 1.6. Your representation of the Client would be materially limited by your relationship 
with Mr. Bloom at the very least. As set forth in Rule 1.7(b)(3), that conflict is unwaivable. Thus, 
even if Mr. Farkas could retain you on behalf of the Client (he cannot), you are ethically prohibited 
from accepting the representation. 
 
 Of additional concern is the fact that you have spoken with Mr. Farkas. Mr. Farkas has in 
his possession attorney-client privileged information of the Client. The privilege belongs to the 
Client, not Mr. Farkas. Despite a clear conflict, you willfully obtained attorney-client information, 
which is a breach of your professional duties. As you represent Mr. Bloom, there is significant 
concern that you have shared the information with Mr. Bloom. Brown v. Eighth Judicial Dist. 

----
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Court ex rel. County of Clark, 116 Nev. 1200, 1205, 14 P.3d 1266, 1270 (2000). More problematic, 
as Mr. Bloom is represented by both you and MGA, the presumption is that the conflict is imputed 
to MGA. Even worse, since you purported to communicate with MGA regarding this case, there 
is a reasonable probability that there was the sharing of confidential information, and that the 
suspicion warrants both your and MGA’s disqualification. Brown, 116 Nev. at 1204, 14 P.3d at 
1269.2 

 
 In addition, the Client hereby demands that you produce: 

1) Any files belonging to the Client or in any way related to the dispute with First 100, 
LLC and First One Hundred Holdings, LLC subject of the Case; 

2) Any purported communications, including engagement letters and conflict letters 
resulting in you being purportedly retained by the Client; 

3) Any and all communications you have had with First 100, LLC, First One Hundred 
Holdings, LLC, Jay Bloom or its counsel while also purporting to be counsel for the 
Client; 

4) Any and all communications you have had with Client member Matthew Farkas; 
5) Any and all communications and documents referencing any compensation you have 

received and the source of such compensation; and 
6) Any and all communications and documents related to the purported settlement that 

was agreed to or executed with First 100, LLC and First One Hundred Holdings, LLC 
that you reference in your letter. 

 
Please confirm by the end of business today whether you will produce those records by Monday, 
January 18, 2021. 
 

Finally, I would strongly encourage that going forward you govern yourself in accordance 
with the Rules of Professional Conduct.  All rights and remedies are expressly reserved. 
 

     Sincerely, 

     GARMAN TURNER GORDON LLP 
 
         /s Erika Pike Turner  
 
       ERIKA PIKE TURNER, ESQ. 
 
cc:  Client and Matthew Farkas 

 
2 A reasonable probability is further established by the fact that Mr. Farkas previously provided MGA with 
privileged information and Mr. Brown (through MGA) introduced the information into arbitration. 
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Dylan Ciciliano

From: Jason Maier <jrm@mgalaw.com>
Sent: Friday, January 15, 2021 1:03 PM
To: Raffi A Nahabedian; Dylan Ciciliano; Erika Turner; Max Erwin
Cc: Danielle Barraza; Joseph Gutierrez
Subject: RE: Order Granting Plaintiff's Motion for Attorneys' Fees and Costs 4832-8615-5989 v.1.docx

I might as well chime in here too for the sake of clarification – my firm also was not involved in any settlement 
negotiations among the parties or preparation of any settlement agreement.  Let us know when a resolution is 
reached regarding which firm represents whom so we know how to proceed.  Thanks. 
 
 
Jason R. Maier 
MAIER GUTIERREZ & ASSOCIATES 
8816 Spanish Ridge Avenue 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89148 
Tel: 702.629.7900 | Fax: 702.629.7925 
jrm@mgalaw.com | www.mgalaw.com 
 
From: Raffi A Nahabedian <raffi@nahabedianlaw.com>  
Sent: Friday, January 15, 2021 12:44 PM 
To: 'Dylan Ciciliano' <dciciliano@Gtg.legal>; Jason Maier <jrm@mgalaw.com>; 'Erika Turner' <eturner@Gtg.legal>; 'Max 
Erwin' <MErwin@Gtg.legal> 
Cc: Danielle Barraza <djb@mgalaw.com>; Joseph Gutierrez <jag@mgalaw.com>; 'Raffi A Nahabedian' 
<raffi@nahabedianlaw.com> 
Subject: RE: Order Granting Plaintiff's Motion for Attorneys' Fees and Costs 4832‐8615‐5989 v.1.docx 
 
Good afternoon. 
 
Given that there is an apparent issue re representation, I will delay further communication until I speak with Mr. 
Farkas.  Moreover, for clarification and for the avoidance of doubt, I was not involved in and did not participate in any 
settlement negotiations and/or the preparation of documents relating thereto. 
 
Respectfully, 
Raffi A Nahabedian  
 

From: Dylan Ciciliano [mailto:dciciliano@Gtg.legal]  
Sent: Friday, January 15, 2021 12:37 PM 
To: Jason Maier; Erika Turner; Max Erwin; R. A. Nahabedian, Esq. 
Cc: Danielle Barraza; Joseph Gutierrez 
Subject: RE: Order Granting Plaintiff’s Motion for Attorneys’ Fees and Costs 4832-8615-5989 v.1.docx 
 
For the avoidance of doubt, there has been no substitution of counsel and there has been no settlement. 
 

Dylan T. Ciciliano, Esq. 
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Attorney 
 
Phone: 725 777 3000  |  Fax: 725 777 3112 

GARMAN  |  TURNER  |  GORDON 
7251 AMIGO STREET, SUITE 210 
LAS VEGAS, NV 89119 

 Visit us online at www.gtg.legal  

 

From: Jason Maier <jrm@mgalaw.com>  
Sent: Friday, January 15, 2021 11:20 AM 
To: Dylan Ciciliano <dciciliano@Gtg.legal>; Erika Turner <eturner@Gtg.legal>; Max Erwin <MErwin@Gtg.legal>; R. A. 
Nahabedian, Esq. <raffi@nahabedianlaw.com> 
Cc: Danielle Barraza <djb@mgalaw.com>; Joseph Gutierrez <jag@mgalaw.com> 
Subject: RE: Order Granting Plaintiff’s Motion for Attorneys’ Fees and Costs 4832‐8615‐5989 v.1.docx 
 

Dylan:  I am adding Raffi Nahabedian to this email thread given what appears to be competing claims of 
representation.  We await your further communication mentioned below.  Thanks. 
 
 
Jason R. Maier 
MAIER GUTIERREZ & ASSOCIATES 
8816 Spanish Ridge Avenue 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89148 
Tel: 702.629.7900 | Fax: 702.629.7925 
jrm@mgalaw.com | www.mgalaw.com 
 
From: Dylan Ciciliano <dciciliano@Gtg.legal>  
Sent: Friday, January 15, 2021 10:02 AM 
To: Danielle Barraza <djb@mgalaw.com> 
Cc: Max Erwin <MErwin@Gtg.legal>; Jason Maier <jrm@mgalaw.com>; Joseph Gutierrez <jag@mgalaw.com>; Erika 
Turner <eturner@Gtg.legal> 
Subject: RE: Order Granting Plaintiff’s Motion for Attorneys’ Fees and Costs 4832‐8615‐5989 v.1.docx 
 
Good morning, 
 
I will submit the order. Thank you. 
 
No, re: substitution/communicating with his office going forward. Further communications/information will follow. 
Please preserve all communications, including text messages and emails you or your office have had with Mr. 
Nahabedian, Mr. Farkas, TGC/Farkas Funding, LLC or anyone purporting to act on their behalf, and direct your clients 
(including Mr. Bloom) to do the same. 
 
Finally, Mr. Nahabedian claims that your office and he negotiated a settlement, please provide that immediately. 
 

Dylan T. Ciciliano, Esq. 
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Attorney 
 
Phone: 725 777 3000  |  Fax: 725 777 3112 

GARMAN  |  TURNER  |  GORDON 
7251 AMIGO STREET, SUITE 210 
LAS VEGAS, NV 89119 

 Visit us online at www.gtg.legal  

 

From: Danielle Barraza <djb@mgalaw.com>  
Sent: Friday, January 15, 2021 9:41 AM 
To: Dylan Ciciliano <dciciliano@Gtg.legal> 
Cc: Max Erwin <MErwin@Gtg.legal>; Jason Maier <jrm@mgalaw.com>; Joseph Gutierrez <jag@mgalaw.com> 
Subject: RE: Order Granting Plaintiff’s Motion for Attorneys’ Fees and Costs 4832‐8615‐5989 v.1.docx 
 

I don’t see any substantive issues with the proposed order, however our firm was copied on communications 
from Nahabedian Law indicating that he is substituting into the case, so I wanted to confirm that we should 
contact his office going forward regarding this order. 
 
 
Danielle J. Barraza | Associate 
MAIER GUTIERREZ & ASSOCIATES 
8816 Spanish Ridge Avenue 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89148 
Tel: 702.629.7900 | Fax: 702.629.7925 
djb@mgalaw.com | www.mgalaw.com 
 
From: Dylan Ciciliano <dciciliano@Gtg.legal>  
Sent: Thursday, January 14, 2021 3:56 PM 
To: Danielle Barraza <djb@mgalaw.com> 
Cc: Max Erwin <MErwin@Gtg.legal> 
Subject: RE: Order Granting Plaintiff’s Motion for Attorneys’ Fees and Costs 4832‐8615‐5989 v.1.docx 
 
Following up on the below. 
 

Dylan T. Ciciliano, Esq. 

Attorney 
 
Phone: 725 777 3000  |  Fax: 725 777 3112 

GARMAN  |  TURNER  |  GORDON 
7251 AMIGO STREET, SUITE 210 
LAS VEGAS, NV 89119 

 Visit us online at www.gtg.legal  
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From: Dylan Ciciliano  
Sent: Monday, January 11, 2021 5:31 PM 
To: Danielle Barraza <djb@mgalaw.com> 
Cc: Max Erwin <MErwin@Gtg.legal> 
Subject: Order Granting Plaintiff’s Motion for Attorneys’ Fees and Costs 4832‐8615‐5989 v.1.docx 
 
Attached is the proposed order granting Plaintiff’s motion for attorneys’ fees and costs.  Please let me know if I can affix 
your e‐signature. 
 
Dylan 
 
The information contained in this transmission may contain privileged and confidential information. It is intended only 
for the use of the person(s) named above. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any review, 
dissemination, distribution or duplication of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you are not the intended 
recipient, please contact the sender by reply email and destroy all copies of the original message.  
 
The information contained in this transmission may contain privileged and confidential information. It is intended only 
for the use of the person(s) named above. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any review, 
dissemination, distribution or duplication of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you are not the intended 
recipient, please contact the sender by reply email and destroy all copies of the original message.  
 
The information contained in this transmission may contain privileged and confidential information. It is intended only 
for the use of the person(s) named above. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any review, 
dissemination, distribution or duplication of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you are not the intended 
recipient, please contact the sender by reply email and destroy all copies of the original message.  
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Dylan Ciciliano

From: Dylan Ciciliano
Sent: Tuesday, January 19, 2021 5:37 PM
To: Raffi A Nahabedian; Erika Turner
Cc: Max Erwin
Subject: RE: Order Granting Plaintiff's Motion for Attorneys' Fees and Costs 4832-8615-5989 v.1.docx

Raffi, 
 
From our letter, please see that you were to produce the following: 
 

1) Any files belonging to the Client or in any way related to the dispute with First 100, LLC and First One Hundred
Holdings, LLC subject of the Case; 

2) Any  purported  communications,  including  engagement  letters  and  conflict  letters  resulting  in  you  being
purportedly retained by the Client; 

3) Any and all communications you have had with First 100, LLC, First One Hundred Holdings, LLC, Jay Bloom or
its counsel while also purporting to be counsel for the Client; 

4) Any and all communications you have had with Client member Matthew Farkas; 
5) Any and all communications and documents referencing any compensation you have received and the source

of such compensation; and 
6) Any and all communications and documents related to the purported settlement that was agreed to or 

executed with First 100, LLC and First One Hundred Holdings, LLC that you reference in your letter 
 
If you have any dispute that the client owns client files, please let me know.  

Dylan T. Ciciliano, Esq. 

Attorney 
 
Phone: 725 777 3000  |  Fax: 725 777 3112 

GARMAN  |  TURNER  |  GORDON 
7251 AMIGO STREET, SUITE 210 
LAS VEGAS, NV 89119 

 Visit us online at www.gtg.legal  

 

From: Raffi A Nahabedian <raffi@nahabedianlaw.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, January 19, 2021 5:04 PM 
To: Dylan Ciciliano <dciciliano@Gtg.legal>; Erika Turner <eturner@Gtg.legal> 
Cc: Max Erwin <MErwin@Gtg.legal>; 'Raffi A Nahabedian' <raffi@nahabedianlaw.com> 
Subject: RE: Order Granting Plaintiff's Motion for Attorneys' Fees and Costs 4832‐8615‐5989 v.1.docx 
 
Good evening. 
 
My apologies for the delayed response, but I have been dealing with a severe back/sciatic nerve issue that has caused 
much of my work to be delayed and stopped due to the debilitating pain. 
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In terms of the Settlement Agreement that you requested, it appears that Mr. Maier provided it to the Court in his filing 
(that we all received this afternoon via email).  My apologies that my letter indicated it would be included, but was 
inadvertently left out.   As I previously stated, I was not involved in any negotiations, the preparation of the document or 
the exchange of the executed documents – it was received after the fact. 
 
Respectfully, 
Raffi A Nahabedian  
 
 

From: Dylan Ciciliano [mailto:dciciliano@Gtg.legal]  
Sent: Tuesday, January 19, 2021 10:24 AM 
To: Erika Turner; Raffi A Nahabedian 
Cc: Max Erwin 
Subject: RE: Order Granting Plaintiff's Motion for Attorneys' Fees and Costs 4832-8615-5989 v.1.docx 
 
Mr. Nahabedian,  
 
I wanted to follow up on our demand for documents. Please provide them immediately. Our next step will be to use 
legal process. 
 
Thank you, 
 

Dylan T. Ciciliano, Esq. 

Attorney 
 
Phone: 725 777 3000  |  Fax: 725 777 3112 

GARMAN  |  TURNER  |  GORDON 
7251 AMIGO STREET, SUITE 210 
LAS VEGAS, NV 89119 

 Visit us online at www.gtg.legal  

 

From: Erika Turner <eturner@Gtg.legal>  
Sent: Friday, January 15, 2021 12:50 PM 
To: Raffi A Nahabedian <raffi@nahabedianlaw.com>; Dylan Ciciliano <dciciliano@Gtg.legal> 
Cc: Max Erwin <MErwin@Gtg.legal> 
Subject: RE: Order Granting Plaintiff's Motion for Attorneys' Fees and Costs 4832‐8615‐5989 v.1.docx 
 
Mr. Nahabedian, 
You said that you had an executed settlement agreement in your possession.  That needs to be provided ASAP along 
with an explanation of how and when it came into your possession. 
 
Erika 
 

Erika Pike Turner 
Partner 
 
GARMAN | TURNER | GORDON 
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P 725 777 3000 | D 725 244 4573 
E eturner@gtg.legal 
 
 

From: Raffi A Nahabedian <raffi@nahabedianlaw.com>  
Sent: Friday, January 15, 2021 12:44 PM 
To: Dylan Ciciliano <dciciliano@Gtg.legal>; 'Jason Maier' <jrm@mgalaw.com>; Erika Turner <eturner@Gtg.legal>; Max 
Erwin <MErwin@Gtg.legal> 
Cc: 'Danielle Barraza' <djb@mgalaw.com>; 'Joseph Gutierrez' <jag@mgalaw.com>; 'Raffi A Nahabedian' 
<raffi@nahabedianlaw.com> 
Subject: RE: Order Granting Plaintiff's Motion for Attorneys' Fees and Costs 4832‐8615‐5989 v.1.docx 
 
Good afternoon. 
 
Given that there is an apparent issue re representation, I will delay further communication until I speak with Mr. 
Farkas.  Moreover, for clarification and for the avoidance of doubt, I was not involved in and did not participate in any 
settlement negotiations and/or the preparation of documents relating thereto. 
 
Respectfully, 
Raffi A Nahabedian  
 

From: Dylan Ciciliano [mailto:dciciliano@Gtg.legal]  
Sent: Friday, January 15, 2021 12:37 PM 
To: Jason Maier; Erika Turner; Max Erwin; R. A. Nahabedian, Esq. 
Cc: Danielle Barraza; Joseph Gutierrez 
Subject: RE: Order Granting Plaintiff’s Motion for Attorneys’ Fees and Costs 4832-8615-5989 v.1.docx 
 
For the avoidance of doubt, there has been no substitution of counsel and there has been no settlement. 
 

Dylan T. Ciciliano, Esq. 

Attorney 
 
Phone: 725 777 3000  |  Fax: 725 777 3112 

GARMAN  |  TURNER  |  GORDON 
7251 AMIGO STREET, SUITE 210 
LAS VEGAS, NV 89119 

 Visit us online at www.gtg.legal  

 

From: Jason Maier <jrm@mgalaw.com>  
Sent: Friday, January 15, 2021 11:20 AM 
To: Dylan Ciciliano <dciciliano@Gtg.legal>; Erika Turner <eturner@Gtg.legal>; Max Erwin <MErwin@Gtg.legal>; R. A. 
Nahabedian, Esq. <raffi@nahabedianlaw.com> 
Cc: Danielle Barraza <djb@mgalaw.com>; Joseph Gutierrez <jag@mgalaw.com> 
Subject: RE: Order Granting Plaintiff’s Motion for Attorneys’ Fees and Costs 4832‐8615‐5989 v.1.docx 
 

Dylan:  I am adding Raffi Nahabedian to this email thread given what appears to be competing claims of 
representation.  We await your further communication mentioned below.  Thanks. 
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Jason R. Maier 
MAIER GUTIERREZ & ASSOCIATES 
8816 Spanish Ridge Avenue 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89148 
Tel: 702.629.7900 | Fax: 702.629.7925 
jrm@mgalaw.com | www.mgalaw.com 
 
From: Dylan Ciciliano <dciciliano@Gtg.legal>  
Sent: Friday, January 15, 2021 10:02 AM 
To: Danielle Barraza <djb@mgalaw.com> 
Cc: Max Erwin <MErwin@Gtg.legal>; Jason Maier <jrm@mgalaw.com>; Joseph Gutierrez <jag@mgalaw.com>; Erika 
Turner <eturner@Gtg.legal> 
Subject: RE: Order Granting Plaintiff’s Motion for Attorneys’ Fees and Costs 4832‐8615‐5989 v.1.docx 
 
Good morning, 
 
I will submit the order. Thank you. 
 
No, re: substitution/communicating with his office going forward. Further communications/information will follow. 
Please preserve all communications, including text messages and emails you or your office have had with Mr. 
Nahabedian, Mr. Farkas, TGC/Farkas Funding, LLC or anyone purporting to act on their behalf, and direct your clients 
(including Mr. Bloom) to do the same. 
 
Finally, Mr. Nahabedian claims that your office and he negotiated a settlement, please provide that immediately. 
 

Dylan T. Ciciliano, Esq. 

Attorney 
 
Phone: 725 777 3000  |  Fax: 725 777 3112 

GARMAN  |  TURNER  |  GORDON 
7251 AMIGO STREET, SUITE 210 
LAS VEGAS, NV 89119 

 Visit us online at www.gtg.legal  

 

From: Danielle Barraza <djb@mgalaw.com>  
Sent: Friday, January 15, 2021 9:41 AM 
To: Dylan Ciciliano <dciciliano@Gtg.legal> 
Cc: Max Erwin <MErwin@Gtg.legal>; Jason Maier <jrm@mgalaw.com>; Joseph Gutierrez <jag@mgalaw.com> 
Subject: RE: Order Granting Plaintiff’s Motion for Attorneys’ Fees and Costs 4832‐8615‐5989 v.1.docx 
 

I don’t see any substantive issues with the proposed order, however our firm was copied on communications 
from Nahabedian Law indicating that he is substituting into the case, so I wanted to confirm that we should 
contact his office going forward regarding this order. 
 
 
Danielle J. Barraza | Associate 
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MAIER GUTIERREZ & ASSOCIATES 
8816 Spanish Ridge Avenue 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89148 
Tel: 702.629.7900 | Fax: 702.629.7925 
djb@mgalaw.com | www.mgalaw.com 
 
From: Dylan Ciciliano <dciciliano@Gtg.legal>  
Sent: Thursday, January 14, 2021 3:56 PM 
To: Danielle Barraza <djb@mgalaw.com> 
Cc: Max Erwin <MErwin@Gtg.legal> 
Subject: RE: Order Granting Plaintiff’s Motion for Attorneys’ Fees and Costs 4832‐8615‐5989 v.1.docx 
 
Following up on the below. 
 

Dylan T. Ciciliano, Esq. 

Attorney 
 
Phone: 725 777 3000  |  Fax: 725 777 3112 

GARMAN  |  TURNER  |  GORDON 
7251 AMIGO STREET, SUITE 210 
LAS VEGAS, NV 89119 

 Visit us online at www.gtg.legal  

 

From: Dylan Ciciliano  
Sent: Monday, January 11, 2021 5:31 PM 
To: Danielle Barraza <djb@mgalaw.com> 
Cc: Max Erwin <MErwin@Gtg.legal> 
Subject: Order Granting Plaintiff’s Motion for Attorneys’ Fees and Costs 4832‐8615‐5989 v.1.docx 
 
Attached is the proposed order granting Plaintiff’s motion for attorneys’ fees and costs.  Please let me know if I can affix 
your e‐signature. 
 
Dylan 
 
The information contained in this transmission may contain privileged and confidential information. It is intended only 
for the use of the person(s) named above. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any review, 
dissemination, distribution or duplication of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you are not the intended 
recipient, please contact the sender by reply email and destroy all copies of the original message.  
 
The information contained in this transmission may contain privileged and confidential information. It is intended only 
for the use of the person(s) named above. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any review, 
dissemination, distribution or duplication of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you are not the intended 
recipient, please contact the sender by reply email and destroy all copies of the original message.  
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TRANSCRIPT OF RECORDED TELEPHONE CONVERSATION BETWEEN

DYLAN CICILIANO, ESQ. AND MATTHEW FARKAS

Transcribed on January 20, 2021

Transcribed by: Kimberly A. Farkas, RPR, CCR #741

Realtime Trials Reporting (702) 277-0106
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DYLAN CICILIANO:  Hi.  This is Dylan.

MATTHEW FARKAS:  Hi, Dylan.  It's

Matthew Farkas.  How are you?

DYLAN CICILIANO:  Hi, Matthew.  I have to let

you know that I'm recording this call, by the way.

MATTHEW FARKAS:  Oh, that's absolutely fine.

That's absolutely fine.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  All right.  So --

MATTHEW FARKAS:  The reason I called, I just

wanted to let you know that I got the note from Matt,

which I guess is from Erika.  I think it's fine.  I'm

glad you sent it.  The First 100 people were basically

threatening to sue me.

Here's the bottom line.  Adam Platto, who is

with TGC Farkas.  I'm the Farkas part of TGC Farkas,

obviously.  I have an issue with First 100, which I

completely agree with.  The unfortunate part of this

whole incident was that the head of First 100 Jay

Bloom, also happens to be my brother-in-law, who I

really don't like, but because he's married to my

sister, I felt that I really needed to remove myself

from this entire incident.

And what they did to me was they -- they

brought in another attorney, who has now since resigned

that space, who has stepped down.  I mean, he was my

 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

AA0277



     3

attorney for, like, three seconds.  And they did this

without -- without, you know, telling me that they were

going to do this.  This guy Raffi Nahabedian, his name

is.  And that's who the letter went to from Erika.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  So when you say -- when you

say that -- hold on.  When you say that they stepped

in, who's they?

MATTHEW FARKAS:  So Adam Platto -- what I did

was I recused myself from the whole thing because I

didn't want to be in between my friend Adam.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  Right.  In the amendment;

right?

MATTHEW FARKAS:  I beg your pardon?

DYLAN CICILIANO:  You recused yourself

through the amendment, where you gave up your

managerial rights.

MATTHEW FARKAS:  Yes, that's exactly --

that's exactly right.

And the only reason I called Erika yesterday

was to let her know that I did not give Jay any

information that he asked for.  He did ask for

information from me, which I refused to give him.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  What did he ask for?

MATTHEW FARKAS:  He asked for me to give him

that amendment that I signed.  I signed the amendment

 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

AA0278



     4

so that Adam could move forward with this -- with this

action that he wanted to do.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  When did he ask you -- when

did he ask you for the amendment?

MATTHEW FARKAS:  When did Jay ask me for the

amendment?

DYLAN CICILIANO:  Yeah.

MATTHEW FARKAS:  Yesterday.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  Yesterday?

MATTHEW FARKAS:  I mean, I had -- I had the

most hellish day yesterday.  And he asked me for the

amendment.  And he said, I'm going to sue you.  He was

going to sue me for, you know, breach of fiduciary

responsibility to the company, which is complete

nonsense, and me trying to twist my role there as to

one of being the CFO, which I was never the CFO for

five minutes.  My role as VP of finance was strictly to

raise capital for the company.  That was my only role.

And so I just wanted to let Erika know that I

completely agreed with what she said, but they --

DYLAN CICILIANO:  How did Nahabedian come in?

That's what I don't understand.  How did you eventually

hire Nahabedian?

MATTHEW FARKAS:  What happened -- so this is

what happened.  Jay wanted to sue me for, you know --
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well, I shouldn't say that.  He was threatening to sue

me, knowing that I had no money to pay for anything.

And Adam knows that, too.  I mean, Jay absolutely

destroyed me financially.  My life -- I've been a mess

for the last several years on account of First 100.  I

lost two jobs because of this.  I mean, I don't want to

even bore you with the details, but it was horrible.

So what they did was they hired Nahabedian.

They hired Raffi.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  Who's they, Jay Bloom hired

Raffi?

MATTHEW FARKAS:  Jay Bloom and Joe Gutierrez,

who, I guess, Raffi is a friend of Joe's.  They brought

Raffi in to represent me in the event that Adam sued

me.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  Okay.

MATTHEW FARKAS:  They came up with this whole

scenario.

Now, in fairness, I mean, things were a mess

back in -- and I spoke to Erika about this over the

summer.  But, in fairness, you know, they were upset

with me because Jay asked me to show him what they'd

sent.  And I -- you know, and I stupidly did, but, in

fact, it was good that I did because I had -- I

wasn't -- I didn't understand exactly what was going
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on.  I had signed a document several years back that

Adam didn't sign, but I signed because they were

threatening not to give me my back pay if I didn't

sign.

You know, Jay -- First 100 has never done

anything or asked me for anything where I wasn't under

duress to sign something.  And they've always held

money as a, you know, as a hot button for me because

they knew that I'd been in trouble financially.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  So when did -- when did Joe

and Jay hire Nahabedian for you?

MATTHEW FARKAS:  I think last week at some

point.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  Okay.

MATTHEW FARKAS:  But Nahabedian has now said

he is not going to represent me at all.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  Okay.  Well -- so they've

now -- so you're aware of what happened, they just

filed a motion with the court to enforce a settlement

agreement that you signed with Jay Bloom.  Where did

that settlement agreement come from?

MATTHEW FARKAS:  I don't -- what settlement

agreement?  I didn't even know this.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  There's a settlement

agreement that has your signature on it dated
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January 6th, 2021.

MATTHEW FARKAS:  A settlement agreement for

January 6th?

DYLAN CICILIANO:  Yeah.  And in the

settlement agreement, I'll tell you, it releases your

arbitration or the TGC Farkas' arbitration award and

fee award against Jay Bloom and First 100.  It totally

gets rid of the case and says the case is dismissed.

And it's signed by you and it says that you have the

authority to do so on behalf of TGC Farkas.

MATTHEW FARKAS:  But I don't.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  I understand you don't, but

that's what the settlement agreement says.  And it's

signed by you and Jay dated January 6th.

MATTHEW FARKAS:  Would it be possible for you

to send me a copy of that?

DYLAN CICILIANO:  I mean, I'm happy to send

it to you.  Are you in front of your computer right

now?

MATTHEW FARKAS:  Yes, I am.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  Okay.  While we're talking,

I'll send it to you so we can go over it.  I mean, the

realty is there's going to be an evidentiary hearing on

this.  And you're going to have to participate and to

explain what happened here.  Because no one truly is,
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or at least on our end, we don't understand.  The first

we learned of it was when we got a letter, that letter

from Nahabedian.  And, evidently -- and in this it says

that you and Jay Bloom negotiated this settlement

agreement.

MATTHEW FARKAS:  I didn't negotiate any

agreement with Jay.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  I'll send it to you.  Hold

on.  I'm trying to extract the pages.

MATTHEW FARKAS:  Which -- just let me know,

Dylan, which email are you sending it to?

DYLAN CICILIANO:  That was going to be my

next question.  I need to know your email address.

MATTHEW FARKAS:  Oh, okay.  Send it to

Matthew, two Ts, Farkas, 70, 7-0 at Gmail, do you mean.

So MatthewFarkas70, one word, at Gmail.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  I'm attaching this right

now.

MATTHEW FARKAS:  I mean, you guys need to

understand one thing.  And I'm glad it's being

recorded, frankly.  I have never done anything when I

wasn't under duress with Jay.  I mean, he is -- and I

told this to Erika.  Jay -- Jay uses litigation.  It's

a blood sport for him.  And the unfortunate thing here

in this situation -- I just got it -- the unfortunate
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thing here in this situation, Dylan, is that Adam has a

lawyer, Jay has a lawyer, Matthew doesn't have a

lawyer.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  Well, Matthew, we represent

the entity.  We represent the entity's interest.

MATTHEW FARKAS:  Right.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  That's what we do.  So we

don't represent Adam.  We represent TGC Farkas and the

interest there.

MATTHEW FARKAS:  So then you are my lawyer?

DYLAN CICILIANO:  Well, we're not your lawyer

personally.  We're the entity's lawyer.  

Are you there?

MATTHEW FARKAS:  Okay.  So -- all right.

Yes, I am right here.  So I'm looking at this.  So

explain this to me.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  Okay.

MATTHEW FARKAS:  Because I do not remember --

I do not remember signing this.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  Have you ever seen this

document?

MATTHEW FARKAS:  And it was only on the 6th.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  Yes.  Have you seen this

document before?

MATTHEW FARKAS:  I do not remember seeing
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this document.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  Did you negotiate this

document?

MATTHEW FARKAS:  No.  I don't think so.  But,

you know what, let me look at -- let me look at

something, Dylan.  Hang on one second.  

DYLAN CICILIANO:  Yeah, sure.  This was two

weeks ago.  So go ahead.

MATTHEW FARKAS:  I understand.  What I'm

looking at or, I should say, what I'm looking for, Jay

sent me a whole bunch of things to sign.  And he said,

you have to do this right away and get right back to

me, and this is going to absolve you from everything.

I mean -- well -- so what you're telling me

though is that this isn't going to happen; right?

DYLAN CICILIANO:  No, no.  They're moving the

court to get it to happen and have everything

dismissed.

MATTHEW FARKAS:  They can't get it dismissed.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  They're claiming that you

told them that you had authority to do this.

MATTHEW FARKAS:  I -- oh, now, wait a minute.

They are lying.  Oh, my God.  This is on tape?  Dylan,

this is Matthew Farkas.  They are lying.  I never told

them I had the authority to do anything.  This is a

 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

AA0285



    11

complete fabrication.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  Did you -- did Jay know --

well, when did Jay -- did you ever tell Jay about the

amendment to the operating agreement?

MATTHEW FARKAS:  He knew about it in

September.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  So he knew about the

amendment --

MATTHEW FARKAS:  And he was furious with me

because it allowed Adam to move this forward and

essentially win the case.  But I never -- I never

told -- I never told Jay I had the authority to do

anything.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  So in --

MATTHEW FARKAS:  We never talked about this.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  So in September, Jay knew

about the amendment?

MATTHEW FARKAS:  Of course.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  When you say, "of course,"

why do you mean "of course."  Did he look at it?

MATTHEW FARKAS:  I didn't send him anything,

but, you know, he told me that he knew about it.  Hang

on.  Let me -- Let me -- I'm just -- I had to hang up

on my wife.  I'm sorry.  She was calling me, but I'll

just text her and tell her I'm on with you.
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Dylan, here's my problem.  I wanted to be

removed from this whole thing because I didn't want to

be in the middle of it.  Okay.  I didn't want to sue my

brother-in-law and I didn't want to hurt my friends so

I just wanted to be away from it.  And I spoke to

Michael Bush, you know, at the end of last year, last

fall.  And he said that they're going to handle it

through the lawyers.  But I never told Jay that I had

the authority to do anything.  He is lying.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  Well, I mean, when you

signed this settlement agreement, apparently, it says

that you have the authority.

MATTHEW FARKAS:  Well, then that's -- that's

my fault because then I should have read it more

carefully.  But, like an idiot, I trusted Jay.

But let me -- I'm just looking through my

emails right now so hang on one second.  Okay.  One

second.

I honestly -- Dylan, I am looking through my

emails right now and I don't see this email.  And I

certainly never told -- now, wait.  Did they say that I

signed this or they said that I told them that I had

the authority to do this?

DYLAN CICILIANO:  Well, they said that you

signed it.  The agreement says that you have the
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authority.  The agreement --

MATTHEW FARKAS:  Oh, all right.  Well, in

fairness, that is a little different.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  Hold on.  Hold on.  Let me

go up.  And it is says --

MATTHEW FARKAS:  So can I just write

something down?

DYLAN CICILIANO:  Yeah.  I'm not going to

stop you from writing something down.

MATTHEW FARKAS:  Yeah, let me just write --

let me just write something down.  So what you're

saying is that these documents sent by Jay -- all

right.  Let me just see something.  Hold on.

Yeah, I don't have anything in my email.  Oh,

wait a minute.  I have some hard copy stuff.  Hang on

one second.

Because what Jay told me was that Joe -- Jay

told me that Joe wanted to sue me.  Joe -- and then Jay

turned around and he said, well, Joe told me that I

should sue you, but Jay was saying -- now, let me see.

Release hold harmless, indemnification.

Yeah.  See, Jay -- Jay was all over me.  I

had to get it back to him in 15 minutes.  I didn't have

a chance to give it to a lawyer, not that I had a

lawyer to give it to.  But because I was never under

 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

AA0288



    14

the -- yeah, there it is.  There, I signed it.

But I never -- but I never -- stupid me, I

didn't understand what the hell I was signing.  I was

just signing it because Jay was telling me that they

were going to get Raffi to defend me in the event that

Adam wanted to sue me.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  So when -- so when did he

provide you these documents?

MATTHEW FARKAS:  The other day, last week.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  Like, what day last week?

MATTHEW FARKAS:  I'm sorry.  I'm looking

through my emails.  I have the hard copies, but I'm

looking through my emails.  Hang on.  Let me just see

something.  Tuesday.

This is the strangest thing.  I don't have it

in my emails, yet, I have the hard copy.  Oh, I know

why.  He didn't send me an email.  This is why it's not

in my emails.

Jay sent the documents directly to the UPS

store near my house.  And I got the documents in the

UPS store.  I signed them.  They scanned them and sent

them back.  That's why they're not in my emails.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  Okay.  And did he ever tell

you what the documents were?

MATTHEW FARKAS:  He just said -- no.  He just
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said that I was signing a document to engage Raffi in

case Adam decided to sue me personally.  And that he

would -- and that Adam would -- not Adam -- that Raffi

was going to be my lawyer.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  Did Raffi sign -- did you

sign an engagement agreement with Raffi?

MATTHEW FARKAS:  Yeah, I think I did.  I

think I did, yeah.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  And what does --

MATTHEW FARKAS:  But Jay had me convinced

that I was either going to get sued by him or by Adam.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  And what is the engagement

agreement -- do you have the engagement agreement with

Raffi?

MATTHEW FARKAS:  Let me go back and look in

the hard copies.  Probably.  Yeah, hang on one second.

I'm happy to send it to you.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  Please.

MATTHEW FARKAS:  I am happy -- now, I'm going

to have to take pictures of it because -- or I can go

to the UPS store tomorrow and send it to you, if that's

easier.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  The pictures are fine so

long as I can read them.

MATTHEW FARKAS:  Okay.  All right.  Hang on
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one second.  So Jay completely lied to me again.

Dylan, I swear to God, I hope you fuckin' put him in

jail.  And I don't care that that's on the -- Attorney

Retainer Agreement.  Here we go.  Here we go.  Attorney

Retainer.  There's my signature.

Got it.  Okay.  I can send this to you right

now.  In fact, I can -- what I can do is I have one of

those -- oh, my, God -- one of those scanners on my

iPhone.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  Right.

MATTHEW FARKAS:  And I can send you -- I can

scan it to you.  I'll do it right now while we're on

the phone.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  Okay.

MATTHEW FARKAS:  So I make sure that you get

this.  You know, once again, Jay lied to me.  I fucking

hate him.  I swear to God, I fucking hate him.

All right.  Hang on one second.  All right.

Sorry.  I know this -- I shouldn't say that.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  I understand you're

frustrated.  I'm not criticizing you for your language

or your thoughts so -- and, honestly, I'm trying to

figure out what's happening here.  Because, as I've

said, they now are going to court saying, get rid of

the judgment and dismiss it.  So we need to get to the
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bottom of this as quick as possible.

MATTHEW FARKAS:  Okay.  All right.  Now,

okay.  So I took the pictures.  Now let me get to my

scanner.  Okay.  Oh, wait a minute.  I'm an idiot.  I

just took pictures of it.  I didn't take pictures with

the scanner.  Hold on.  Hang on one second.  Almost

done.  Almost done.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  Now, how did you know that

Joe Gutierrez was recommending Raffi?

MATTHEW FARKAS:  Jay told me.  

DYLAN CICILIANO:  Did you talk to Joe?

MATTHEW FARKAS:  Hang on.  Not about this.

All right.  Hang on.  All right.  Hang on.

All right.  Now, what is your email?

DYLAN CICILIANO:  I just sent you the one.  I

just sent you an email to your Gmail; remember?  My

name is long.  I can spell it out to you.  It's D, as

in Dylan; C, as in Charlie; I, as in igloo; C, as in

Charlie; I, as in igloo --

MATTHEW FARKAS:  There.  I got it.  I got it.

All right.  I just sent them, four pages.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  Okay.  It's encrypted.

So when you said you didn't talk to Joe about

this, what did you talk to Joe about?

MATTHEW FARKAS:  So this is what happened.
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Jay called me and said, Joe is -- Joe wants to sue you.

Meaning, Joe wanted to sue me.  And they were going to

sue me, allegedly -- they were going to sue me,

allegedly, for -- they said they were going to sue me

for breach of fiduciary responsibility to First 100.

Now, I don't know why the hello -- I don't know what

fiduciary responsibility I was breaching, but that's

what they said.

So I get Joe on the phone and I said, Joe,

what is going on here?  And Joe said, Matthew, I'm not

suing you.  He said, I don't even have the power to sue

you.  I am simply First 100's lawyer.

So the thing is, Jay didn't have the guts to

tell me that he was thinking about suing me.  So it

wasn't Joe, but it was Jay that was going to sue me.

So we had a long talk about what was going on

here.  And, I mean, if you want, I can give you the

whole story, but in a nutshell, Joe said that nobody

has more at risk here than his law firm because the

company owes Joe, I think, like, a couple of million

dollars at least in back fees.  They owe Joe -- Jay

owes Joe a fortune; right.  And they keep saying, I

wish Adam wouldn't do this now because they are

supposedly very close to signing an agreement where

someone is going to buy the judgment.
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Are you aware of the judgment that First 100

has?

DYLAN CICILIANO:  Yeah, the judgment that

they allegedly assigned to TGC Farkas in that

settlement agreement.  

MATTHEW FARKAS:  No, no, no, are you of the

judgment -- 

DYLAN CICILIANO:  The $2 billion judgment,

yes.  In that settlement agreement, they allegedly get

that.

MATTHEW FARKAS:  Well, right.  Nobody thinks

that we're going to get -- or I certainly don't think

we're going to get anything.  But Jay, apparently, has

found someone who is willing to buy the judgment for

$48 million; okay.  He has allegedly found someone.

And, supposedly, this is going to happen within 30

days.  Now, Jay said by the end of January, but he said

it could slip into February, but he has found someone.

And at that point, Adam will get all his money back.

And they're saying that -- what they're

complaining about, what Joe said, meaning Jay, is

complaining about, is that this is -- he is saying that

Adam is obstructing this deal from happening because if

they feel that Jay is getting sued in the courts over

this, that these people may walk away.  They don't want
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to get in the middle of anything.  Which I don't blame

them, except I don't even believe that anybody is

there.

Now, I don't know that for a fact.  I don't

know that.  And both Jay and Joe have told me the same

story, that it's $48 million.  That this person -- you

know, that they've been negotiating with this person

now since August, or maybe even before that.  But I

know from my own experience on Wall Street that when

people want to do something, they do it.  They don't

take six, seven, eight months to make a decision on

something like this.  They either get it and belief

they're going to collect or they don't, and that's it.

And, in fact, three, four years ago, I

actually put the judgment right after we got it in

front of five very sophisticated litigation funding

firms in New York, one of them being managed by one of

my oldest friends from, you know, middle school.  And

all five of these firms walked away.

So I don't actually believe this is going to

happen.  But, in fairness, I haven't seen any

documents.  I don't know who they're talking to.  I

don't know anything.  I'm just going based on my belief

that nothing that Jay has ever told me has been true.

And, by the way, he didn't tell me that he
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was going to do what he did today with this so --

DYLAN CICILIANO:  When you say, "with this,"

you're saying with the settlement agreement, he didn't

tell you that?

MATTHEW FARKAS:  He didn't tell me anything.

He doesn't -- listen, this is what Jay does.  Jay says

to me, Matthew, I'm going to sue you.  You know how

influential I am in the courts.

And this is one thing you should be aware of

here, and I told this to Erika over the summer.  Jay

has a black belt in defending himself and drawing

things out.  He's not a lawyer, but he definitely plays

one on television, and this is what he is really good

at.  And Jay has completely ingratiated himself in

Las Vegas.

Now, by the way, just so I'm clear -- I'm on

tape now.  That's fine.  But I'm assuming that this

is -- you're not going to give this tape to Jay.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  Well, so, I mean, candidly,

I mean, this is the -- this is -- you know, I told you

I represent the company.  And to the extent that if you

were to testify at some point and you testify

inconsistent with this, I will have -- I'm mean, I'm

going to have to introduce it.

MATTHEW FARKAS:  All right.  Well, fine.  I'm
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not saying anything here that's untrue.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  Yeah.  I'm being real

candid with you.  Like I said, I represent the company.

I'm not your personal attorney.  And the whole purpose

of this is both to protect me and to protect -- well,

it's mostly to protect me and the company, such that,

if there's ever a disagreement as to what was said

here, we can definitively resolve that because I don't

want to be a witness.

MATTHEW FARKAS:  Well, look, jay is very good

at defending himself.  And he's ingratiated himself in

the legal community in Las Vegas.  Like, I'm sure you

know he's on the Nevada State Bar disciplinary board;

right?

DYLAN CICILIANO:  Or he was; right.

MATTHEW FARKAS:  Is he no longer?

DYLAN CICILIANO:  I don't know.  I've heard

that.  I don't know one way or the other.

MATTHEW FARKAS:  Well, unless you've heard

differently, he is.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  Okay.

MATTHEW FARKAS:  And he's also -- he's also

on the Metropolitan Police disciplinary board.  So he's

definitely very plugged in.  He's friends with a lot of

judges.  I'm sure you know he's been politically
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active.  You know, these aren't -- there's nothing

wrong with any of this stuff.  I'm just -- I'm only

letting you know this to -- for you to understand that

he will be quite an adversary.  But in terms of telling

me -- I mean, yes, I signed this stuff.  I mean, my

signature is on it.  I can't deny it.  But he didn't --

he didn't take any pains to explain to me what I was

signing.  He just said, you know, Joe wants to sue you

so you better sign this or we're going to sue you.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  Right.

MATTHEW FARKAS:  I mean, I would -- I

absolutely signed this under duress.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  Okay.

MATTHEW FARKAS:  And I can honestly say also

that every time I have -- every time I deal with Jay

related to this, I mean, it is always, you know, I hurt

him, you know, that I've hurt the company.  And, you

know, the fact is that I think -- I mean, I don't

know -- well, you know what, I probably, in all

fairness, I probably said enough.  I think I've given

you all the information that you need.  But I did not

discuss anything with Jay.  I did not realize that my

signature was helping to end this.  And Jay and I will

have to have a conversation about that at another time.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  All right.  Well, like I
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said, this is now -- the court has just, as we're

talking, has set this for -- it says, "Move to enforce

the settlement agreement on January 28th, 2021 at

9:00 a.m."

We have to figure out what to do here

because, as I said, the effect of the settlement

agreement is to wipe out the proceedings, and it's all

based on your signature on that what they claim was

your apparent authority.

MATTHEW FARKAS:  No.  No.  Now, that is --

that is completely untrue.  I never had the authority

to do that.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  And Jay knew that?

MATTHEW FARKAS:  Of course, he did.  I told

him time and again I had removed myself from having any

part of this.  And you can go to Michael Bush.  They

wrote me a letter saying as much.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  Okay.  Well, you know,

we've got to figure this out.  I may have to reach out

to -- I mean, we're going to need a declaration from

you certainly on this, you know, as to what --

MATTHEW FARKAS:  Oh, believe me, it will be

my pleasure to give it to you.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  Okay.

MATTHEW FARKAS:  I had no idea -- Dylan, I
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had no idea that this was -- that this is what the plan

was.  I had no idea.  And this is why I say to Jay and

I say to you, I don't have a lawyer.  I don't have

anybody to talk to about these things.  So when one of

the two parties asks me to sign something because it's

going to help them, you know, I don't want to -- I

didn't necessarily want to hurt Jay and I certainly

didn't want to hurt Adam.  I didn't want to hurt

anybody.  I didn't want to be a part of this.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  No, I --

MATTHEW FARKAS:  I didn't want to be part of

this.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  All right.  I mean, you're

very much a part of it now.  And so --

MATTHEW FARKAS:  Goddamnit.  Oh, my God.  I

am so angry right now, you have no idea.  You have no

idea how angry I am right now at Jay.  You can't even

imagine.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  Well, I mean, it's bad.  If

they win on the motion and force settlement, they

extinguish a million-dollar investment.

MATTHEW FARKAS:  Oh, my God.  I am so angry

with Jay right now.  I am so angry with him.  You go

get him.  Excuse me for saying that, but you guys go

get him.
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DYLAN CICILIANO:  All right.  Well, I'll be

back in touch because it doesn't end with this phone

conversation.

Can you send me anything else that Jay or

anyone else had sent you regarding this subject matter

in the past couple days or past couple weeks so I can

see?

MATTHEW FARKAS:  Yes.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  Thank you.  Like I said,

we've got to figure out what we're going to do here

because, at this point, they're hanging their hat on

the fact that you signed it, you negotiated it, you had

counsel --

MATTHEW FARKAS:  I negotiated nothing.  I

negotiated nothing.  Jay sent me a bunch of documents.

He said, you have to sign these things right away, and

that we will protect you.  Those were his exact words,

we will protect you.  If Adam sues you, we will protect

you.  Those were his exact words.  If Adam sues you, we

will protect you.  We will pay for your defense.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  Who paid the retainer for

Nahabedian?

MATTHEW FARKAS:  Jay.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  Well, you didn't pay it;

right?
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MATTHEW FARKAS:  No.  I don't have the money

to pay for a lawyer.  That's why I'm in this position

right now.  I don't have the money to pay for a lawyer.

You guys go get him.  You go get him.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  All right.  Well, thanks

for taking the time, and, like I said, we'll be in

touch.

MATTHEW FARKAS:  All right.  Thanks.  Bye.

DYLAN CICILIANO:  Bye.

          (Whereupon, the recording was concluded.) 

-o0o- 

ATTEST:  FULL, TRUE, AND ACCURATE TRANSCRIPT OF 

RECORDED CONVERSATION. 

 

________________________________ 
/S/ Kimberly A. Farkas, RPR, CRR 
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